BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

WEDNESDAY 6TH DECEMBER 2023
AT 6.00 P.M.

PARKSIDE SUITE - PARKSIDE

MEMBERS: Councillors S. Ammar (Chairman), B. Kumar (Vice-Chairman),
A. Bailes, R. Bailes, S. J. Baxter, S. R. Colella, A. M. Dale,
J. Elledge, S. M. Evans, D. J. A. Forsythe, E. M. S. Gray,
C.A. Hotham, D. Hopkins, R. J. Hunter, H. J. Jones,
R. Lambert, M. Marshall, K.J. May, P. M. McDonald,
B. McEldowney, S. T. Nock, D. J. Nicholl, J. Robinson,
S. A. Robinson, H. D. N. Rone-Clarke, J. D. Stanley,
D. G. Stewart, K. Taylor, S. A. Webb and P. J. Whittaker

AGENDA
WELCOME
1. To receive apologies for absence
2. Declarations of Interest

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm
the nature of those interests.

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Council
held on 25th October 2023 (Pages 7 - 26)

4. To receive any announcements from the Chairman and/or Head of Paid
Service



10.

11.

12.

To receive any announcements from the Leader

To receive comments, questions or petitions from members of the public
(Pages 27 - 28)

A period of up to 15 minutes is allowed for members of the public to make a
comment, ask questions or present petitions. Each member of the public has
up to 3 minutes to do this. A councillor may also present a petition on behalf
of a member of the public.

Urgent Decisions
Statutory Officer Posts - Appointments (Pages 29 - 40)
Recommendation from the Licensing Committee (Pages 41 - 42)

Due to the length of the report that was considered by the Licensing
Committee on 13" November 2023, only the recommendation from the
Committee has been included in the main agenda pack for this Council
meeting. The full-length report will be published in a separate supplementary
pack for the Council meeting.

Joint Auditor's 2020-2021 and 2022-2023 Annual Report (Pages 43 - 100)

This matter was also discussed at a meeting of the Audit, Standards and
Governance Committee held on 27" November 2023. Any recommendations
on this subject together with the relevant extract from the minutes of this
meeting will be published in a supplementary pack for consideration at the
Council meeting.

To receive and consider a report from the Portfolio Holder for Leisure,
Culture and Climate Change (Pages 101 - 110)

Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item; no longer than 10 minutes for
presentation of the report and then up to 3 minutes for each question to be put
and answered.

Recommendations from the Cabinet (Pages 111 - 112)

To consider the recommendations from the meeting of the Cabinet held on
22"d November 2023.



13.

14.

15.

16.

Background Information on the recommendations from the Cabinet

0] Governance Systems Review - Update Report (Pages 113 - 120)

(i) Half Yearly Treasury Update Report 2023/24 (Pages 121 - 134)

(i)  Medium Term Financial Plan - Tranche 1 Budget Update including
Fees and Charges (Pages 135 - 154)

Due to the length of this report, only the covering report has been
included in the main agenda pack for this Council meeting. The full-
length report will be published in a separate supplementary pack for
the Council meeting.

(iv)  Einance and Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 2 2023/24
(Pages 155 - 198)

To note the minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 22nd
November 2023 (Pages 199 - 216)

Questions on Notice (Pages 217 - 218)

To deal with any questions on notice from Members of the Council, in the
order in which they have been received.

A period of up to 15 minutes is allocated for the asking and answering of
guestions. This may be extended at the discretion of the Chairman with the
agreement of the majority of those present.

Each Member who is scheduled to ask a question, may ask up to one
supplementary question which must be based on the original question or the
answer provided to that question.

Motions on Notice (Pages 219 - 222)

A period of up to one hour is allocated to consider the motions on notice. This
may only be extended with the agreement of the Council.



17.

18.

19.

To consider any urgent business, details of which have been notified to
the Head of Legal, Democratic and Property Services prior to the
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of
special circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it
cannot wait until the next meeting.

To consider, and if considered appropriate, to pass the following
resolution to exclude the public from the meeting during the
consideration of item(s) of business containing exempt information:-

"RESOLVED: that under Section 100 | of the Local Government Act 1972, as
amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of
the following item(s) of business on the grounds that it/they involve(s) the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of Schedule 12A to
the Act, as amended, the relevant paragraph of that part, in each case, being
as set out below, and that it is in the public interest to do so:-

ltem No. Paragraph(s)

19 2,3&6

Finance and Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 2 2023/24 (Pages
223 - 230)

Sue Hanley
Acting Chief Executive
Parkside
Market Street
BROMSGROVE
Worcestershire
B61 8DA

28th November 2023



If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact
Jess Bayley-Hill and Jo Gresham

Parkside, Market Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA
Tel: (01527) 64252 Ext: 3072 / 3031
Email: jess.bayley-hill@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk /
joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

GUIDANCE ON FACE-TO-FACE
MEETINGS

Please note that this is a public meeting and will be live streamed for
general access via the Council’s YouTube channel.

You are able to see and hear the livestream of the meeting from the
Committee Pages of the website, alongside the agenda for the meeting.

Live Stream to Full Council Meeting - 6th December 2023

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers,
please do not hesitate to contact the officer named above.

GUIDANCE FOR ELECTED MEMBERS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
ATTENDING MEETINGS IN PERSON

Meeting attendees and members of the public are encouraged not to attend
the Council meeting if they have if they have common cold symptoms or any
of the following common symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a
high temperature, a new and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or
taste.

Notes:

Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when Council
might have to move into closed session to consider exempt or
confidential information. For agenda items that are exempt, the public
are excluded and for any such items the live stream will be suspended
and that part of the meeting will not be recorded.


mailto:jess.bayley-hill@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
mailto:joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
https://youtube.com/live/UBWuxaQWCdc?feature=share

Bromsgrove
District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC

Access to Information

The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain
documents. Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act.

» You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before
the date of the meeting.

» You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting.

» You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date
of the meeting. These are listed at the end of each report.

» An electronic register stating the names and addresses and
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of
all Committees etc. is available on our website.

» A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its
Committees/Boards.

» You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers
concerned, as detailed in the Council’'s Constitution, Scheme of
Delegation.

You can access the following documents:
» Meeting Agendas
» Meeting Minutes

> The Council’s Constitution

at www.bromsagrove.gov.uk



http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/

42\23

43\23

44\23

Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

BROMSGROVEDISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

25TH OCTOBER 2023, AT 6.00 P.M.

PRESENT: Councillors S. Ammar (Chairman), B. Kumar (Vice-Chairman),

A. Bailes, R. Bailes, S. J. Baxter, S. R. Colella, A. M. Dale,
J. Elledge, S. M. Evans, D. J. A. Forsythe, E. M. S. Gray,

C.A. Hotham, D. Hopkins, R. J. Hunter, H. J. Jones, R. Lambert,

M. Marshall, K.J. May, P. M. McDonald, B. McEldowney,
S. T. Nock, D. J. Nicholl, J. Robinson, S. A. Robinson,

H. D. N. Rone-Clarke, J. D. Stanley, K. Taylor, S. A. Webb and

P. J. Whittaker

Officers: Mrs S. Hanley, Mrs C. Felton, Mr P. Carpenter, Mr G.

Revans, Ms J. Bayley-Hill

TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor D.G. Stewart.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor H. Jones declared an other interest in agenda item no. 14,
minute number 54\23, Recommendations from Cabinet, Equal
Opportunities Annual Report, in relation to the Small Grants Scheme, as
she was a leader of a scout group which had been awarded a grant.

The following Councillors declared an other interest in agenda item 14iii,
minute number 54/23, Upgrading of Sewage Treatment Plants, as local
members:

Councillors K. May, S.T. Nock and P. Whittaker — Frankley Green
Councillors K. Taylor and S. Webb (as County Councillors) — Dodford
and Tutnall.

TO CONFIRM THE ACCURACY OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING

OF THE COUNCIL HELD ON 20TH SEPTEMBER 2023

The minutes from the Council meeting held on 20th September 2023
were submitted for Members’ consideration.

Page 7



45\23

46\23

Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 20" September
2023 be approved as a true and accurate record.

TO RECEIVE ANY ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND/OR
HEAD OF PAID SERVICE

The Chairman read the following statement:

Group leaders and myself, as Chairman, have come together to
express our deep sadness and horror at the ongoing events in the
Middle East. As advocates of democracy, we firmly believe in and
support the universal right of all people to live in safety, security,
and freedom.

We recognise the immense loss of life suffered by both
Palestinians and Israelis, who are just like us, ordinary civilians
caught in the midst of this conflict. It is heartbreaking to witness
the devastating impact these events have had on their lives,
forever altering their futures.

Both in our prayers and our thoughts we call for an immediate
end to the violence and urge all parties involved to engage in
peaceful dialogue and negotiations. It is only through
understanding, empathy, and a commitment to finding common
ground that a lasting solution can be achieved.

Let us stand together in solidarity, supporting the rights and
aspirations of all people around the world. May peace, justice,
and compassion prevail in this troubled region, and may the
innocent lives lost never be forgotten.

TO RECEIVE ANY ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE LEADER

The Leader welcomed Councillor S Baxter as Leader of the 2023
Independents Group and thanked her predecessor, Councillor C.
Hotham for his contribution.

The Leader referred to working arrangements and thanked members for
their participation in Cabinet Surgeries, which were a valuable
opportunity to understand local and wider community issues and brief on
forthcoming Council wide issues. She hoped that the introduction of the
Cabinet Advisory Groups would provide better opportunities to manage
issues of greatest concern to members.

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

The Leader updated members about the decision to provide financial
and practical help and support by the Council to the Artrix Holding Trust
following the closure of the venue. Currently the Holding Trust was
working with Solihull Council to provide them with temporary
accommodation and council staff were supporting this activity. The
Leader thanked those involved for their work in this regard. If members
had queries, the Leader suggested they direct them to the Artrix Holding
Trust in the first instance.

47\23 TO RECEIVE COMMENTS, QUESTIONS OR PETITIONS FROM
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

The Chairman welcomed Ms Clinton who asked the following question:

“Can the Bromsgrove Council please advise as to why their charges for
a High Hedge Complaint is £595.10 when neighbouring councils charge
significantly less?

It is recognised that the Bromsgrove Council do offer a reduced rate for
those that qualify on certain benefits.

Examples of the charges from other local Councils are as follows:
Coventry City Council - £190

Telford & Wrekin Council - £250

Redditch Council - £250

Birmingham City Council - £350.”

Councillor K. Taylor responded that officers were proactive in trying to
avoid people needing to make a formal complaint and this involved a lot
of work for which no charge was made. The charge only applied when a
formal complaint was made and there had been very few instances
where this had occurred.

The high hedge legislation provided a framework for charging and the
Council complied with this. However, he would ask Officers to review
the fees to ensure they reflected the service being provided and to report
to the Overview and Scrutiny Working group. In the meantime, he would
work with Ms. Clinton’s local member to try and resolve the specific
issue she had raised.

Page 9



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

48\23 URGENT DECISIONS

Members were advised that no urgent decisions had been taken since
the previous meeting of Council.

49\23 CHANGES TO COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Further to the agenda item, the Chairman reported that there would not
be any changes to the membership to the Licensing Committee.

50\23 OUTSIDE BODIES - APPOINTMENT

The Chairman reported that the Council had been advised that
Worcestershire County Council were in the process of reviewing the
rules for appointments further. Therefore, no decision would be taken in
respect of this matter at this meeting.

51\23 AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE ANNUAL
REPORT 2022-2023

The Chairman of the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee,
Councillor S. Colella, introduced the Committee’s Annual Report for
2022-23.

Councillor Colella referred to his tenure as Chairman of the Committee
between December 2022 - May 2023. During that time he had led a
Scrutiny Task Group into the Section 24 notice and the report for that
group formed part of the financial recovery plan.

Councillor D.J. Nicholl, the current Chairman of the Committee, drew
attention to reference in the report to the introduction of an Independent
Member to sit on Audit Committees. This had not yet been considered
in detail by the Committee.

In response to a question whether, in light of concerns about the
Council’'s accounts and subsequent Task Group review the committee
should meet more frequently, Councillor Nicholl reported that the
committee was fully engaged and all meetings this municipal year had
been quorate. This enabled a consistent review of all matters and in his
view at the moment it was not necessary to introduce extra meetings.

RESOLVED that the Annual Report of the Audit, Standards and
Governance Committee for 2022-23 be noted.

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

52\23 RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE CONSTITUTION REVIEW WORKING
GROUP

Councillor C. Hotham presented the report of the Constitution
Review Working Group, which covered 5 areas: Planning reform,
Audit, Standards and Governance Committee; Policy Framework;
Councillor non-attendance and Questions on Notice.

Councillor Hotham suggested that since the recommendation
relating to the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee
about reducing the quorum for its meeting was compiled in the
previous Municipal year, Council might seek the advice of the
current Chairman of the Committee as to whether the proposed
change to the quorum was necessary. Councillor Nichol agreed
that the quorum should remain at 5, and it was agreed by the
proposer and seconder that the recommendation to change it
would be withdrawn.

During discussion of this item, Councillors thanked officers from
the Planning and Democratic Services teams for their hard work
in supporting the Planning Committee generally and during the
external review carried out by the Planning Advisory Service
(PAS).

RESOLVED that;
1) Meetings of the Planning Committee should be live streamed;

2) White nameplates should be used at meetings of the Planning
Committee for Councillors;

3) The Chairman should introduce all the officers present at the
start of Planning Committee meetings;

4) A review should be carried out of the content of officer reports
to ensure that they are proportionate to the size and
complexity of the proposal being determined;

5) Members of the Planning Committee should continue to be
offered the choice to either access agenda packs for meetings

electronically or in paper form;

6) A greater number of spare copies of the supplementary packs
containing the update reports should be made available for the

Page 11



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

consideration of the public at meetings of the Planning
Committee, with clarification provided to the public that copies
will be made available on a first come first served basis to
residents attending meetings in person;

7) Where possible, members of the Planning Committee should
provide Officers with prior notice of any technical questions
relating to applications on the agenda;

8) Refresher training should be provided on the roles and
responsibilities of Planning Committee members;

9) Appeal decisions and planning application performance
should be reported to and discussed by the Planning
Committee;

10)the Code of Practice — Planning Services, at Part 25 of the
Constitution, be amended to require all Members to leave the
room when they have spoken as a Ward Councillor on a
Planning Matter, draft wording of the amendments proposed
was contained within Appendix 1. These amendments should
be incorporated into the Constitution for ratification at Full
Council;

11)the content of the Policy Framework be updated as detailed in
Appendix 5 to the report;

12)the Chief Executive be delegated authority, as Proper Officer,
to declare the office of Councillor vacant immediately after a
person has ceased to be a Councillor where they have not
attended a Council or Committee meeting for six months or
more; and

13)the Council should undertake a trial allowing Members to ask
supplementary questions at Council meetings during
consideration of Questions on Notice.

53\23 TO RECEIVE AND CONSIDER A REPORT FROM THE PORTFOLIO
HOLDER FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES AND COMMUNITY
SAFETY

Council considered a report by the Portfolio Holder for Environmental
Services and Community Safety, which outlined services and activities
within the remit of the Portfolio Holder. Information was included in

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

relation to the Council’s Strategic Purposes, relevant key activities,
partnership working, projects and programmes and news stories.

In presenting his report, Councillor P. Whittaker highlighted the
commitment and hard work of the relevant officers and the community
safety team’s work with diverse agencies. He also referred to residents’
satisfaction with the alternate residual waste and recycling collections
which were likely to change under the Environment Act 2021. This
introduced a requirement for councils across the country to introduce a
weekly waste food collection. Working with county council colleagues
the possibility of a county wide system of collection and disposal would
have synergy in terms of cost savings. Details from DEFRA had been
published within the last week and ‘simpler recycling’ was the main
message. However, no details had been given about how the additional
costs in introducing this would be met.

During this item the following items were raised:

e The Leader clarified that Councillor Colella was the portfolio
holder for climate change.

e The view was expressed that climate change should have been
given greater prominence in the report.

e A member asked how many recommendations of the Flooding
Task Group had been taken forward. The portfolio holder
undertook to communicate this to Councillor Robinson outside the
meeting.

e A member asked for details of how many hate incidents had been
reported in Bromsgrove and it was agreed that these details
would be circulated to all councillors.

e How continuing to operate old refuse vehicles was better than
procuring new, potentially more efficient vehicles. The portfolio
holder responded that refurbishment enabled a vehicle to stay on
the road rather than procure new and extended its life for 6 years.
The continuation of the programme of refurbishment would be
reviewed on a regular basis. Arising from this item, the Chairman
asked that the Interim Director undertake a presentation to all
members about the fleet.

e It was suggested that performance statistics relating to fly tipping
should be included in the report; the portfolio holder undertook to
circulate these. A member suggested that having comparisons
with similar councils might give the data meaningful context.

e How diversionary youth work would occur across the District as
some wards did not have specific youth clubs or provision. The
portfolio holder suggested that it was open to local members to

Page 13



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

approach relevant officers about developing outreach in their
areas.

e |t was suggested that the approach to blue badge parking across
the District was inconsistent. The portfolio holder responded that
car parking charges would be subject to a review.

54\23 RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE CABINET

The Chairman advised that there was one recommendation from the
meeting of the Cabinet held on 13" September 2023 and seven
recommendations from the meeting on 18" October, which were
presented for the Council’s consideration.

Equality Annual Report 2022

The Portfolio holder presented the Equalities Annual report 2022 and
highlighted a number of areas of work which had been carried out.
Covid 19 had impacted the work on Equalities, but several community
events and activities had been delivered, some for the first time since
the pandemic. The Equalities small grants scheme had also awarded
grants to 10 community organisations.

During consideration of the report, the following areas were discussed:

e Using the demographic profile of the District from the 2021
census data to analyse whether this was reflected in the Council’s
workforce and service users. The portfolio holder agreed that this
would be worked on.

e The report didn’t appear to indicate staff progression. Emphasis
would be placed on staff having a progression path through the
organisation consistently.

e How many young people attended holiday activities and had
received meals from the food programme referred to in the report.
The portfolio holder undertook to share this information with
councillors outside the meeting.

e Asset based community development — attempts to develop
committed were welcome but should be grounded in local
knowledge, which local councillors should be involved in. A
councillor reported that residents had to be referred to some
services via a church which was not inclusive. The portfolio
holder responded that he would check what was happening in this
regard.

e Members expressed concerns that where wards abutted adjacent
local authorities, residents attempted to get resources from New

Page 14



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

Starts in South Birmingham. The funding was intended for
Worcestershire councils so the community development team
should consult people embedded in the community, such as local
councillors, about how the money should be applied. Councillor
S. Webb reported that the community builders worked for WCC
Public Health, and the initiative was still being developed. The
Leader highlighted addressing disparities in public health —
preventative action was shown to improve health outcomes. The
Council was the first District to introduce the community builder
initiative, it would develop and it was intended to launch one stop
shops where a number of services could be hosted and offered.

e In response to a query about the availability and take-up of
community transport, Cllr. Webb responded that there was one
BERT bus in the District and she would obtain details of the data
for Councillor Bailes outside the meeting.

e ClIr Robinson thanked the Council for the support being offered to
the vulnerable in the District, and asked whether there was
resistance to this support in the community. Cllir Webb responded
that this had been picked up as a potential barrier and efforts
were being made to address this.

The recommendation was proposed by Councillor C. Hotham and
seconded by Councillor K. May.

RESOLVED that the Equality Annual Report 2022 be endorsed.
Finance and Performance Quarter 1 Monitoring 2023/24

The Chairman reported that one of the recommendations that was
originally included in the report, recommendation 7, was withdrawn at
the Cabinet meeting on 18" October and was therefore not due to be
debated at this meeting.

In proposing the recommendations, the Portfolio holder reminded the
Council that the provisional financial outturn 2022-2023 was a deficit of
£956k. £341k of reserves were also being used in the base budget,
which left a deficit overall of nearly £1.4m. However, reserves at March
2023 were £5.8m.

There was a headline predicted overspend of £437k, and it was planned
to use £250k of reserves. Previously the Council had set up a reserve
for potential significant increases in utility costs. This had not come to
fruition in way that was predicted. It was therefore suggested that as the

Page 15



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

Council had not had to use it, the funds could offset some of deficit by
moving into general balances and reduce the overall deficit.

During consideration of this item the following issues were discussed:

e The robustness of original financial estimates was queried, as
items such as forecast employee variances could impact on the
financial decisions made by the Council. It was noted that the
utilities reserve was arrived at during a time of extreme volatility
and advice had been taken at the time about what would be a
prudent reserve.

e What would happen to savings achieved by not filling vacancies.

e How arrangements were made to keep a fund for replacement of
the council’s fleet. The Chairman reminded members that the
senior officer would be making a presentation to all members
about the fleet. It was noted that there had been a reserve for
fleet replacement but this had not been applied yet until the
Council was certain of the kind of vehicles were required in future.
The Cabinet Member agreed that all vacancies should be
reflected accurately in the accounts.

RESOLVED that

1) £351k is allocated from the Utilities Reserve to part mitigate the
overspend position in 2023/4;

2) Changes to the Capital Programme as set out in para 3.13 of the
report with an ongoing revenue cost of £40k, £17k fleet replacement,
£13k Wheely Bins and £10k wild flowers equipment be approved:
and

3) the £11.0k increase to the Engineering Services base budget in
2023/4 from reserves be approved and this change is included in the
2024/25 Medium Term Financial Plan.

Upgrading of Sewage Treatment Plants and introduction of Service
Charging to contributing properties - 1) Frankley Green Lane,
Frankley Green, 2) Fockbury Road, Dodford 3) Dusthouse Lane,
Tutnall

Council considered the recommendations to upgrade sewage treatment

plants in order for them to meet Environment Agency standards. During
debate the following issues were discussed:

Page 16



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

¢ A member sought clarification about the Council’s responsibilities
for meeting these costs and whether they should be met by
Severn Trent and/or Bromsgrove and District Housing Trust
(BDHT). It was noted that when the Council undertook large scale
transfer of its housing stock to the Housing Association there
were some historic arrangements for sewage, depending on
whether individuals had purchased their properties or were
tenants of the Council at that time. The costs of the upgrade
would be split between the Council and BDHT accordingly. The
sewage treatment plants were treated as private assets rather
than public.

e A member queried what level of revenue was predicted following
the introduction of annual service charges. Whilst a total could
not be provided, it was noted that it was proposed that the charge
would be similar to that which Severn Trent would charge for
sewage disposal. It was likely that once the upgrade was
complete that BDHT would approach Severn Trent again about it
taking on the service.

Council was reminded that it had a duty to make sure residents had
adequate sewage disposal from their properties and that was the
fundamental reason for undertaking the work.

RESOLVED that:

1) A budget of £72k be added to the 2023/2024 Capital Programme, for
the agreed contribution for upgrading of the 1) Frankley Green
Sewage Treatment Plant, to be funded from borrowing or balances
following consideration as part of the medium-term financial plan
review;

2) A budget of £69k be added to the 2024/2025 Capital Programme, for
the agreed contribution for upgrading of the 2) Dodford Sewage
Treatment Plant, to be funded from borrowing or balances following
consideration as part of the medium-term financial plan review;

3) A budget of £57k be added to the 2025/2026 Capital Programme, for
the agreed contribution for upgrading of the 3) Tutnall Sewage
Treatment Plant, to be funded from borrowing or balances following
consideration as part of the medium-term financial plan review;

4) An annual service charge be introduced, subject to agreement with

Bromsgrove and District Housing Trust (BDHT), for all contributing
properties to the three Sewage Treatment Plants from 1st April 2024,

Page 17



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

equivalent to the annual sum payable to Severn Trent Water Ltd for
sewage treatment, if the property was connected to the public foul
water sewerage system.

55\23 TO NOTE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF THE CABINET HELD
ON 13TH SEPTEMBER AND 18TH OCTOBER 2023

The minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 13" September and
18™" October 2023 were noted.

56\23 QUESTIONS ON NOTICE

The Chairman advised that four Questions on Notice had been received
for this meeting.

Question Submitted by Councillor Rone-Clark:

“In April 2021, in response to a petition with 5000 signatures and a
motion submitted by then Clir Mallett, calling for an urgent feasibility
study R.E. a potential Western Relief Road, then portfolio holder for
planning Clir Kent told this council he had commissioned a Strategic
Transport Assessment (STA) to be released to the public by 'the end of
the summer (2022)'".

In September 2022, 17 months after the STA was first promised, | made
an FOI request in response to the lack of communication on this from
BDC...it returned nothing of substance, not even a draft overview of
findings...

At a subsequent meeting in late 2022, | asked Clir Thomas, my
2"d planning portfolio holder , to comment on the status of the STA...he
informed me that the STA didn't really exist and was merely a small
extension of the local plan; despite the fact that in March 2021,
Bromsgrove District Council went out to tender for a contractor to carry
out a strategic transport assessment, advertising this on their website
and social media!

Then, on April 9" 2023, two years after this issue was first raised in this
chamber, The Bromsgrove Conservatives tweeted 'pledge #4 for
Bromsgrove: we have commissioned a strategic transport assessment
for the district...'

My question, put simply: what on earth is going on?”

The Cabinet Member for Planning, Licensing and WRS responded that
the Strategic Transport assessment would be a suite of reports and

Page 18



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

assessments which primarily shaped and then supported the policies
that would be contained in a new local plan for Bromsgrove District. It
would be published alongside all the other elements of the evidence
base when the plan was next ready for consultation. As explained at
recent Strategic Planning Steering Group (SPSG) meetings, the
planning system was subject to significant reforms now which made plan
making a difficult process. Officers had continued to progress the local
plan as far as possible whilst these ongoing reforms were being
considered. This had included working with Worcestershire County
Council on developing tools to assess the likely impacts of new
development across Bromsgrove District, and then predict the
infrastructure improvements that would be required as a result. As
explained at the SPSG meeting on the 5" October, WCC officers had
been asked to present the STA tools they had developed to BDC
members, this would be taking place at the SPSG meeting on the 16"
November, to which all members were invited.

Cllr Rone Clark asked a supplementary question about how much STA
modelling Councillor Taylor had inherited when he took up the portfolio.
Councillor Taylor responded that there had been robust conversations
with Worcestershire County Council about the lack of progress. He
reiterated that County Council representatives had been invited to the
meeting on 16" November.

Question Submitted by Councillor D Nicholls:

“To ask the Leader, following information from the Royal British Legion,
why are benefits assessments for veterans in Bromsgrove being means-
tested more harshly compared to other Councils?

In councils such as Walsall Metropolitan Council, Cannock Chase DC or
Warwick DC, there is no means testing of veterans over a range of
benefits (i.e. Council Tax Support, Housing Benefit, Discretionary
Housing Payment and Disabled Facilities Grants), whereas in
Bromsgrove, Discretionary Housing Payments in both the Armed Forces
Compensation Scheme and the War Pension Scheme are means tested
for armed forces veterans.

As we head towards Remembrance Sunday, do not those who have
been in service of the defence of our country and Bromsgrove deserve

to be fairly treated compared to military veterans in other areas?

| agree with the Royal British Legion that this is fundamentally unfair to
the veterans of Bromsgrove.”

Page 19



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing and Strategic Housing
responded that as with many local authorities, Bromsgrove District
Council did not have prescribed rules for awarding Discretionary
Housing Payments, and each application was looked at in its own merit.
The Council looked at each individual’s needs, housing requirements,
income, expenditure, medical requirements to name but a few. The
Financial Independence Team processed the applications and also
looked at benefit maximisation, budgeting advice and signposting to
partners where appropriate.

Several incomes were disregarded for Housing Benefits/Council Tax
Support, and where these incomes were in payment it typically saw a full
award of eligible Housing Benefit/Council Tax Support. Obviously, other
factors could cause a shortfall in Housing Benefit, mainly LHA rates,
benefit caps and under occupancy charges — with the latter 2 only
applying to working age claimants.

Discretionary Housing Payments were intended to be a short-term
solution to help residents whilst long term solutions could be investigated
and supported.

In addition to this, in the Council's Housing Policy the Council
recognised the contribution that armed forces personnel had made, with
members of the UK armed forces stationed abroad being considered as
living in the United Kingdom for the purposes of applying for social
housing. The Council also considered high medical need or disability in
the allocation of accommodation.

The Cabinet Member invited any Councillors who had queries to get in
touch.

Councillor Nicolls asked a supplementary question about the voracity of
data about Bromsgrove’s approach, which had been provided via a
Freedom of Information request. The Cabinet member undertook to
answer Councillor Nicholls outside the meeting.

Question submitted by Councillor R. Hunter

‘I am continuing to find it very difficult to get firm commitments from this
Council about repairing broken bus shelters. Please could you confirm
that residents can expect broken bus shelters to be repaired or replaced
and the timescale within which they can expect this work to be
completed?”

Page 20



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

The Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and Community Safety
replied that the minor works team in the Engineering and Design Team
undertook repairs to Bus Shelters, however where a new Shelter was
required these were procured individually which caused delays, although
the system of procurement was undergoing a review. The Council was
currently finalising tender documents which would see a contract
awarded and started in January 2024. This would mean that shelters
that the Council was responsible for, would be replaced within a 6-week
period going forward.

The Stourbridge Road shelter was to be removed this Friday and the
Cabinet Member was awaiting feedback on when the replacement would
be installed.

Also as context the Minor Works team was currently supporting the
works that were being undertaken at the Artrix which had impacted in
the short term on turnaround times for repairs to bus shelters.

Councillor Hunter asked a supplementary question about whether the
Cabinet Member would give an assurance that every bus shelter
reported as damaged would be replaced.

The Cabinet Member replied that he could not commit to the request
because finances were limited, and the budget was set. Subject to this
he was prepared to commit that some bus shelters would be repair or
replaced as set out in his answer to the original question.

Question Submitted by Councillor J. Robinson

| understand the Council is working on a solution where a forward look of
intended road sweeping rounds can be published, although there will be
no guarantee as to exact dates due to the responsive nature of the
service. Do you have a timescale for when this is likely to go live, please
and could you confirm if the council is also intending to publish
backdated information of roads that have already been swept?

The Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and Community Safety
responded that the sweeper service had been significantly disrupted
over a number of months due to availability of drivers as there had been
long term sickness together with the need to recruit into the vacancy. At
the start of October 2023, the Council had been able to operate with 3
drivers for the first time for a while. Officers had therefore been working
in a reactive manner based on issues that had been raised in order to

Page 21



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

return areas to the required standard and they were now targeting
known flooding areas and road networks outside of the settlements to
improve the overall appearance of the roads. It was envisaged that they
would soon return to planned routes for regular sweeping to maintain
standards that had lapsed. Responsibility had recently moved to the
Place team for this service and routes were being reviewed and it was
anticipated that these would be published at the beginning of
December.

Councillor Robinson asked a supplementary question that if councillors
brought forward roads in their wards for sweeping, whether the Council
would respond to these requests?

The Cabinet Member responded that he had passed on an e-mail
Councillor Robinson had sent him to the relevant team at the Depot. He
referred to some practical issues which could prevent prompt action
(such as cars parked on residential roads). However, he referred to the
previous answer relating to the publication of routes in December and
advised that councillors pass on requests to the Place team with
responsibility for co-ordination in their wards. They could also raise any
specific issues with him as Cabinet Member.

57\23 MOTIONS ON NOTICE

The Chairman reported that 7 Motions on Notice had been submitted for
this meeting. In advance of the meeting, the proposer of the last Motion,
Councillor Hunter, had discussed his Motion with the Leader, and had
agreed to withdraw it, on the basis that work was already ongoing and it
had been agreed it would be prioritised going forwards.

Candy and Vape Stores

Council considered the following Motion on Notice submitted by
Councillor E. Gray:

This Council calls upon the Bromsgrove MP to lobby Government to call
a halt to American-style candy and vape stores opening up on high
streets. These entice young people to take up dangerous habits which
cause significant risk to young people/children’s health and well-being.

Councillor P. McDonald seconded the motion. He referred to the

emergence of shops selling sweets and e-cigarettes on local high streets
and promoting their wares to children of all ages. The lack of legislation

Page 22



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

about advertising vapes and powers of enforcement meant that local
regulatory services had not been able to take action.

Councillor J. Robinson proposed an amendment as follows:

To remove the wording ‘call a halt to American style candy and vape
stores opening up on high streets’ and replace with ‘limit the sale of
disposable vapes’'.

At the end of the Motion to add ‘Furthermore this Council agrees with the
cross party LGA view that disposable vapes should be banned and the
Leader of the Council agrees to write to Worcestershire County Council
to ensure the Trading Standards Team that polices activity has a full
complement of officers in place in Bromsgrove to ensure that we crack
down on any illegal sales of vapes in our District’.

The Council was adjourned between 8.43 and 8.48pm whilst the
Chairman sought procedural advice and subsequently advised that the
Motion on Notice was very specific and as such the amendment was not
accepted.

During debate on the Motion on Notice the following points were raised:

e That the motion related to the risks associated with the sale of
disposable vapes and sweets. Some shops such as
supermarkets sold vapes and sweets. 5 million vapes were sold
each week across the country. Whilst members agreed there
was an impact on children from their availability and sale and
understood the sentiment behind the Motion, some considered
that it was impractical.

e The motion addressed a specific issue in a councillor's ward and
also concerned other wards and sought to support members in
their ward role.

e The action proposed by the motion did not address the issue
sufficiently and approaching the MP was not likely to have an
impact in practical terms.

e The limitations of the planning system in addressing the concerns
raised in the Motion. There was no route in the planning regime
to prevent vapes being sold in shops.

e The Government was currently consulting on changes to the
controls on vapes as part of its policy to create a smoke free
generation. The Council could consider the issue of vaping in a
Cabinet Working Group as a vehicle to agreeing a response to
the Government consultation.

Page 23



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

e The Motion sought to prevent young people trying vapes; this was
an objective of PHSE classes in schools which focused on
building resilience so that children did not try vapes or cigarettes.
Councillors could encourage the delivery of these sessions in
schools in their wards.

e The Motion was seeking a statement by the Council to Parliament
about concerns of the impact of the specific shops on the health
and wellbeing of children and young people.

e The Motion did not address the root cause of the issue and risked
undermining legitimate businesses and livelihoods.

At the conclusion of the debate the proposer and seconder withdrew the
motion on the basis that the Leader of the Council offered to establish a
Cabinet Working Group to submit a response to the Government
consultation on changes to the controls on vapes as part of its policy to
create a smoke free generation. Any Councillor with an interest in this
topic would be able to participate in the work of the Working Group.

Funds to Develop Parks and Recreation Grounds

Council considered a Motion on Notice submitted by Councillor J.
Elledge:

"We call upon officers to immediately meet with all members of the
council who want council staff to submit bids for funds to develop
Bromsgrove's parks and recreation grounds”.

The Motion was seconded by Councillor D. Hopkins.

Councillor R.J. Hunter proposed an amendment to insert after ‘We call
upon officers’ the words ‘to conclude the existing play audit as soon as
possible and then’.

Councillor Hunter explained he was keen to see investment in parks and
recreation facilities. However, he understood that a play audit was
being undertaken on behalf of the Council by independent experts in
order to prioritise work and future investment. Whilst he agreed with the
thrust of the motion, he considered that the result of the independent
review should be obtained as evidence and a context for consideration
of bids for funding.

On the basis that officers had advised that the play audit should be

concluded within the next two months, Councillor J. Elledge accepted
the amendment.

Page 24



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

During consideration of the motion, the following points were made:

e a councillor sought clarification whether the funding being sought
would be internal to the Council or from external sources. The
Council was not able to bid for sources of funding such as the
Lottery, but community groups could do so. The Council should
consider how it wished to proceed once the outcome of the play
audit was known.

e A Councillor suggested that the Council would be able to put in
bids for certain external funds.

e The Cabinet member responded that a report on the outcome of
the play audit would be presented to councillors in the new year,
at which point members could consider the order of spend for
new and/or improved play equipment.

e The Cabinet member would hold a portfolio drop-in session for
members about the outcome of the audit and there would be
informal briefings for all members about the audit before
Christmas.

e The emerging Medium Term Financial Plan 2024/25 — 2026/27
tranche 1 report would be presented by the s151 officer on 22
November and would include bids for capital funding for
improving play areas. Some of these would be specific and
others would seek authority to set money aside for play areas, so
they could be allocated once the audit was complete and priorities
known.

RESOLVED that

We call upon officers to conclude the existing play audit as soon as
possible and then immediately meet with all members of the council who
want council staff to submit bids for funds to develop Bromsgrove's
parks and recreation grounds.

144 Bus Service

Council considered a Motion on Notice proposed by Councillor D.
Hopkins:

“The Council calls upon the Leader of the Council to lobby the County
Council to ensure that the full route previously covered by the 144 bus is
restored as whilst the 20 bus route has been in place for some time it is
currently failing to meet the needs of residents”.

Page 25



Agenda Iltem 3

Council
25th October 2023

In proposing the motion Councillor Hopkins referred to residents who
worked in Birmingham who faced more complicated and expensive
journeys to work as the service no longer went into the city. The
alternative of using a train was not always straightforward.

The motion was seconded by Councillor E.M.S. Gray.

Councillor K. May proposed an amendment, to insert the words
‘continue to’ after ‘The Council calls upon the Leader to...’. She
explained that the Council had been lobbying on this issue for some
time. The amendment was accepted by the proposer.

RESOLVED that

The Council calls upon the Leader of the Council to continue to lobby the
County Council to ensure that the full route previously covered by the
144 bus is restored as whilst the 20 bus route has been in place for
some time it is currently failing to meet the needs of residents.

As the Council was close to reaching the one hour time limit for
consideration of Motions on Notice, it was agreed that the Motion on
Notice about Fairer Funding for Canals would be deferred for
consideration at the next meeting of the Council.

The meeting closed at 9.39 p.m.

Chairman

Page 26



1.

Agenda Iltem 6

Bromsgrove District Council — 6™ December 2023
Public Questions

From Mr M. Jinks
Question for the Chairman:

“Having worked closely with 45+ High Street businesses, we have been asked
to propose the following question. Can you please consider the option of
reviewing the pricing structure on all council car parks around Bromsgrove High
Street to enable an offering of 1 hours’ free parking to be created. We feel that
this will have a huge beneficial effect on the flow of business to the High Street
and may lead to more businesses choosing to come to Bromsgrove in the
future. We would propose that the shortfall created by this scheme be met by
increasing the 1+ hour pricing charges.”

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December
2023

STATUTORY OFFICER POSTS - APPOINTMENTS

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Charlie Hotham Portfolio
Holder for Finance and Enabling

Portfolio Holder Consulted

Relevant Head of Service Claire Felton

Report Authors Job Title: Head of Legal, Democratic and
Claire Felton & Becky | Property Services

Talbot Contact email:

c.felton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel: (01527) 64252

Job Title: Human Resources and Organisational
Development Manager email:
becky.talbotbromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel: (01527) 64252

Wards Affected NA
Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A
Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) An effective and sustainable Council

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Council RESOLVE that

1.1  Mrs Susan Hanley continue to be appointed as the Interim Head of
Paid Service for Bromsgrove District Council until 30" November
2024, or, if the date is later, until such time as a new permanent
Head of Paid Service has commenced employment with the
Council.

1.2  Following Mrs Hanley’s resignation from her substantive position
as Deputy Chief Executive, Mr Peter Carpenter be appointed as
Interim Deputy Chief Executive and Interim Executive Director of
Resources (Section 151 Officer) on a fixed term basis until 30t
November 2024.

1.3  Subject thereto, Mr Peter Carpenter to be made available under the

shared services arrangements with Redditch Borough Council to
perform such duties as are required in his capacity as Interim

Page 29


mailto:c.felton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
mailto:c.felton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 8

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December
2023

Deputy Chief Executive and Interim Executive Director Resources
(Section 151 Officer) for Redditch Borough Council.

1.4  Mrs Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Democratic and Property

Services, to be appointed as the Returning Officer and Electoral
Registration Officer for Bromsgrove District Council.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1  This report details proposals in respect of the fixed term appointment of
Mrs Susan Hanley to enable her to continue in post as the Council’s
Interim Head of Paid Service. In addition, the appointment of Mr Peter
Carpenter to the post of Interim Section 151 Officer and Deputy Chief
Executive together with the appointment of Mrs Claire Felton as
Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer for Bromsgrove
District Council.

3. OPERATIONAL ISSUES

3.1 Following the announcement that the former Chief Executive, Mr Kevin
Dicks would be retiring in September 2023, a report was considered by
Bromsgrove District Council as the employing authority under the
Shared Services Arrangements. As recommended, Members agreed at
their meeting on 19" July 2023 that on the retirement of Mr Dicks, Mrs
Susan Hanley be appointed as the Council’'s Head of Paid Service,
Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer. This was to be on
an interim basis until such time as a new Chief Executive and Head of
Paid Service could be recruited and appointed.

3.2 Whilst a recruitment exercise was undertaken for both the posts of Chief
Executive and Section 151 officer, the Council was unable to recruit on
this occasion. The present position therefore is that following Mr Dicks’s
official retirement in September 2023, Mrs Hanley is acting as Interim
Chief Executive, Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer for
both Bromsgrove District Council and Redditch Borough.

3.3 Interms of moving forward, the following issues now need to be
addressed: -

a. Arranging for a further recruitment process for the two senior officer
posts to take place; Members will appreciate that appointing to senior
roles requires a comprehensive recruitment and selection process which
inevitably will take time to set up and implement.

Page 30



Agenda Iltem 8

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December
2023

b. Taking steps to ensure the stability and continuity of the existing senior
management team until such time as permanent recruitment can be
implemented. Given the length of time that implementing step a. may
take, officers are mindful of the need for any interim arrangements to
come with assurances and certainty as to timescales.

c. Re-allocation of the role of Returning Officer and Electoral Registration
Officer for Bromsgrove District Council being the roles which were
previously performed by the former Chief Executive Mr Dicks.

Head of Paid Service/Chief Executive post

3.4  The council is required by the provisions of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989 to appoint an officer as the councils Head of Paid
Service. Members will be aware that under the current shared services
arrangements Mrs Hanley is employed by Redditch Borough Council
and “made available” to carry out her role across both authorities under
the shared services arrangements. Details of the shared services
arrangements, which have been in operation between the two councils
since March 2011 are included in the background papers.

3.5 Mrs Hanley has expressed a wish to retire on the appointment of the
permanent Chief Executive, and therefore not return to her substantive
role as Deputy Chief Executive. As such, Mrs Hanley has expressed her
intention to resign from her substantive post as Deputy Chief Executive.
This will enable both Councils to consider options regarding the Senior
Management structure including that of the substantive role of Mrs
Hanley ahead of her retirement.

3.6 Itis proposed that on receiving Mrs Hanley’s notice Mrs Hanley would
be appointed as Interim Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service on a
Fixed Term contract until 30" November 2024. All other terms and
conditions would remain unaffected, and as part of the arrangements
Mrs Hanley would formally agree to forfeit her right to return to a
substantive permanent role of Deputy Chief Executive. That said Mrs
Hanley has also indicated that should more time be needed from
December 2024 onwards to finalise a new appointee to the post of Chief
Executive, she would be willing to extend the fixed term contract to
accommodate a transition period.

Section151 officer

3.7 Members will be aware that under the current shared services

Page 31



Agenda Iltem 8

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December
2023

arrangements, the post of Director of Finance has historically been held
by an officer employed by Bromsgrove District Council, with that person
being “made available” to Redditch Borough Council.

3.8  Members will recall that in June 2022, a report was considered by full
council recommending the appointment of Mr Peter Carpenter as
Interim Section 151 Officer. In June 2023, Council agreed to extend the
arrangements for the Interim Chief Finance Officer/Section 151 Officer
until 22" December 2023. The current arrangement is set up a
placement via West Midlands Employers and Mr Carpenter is paid on a
daily rate.

3.9  Whilst the recruitment process of the permanent Section 151 is now
delayed, the Council remains subject to the legal requirement to have a
Section 151 officer in place when the current arrangement with Mr
Carpenter (via West Midlands Employers) ceases on the 22" December
2023.

310 As Members will be aware, following the Interim Annual Audit Report
2020/21, both Councils were issued with Section 24 notices in the
autumn of 2022. In response to this a detailed Finance Recovery Plan
has been put in place for which Mr Peter Carpenter has taken on a key
leading role. He is currently overseeing progress on a number of
business critical workstreams and the Council has benefitted from
having an experienced and knowledgeable Section 151 officer in post at
this time.

3.11 Members are advised that key aspects that Mr Carpenter is currently
working on include: -

Supervising delivery of closure of the accounts;

Working closely with the Council’s internal finance team;
Liaising with the Council’s external auditors; and

Delivery of the projects linked to the Levelling Up Fund work in
Bromsgrove and the Town Deal in Redditch.

3.12 To ensure a period of stability at the senior level, it is proposed that Mr
Carpenter be appointed as Interim Deputy Chief Executive to the post
made vacant by the resignation of Mrs Hanley, and to the post of Interim
Executive Director of Resources. This second role would encompass
his current role of Section 151 Officer and line managing the Head of
Finance and Customer Service and Head of Lega, Democratic and
Property Services. In addition, the duties would include managing the
departments currently managed by the Head of Transformation,
Organisational Development and Digital Services, who is currently on a
long term absence.

Page 32



Agenda Iltem 8

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December
2023

3.13 This new expanded role would be secured by way of a direct contract of
employment between Mr Carpenter the Council on a Fixed Term until
30" November 2024. As previously Mr Carpenter would be “made
available” to Redditch Borough Council under the shared service
arrangements. Mr Carpenter would also continue to act as Section 151
Officer for Redditch Borough Council.

3.14 Members are advised that Ms Michelle Howell, Head of Finance and
Customer Services and Deputy Section 151 Officer, has tendered her
resignation for personal reasons, and will be leaving the Council and
local government in December 2023. Arrangements have been put in
place via an agency for an interim Head of Finance and customer
Services and Deputy Section 151 officer to be engaged. This will provide
cover and continuity for the team until such time as a permanent
replacement can be recruited.

3.15 In conclusion, officers believe that it is imperative that the Council seek
to enable continuity in the finance team. It is also important that any
incoming permanent Head of Financial Services and Customer Services
(alongside the newly strengthened Finance Team) has sufficient
coaching, support and leadership over the coming period.

3.16 For the reasons detailed above the Council is being asked to consider
appointing Mr Carpenter as Interim Deputy Chief Executive and Interim
Director of Resources (including Section 151 Officer) on a fixed term
contract. Officers believe that this appointment would strongly mitigate
against the risks of loss of knowledge and experience of delivering the
statutory section 151 functions were Mr Carpenters current employment
arrangements via West Midlands Employers to come to an end. A
further risk factor to consider in this regard is that the Deputy Section
151 officer post is also subject to change at the current time with the
departure of Ms Howell as set out in paragraph 3.13. The appointment
of Peter Carpenter would provide the continuity that is required for
specific projects. It would also ensure the Council’s compliance with its
obligations around the Section 151 function during a period of change
and allow for continued t support to be given to members of the finance
team in the short term to medium term.

Returning Officer and Electoral Reqistration Officer for Bromsqgrove

3.17 Members will recall that under the previous management structure the
statutory posts in relation to the administration of the elections were held
by Mr Dicks for Bromsgrove and by Mrs Hanley for Redditch. Given that

Page 33



Agenda Iltem 8

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December
2023

a new Chief Executive has not been recruited, consideration needs to
be given to re-appointing to the Bromsgrove statutory election posts.

3.18 As in practice the elections have to be covered simultaneously at both
Councils, these duties have always been shared by two officers. The
proposal therefore is that Mrs Hanley will continue to cover these roles
for Redditch, and that Mrs Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Democratic and
Property Services, be appointed as the Returning Officer and Electoral
Registration Officer for Bromsgrove. Mrs Felton already acts as Deputy
Returning Officer for Bromsgrove.

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no financial implications for the appointment/continuation of
Mrs Hanley as Chief Executive. The salary, excluding on costs, for the
Chief Executive is £142,663 - £148,485, and the changes outlined in this
report will not create any additional expenditure for this employee. These
costs are covered 50:50 between Redditch Borough Council and
Bromsgrove District Council under shared service arrangements.

4.2  The salary for the Deputy Chief Executive role is currently £114,444 -
£118,842, excluding on costs. The market for interim roles does attract
a higher market rate and therefore a supplement of £21,158 is proposed
to retain and appoint Mr Carpenter, with an overall salary of £140,000.
By re-defining this post to cover expanded duties and switching to a fixed
term salaried approach, officers believe that better value can be
achieved for the organisation. Again, these costs would be covered
50:50 between Redditch Borough and Bromsgrove District Councils.

4.3  Appointing on a £140,000 salary for full year would result in employers
costs of £158,060. It should be noted that the employee has indicated
that they would not wish to be part of the pension scheme which would
incur an additional cost of £27,440.

4.4  The current Deputy Chief Executive 2023/24 budget provision totals
£154,260 which includes budget provision for employers pension costs.
When comparing the estimated annual costs of £158,060 to the budget
provision this would result in a minor overspend which could be
accommodated within existing budgets.

4.6 There are no financial implications in relation to the appointment of Mrs

Felton to the statutory posts of Returning Officer and Electoral
Registration Officer.

Page 34



Agenda Iltem 8

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December
2023

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 ltis alegal requirement that the appointment of the Head of Paid Service
and “statutory officers” is made by full Council. This is set out in the
relevant regulations (The Local Authorities (Standing Orders)
Regulations 2001(as amended) Schedule | Part Il) which are reproduced
in the Officer Employment Rules at Part 17 of the Constitution.

5.2  The Council is required to nominate an officer under section 151 of the
Local Government Act 1972 to be responsible for the proper
administration of its financial affairs. The relevant wording states that: -
“‘Without prejudice to section 111 above, every local authority shall make
arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and
shall secure that one of their officers has responsibility for the
administration of those affairs.”

5.3  Section 6 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, further sets out
that “ (1) On and after the commencement day the Common Council shall
— (a) make arrangements for the proper administration of such of its
financial affairs as relate to it in it's capacity as a local authority, police
authority, or port health authority, and (b) secure that one of its officers
has responsibility for the administration of those affairs”.

5.4  Section 113 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires that the
officer appointed as the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) must be a member
of a specified accountancy body.

5.5 The legislation regarding the appointment of the Council’s Returning
Officer is set out in Section 35 of the Representation of the People Act
1983, and the requirement for an Electoral Registration Officer is set out
in Section 8 of the same Act.

5.6  External employment legal advice has been taken in preparing the report
and recommendations. The approach and recommendations have been
shared with the Council’s outgoing External Auditor in view of the Section
24 Notice and also with the incoming External Auditor. The Auditors have
confirmed their view that the proposals are entirely reasonable in the
circumstances and demonstrate resilience in the context of the
challenges that were identified in the Interim Annual Audit report
2020/2021.

Page 35



Agenda Iltem 8

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December
2023

6. OTHER - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqic Purpose

6.1 Effective financial management underpins all the Council’'s operations
and achievement of strategic purposes.

6.2  The appointment of Mrs Susan Hanley as Interim Head of Paid Service,
and the appointment of Mr Peter Carpenter as Interim Deputy Chief
Executive and Interim Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer), on
fixed term contracts will ensure that there is consistency and continuity
for the year ahead.

6.3  This continuity will assist the Council in terms of being an effective and
sustainable authority moving forward.

Climate Change Implications

6.4  There are no specific climate change implications.

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.5 There are no known equalities implications arising from the options
outlined in this report.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1 As outlined in section 3, the following risks have been identified by this
report, particularly in relation to the post of Director of Finance and
Section 151 Officer:-

e Decline in Council performance and focus in terms of high level leadership
given that a permanent replacement Head of Paid Service was not
recruited.

e Loss of lead officer for implementation of Finance Recovery Plan at a time
when the Council is subject to the Section 24 Notice.

e Loss of lead finance officer for the specific projects listed at paragraph
3.10.

e Potential inability to comply with legal requirement for Council to have a
section 151 Officer in place given that a permanent replacement Section
151 officer was not recruited and the current postholder as Deputy Section
151 Officer is leaving the organisation at the end of 2023.

Page 36



Agenda Iltem 8

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December
2023

e Loss to the organisation of knowledge and experience held by the current
Interim Section 151 Officer.

e Loss to the organisation of continuity in the Finance Team particularly
around support for the Head of Finance and Customer Services post and
more junior team members.

7.2  Ways in which the steps recommended in the report will mitigate the
risks outlined above: -

e The appointment of an Interim Head of Paid Service on a fixed term
contract until 30" November 2024 will secure this position for the next
12 months and allow for continuity and officer leadership to be provided
by Mrs Hanley remaining in this role.

e There is scope for this appointment to be extended to cover a transition
to a new Chief Executive if required.

e The continuity of employment of the current Director of Finance and
Section 151 Officer will be secured by employing Mr Peter Carpenter on
a fixed term contract until 30" November 2024.

e These arrangements will give the organisation 12 months to carry out
further recruitment.

e The vacant post of Deputy Chief Executive will be filled on an interim
basis giving additional support to the Interim Head of Paid Service.

e The organisation will be able to retain the professional expertise of Mr
Carpenter and there will be continuity in respect of the projects he is
leading on and the support provided to the Finance Team.

e The Council will be able to fulfil its legal obligations by employing a
knowledgeable and experienced Section 151 Officer.

e There will be continuity in respect of the implementation of the Council’s
Finance Recovery Plan and liaison between the Council and its external
auditors.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix 1 — Structure Chart

Overarching Framework Agreement between Bromsgrove District
Council and Redditch Borough Council - 215t March 2011

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Page 37



Agenda Iltem 8

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December
2023
Department Name and Job Title Date

Portfolio Holder

Councillor Charlie Hotham

Lead Director / Head of
Service

Financial Services

Legal Services

Claire Felton, Head of Legal,
Democratic and Property
Services

Page 38



Agenda Iltem 8

Current Structure

Sue Hanley,
Interim CEO

Guy Revans, Interim

Peter Carpenter (Interim
Strategic Director Finance Director & S151)

Ruth Judith
Bamford — Willis —
Head of Head of
Planning, Community
Regeneration and
and Leisure
Serices.

Simon Parry
Interim
Head of

Environment

and Housing

Property
Services

i Claire Felton
Deb Poole — I:I;ﬁ:‘lllf — Head of
Simon Head of Head of Legal,
Wilkes — U SR Finance and Democratic
Head of Organisational AT & Property
Regulatory Development Services & Services &
Services and Digital Deputy 151 Monitoring
Services Officer Officer

Housing
Services

Proposed Structure

Sue Hanley,
Interim CEO

Peter Carpenter Interim

Deputy Chief Executive
; and Interim Executive
Guy Revans, Interim

- Director of Resources
Strategic Director (Section 151 Officer)

Ruth
Bamford - Willis -
Head of Head of

Simon Parry
Interim
Head of

Environment

and Housing

Property
Services

Michelle Claire Felton
Deb Poole - Howell— — Head of
S?mon Head ufi Head of [
Wilkes — Tl‘ansfolrmaltmn, Finance and Democratic
Head of Organisational A — & Property
Regulatory Development S Services &
Services and Digital Deputy 151 Monitoring
Services Officer Officer

Planning, Community
Regeneration

and Leisure
Serices.

and
Housing
Services

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Recommendation from the Licensing Committee Meeting Monday 13th November
2023

Members are asked to RESOLVE

that the revised Statement of Licensing Policy shown at Appendix 3 be
approved and published to take effect on 15t April 2024.

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December 2023

INTERIM AUDITORS ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 AND 2022/23

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Chalie Hotham,
Finance and Enabling Portfolio Holder
Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes
Relevant Head of Service Pete Carpenter
Report Author Job Title: Interim Director of Finance

email:peter.carpenter@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel: 0152764252

Wards Affected N/A

Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) | All

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1  The Council has received the Interim Auditor's Annual Report from our
External Auditors Grant Thornton for 2021/22 and 2022/23. This was received
by Audit, Standards and Governance Committee on the 27" November 2023.
The report sets out progress since the 2020/21 Report and contains an
updated Statutory Recommendation with the key reason being the non-
delivery of the 2020/21 and subsequent financial statements. This report sets
out the reason for the updated Statutory Recommendation, the progress the
Council has made since last year’s report, and the process the Council now
has to follow to rectify that position.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

Audit Standards and Governance Committee at their meeting on the 27t
November 2023 Recommended that Council:

1 That the Section 24 Statutory Recommendation is accepted and that
Council review the recommendation, endorse the actions included in the
management responses which form the rectification process required as
per legislation.

2 That Audit, Standards and Governance Committee members are updated
on key deliverables, where deemed applicable by the Chairman, the
Cabinet Member for Finance and Enabling and the Section 151 Officer,
between Committee meetings and that appropriate governance
arrangements are put in place to resolve the Council’s position.

Page 43



Agenda Item 10

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December 2023

3. Background

Introduction

3.1  The Council received a Section 24 Statutory Recommendation, 5 Key
Recommendations and 13 Improvement Recommendations in the 2020/21
Interim Auditor’s Annual Report. During the last year, Members have been
updated on progress on delivering to the requirements of the Statutory
Recommendation and associated financial issues through the Accounting
Policies Reports that are reviewed at every Audit, Standards and Governance
Committee and the Financial Recovery Reports that go to Cabinet. In
addition, a Task Group was convened in Bromsgrove to identify the
underlying issues for the delivery of the Section 24 Statutory
Recommendation in February 2023. This Task Group’s Report was reviewed
and its recommendations accepted.

3.2  As setout in those reports the Section 24 Statutory Recommendation is due
to the issues the Council encountered in the implementation of a new financial
system in February 2021 and its knock-on effect in terms of staff retention,
delivery of the 2020/21 and subsequent Accounts, delivery of 2021/22 in year
monitoring, delivery of Government Returns being key items.

3.3 As setoutin the Interim Auditor's Annual Report 2021/22 and 2022/23

(attached as Appendix A):

e The Section 24 Recommendation around the delivery of the 2020/21
accounts is still in place and has been extended to the subsequent
accounting periods now outstanding.

e Of the 5 Key Recommendations in the 2020/21 report, only one serious
weakness remains in relation to opening balances linked to the budget
which will be resolved with the delivery of the Accounts, the remainder of
those significant weaknesses have been resolved or linked to
Improvement Recommendations (of which there are 10 in the report).

e There is one new Key Recommendation linked to Organisational
Capability and Capacity. The Council is mitigating this in the main through
the rollout of the Workforce Strategy.

e Of the 13 2020/21 Improvement Recommendations, 9 have been fully or
partially addressed and 4 are yet to be addressed. Again, ongoing
improvements are linked to the 10 new Improvement Recommendations
set out in the External Auditors report.

3.4  The External Auditors have noted the significant progress the Council has
made in all areas apart from the delivery of the Accounts. As such the
existing S24 Statutory Recommendation remains outstanding in relation to the
2020/21 Accounts and they have concluded that it is appropriate for them to
use their powers to make written recommendations under section 24 of the
Act, with the key reason being the non-delivery of the 2020/21 and
subsequent Statutory Accounts. Further details are set out in the attached
report.

Page 44



Agenda Item 10

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December 2023

3.5 Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires the
following actions:

o The Council must consider the recommendation at a meeting held
before the end of the period of one month beginning with the day on
which it was sent to the Council. This will take place at the Council
meeting being scheduled for the 6" December 2023.

o At that public meeting the Council must decide

= whether the recommendations are to be accepted; and
= what, if any, action to take in response to these
recommendations.

o Schedule 7 specifies the meeting publication requirements that the
Council must comply with.

3.6  Audit, Standards and Governance Committee at their meeting on the 27t
November reviewed the report in the presence of the External Auditors and
accepted the recommendations and the proposed management actions. The
Committee added an additional recommendation linked to the timescales and
route of delivery.

3.7 The External Auditors Report sets out that Management state that the
proposed resolution of the opening balances (Period 0) as at the 8" February
have been provided on the 13" November. Once these are reviewed and
agreed by the External Auditors the draft 2020/21 Accounts can be provided.

3.8 Pages 4 to 7 of the External Audit Report sets out the main issues and the
Council’'s Management Reponses to each of those issues.

4. IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

4.1  Financial implications are set out in section 3.

Legal Implications

4.2 This is set out in section 3.5 above.

Service / Operational Implications

4.3  Non-Delivery of the 2020/21 and subsequent Accounts is a fundamental
deficiency and this is part of the Corporate Risk Register and impacts all
service areas directly and indirectly.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

4.4  There are none of these within this report.

Page 45



Agenda Item 10

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council 6th December 2023

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 Non-Delivery of the 2020/21 and subsequent Accounts is a fundamental
deficiency and this is part of the Corporate Risk Register.

6. APPENDICES

Appendix A — Bromsgrove District Council Interim Auditors Annual Report
2020/21 and 2022/23 — Grant Thornton.

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS

S24 Report to Audit, Standards and Governance Committee — November
2022

2020/21 Draft External Auditors Annual Report — Audit, Standards and
Governance Committee — November 2022

Accounting Policies Reports to every Audit Committee in 2023

8. KEY

None

Page 46



0 Grant Thornton

Interim Auditor’s Annual
Report on Bromsgrove
District Council

) abe

2021/22 and 2022/23

November 2023




Public

Contents

Section Page
@ Letter of Recommendations made under section 24 schedule 7 of the Local Auditand 03
Accountability Act 2014
Executive summary O4
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) Use of auditor’s powers 08
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act Progress from prior year significant weaknesses 1
2014 to. satisfy ourselves that the Key recommendations 15
Council has made proper arrangements o .
for securing economy, efficiency and Commentary on the local authority's arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. The effectiveness in its use of resources 16
Code of Audit Practice issued by the / Financial sustainability 17
National Audit Office (NAO]) requires us ' Improvement recommendations oL
to report to you our commentary Governance 29
relating to proper arrangements.
Improvement recommendations 34
We report if significant matters have Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 39
come to our attention. We are not ; : ’
required to consider, nor have we \ p \ | Improvement recommendations 43
considered, whether all aspects of the LT ’s Follow-up of previous recommendations 45
Council’s arrangements for securing ‘ Opinion on the financial statements 52
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in A di
its use of resources are operating ! ppencices
effectively. " | . - Appendix A - Responsibilities of the local authority Bl

o1
o1

Appendix B - Risks of significant weaknesses, our procedures and findings

(o1
o

0T Wsal| epuaby

Appendix C - An explanatory note on recommendations

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of completing our work under the NAO
Code and related guidance. Our audit is not designed to test all arrangements in respect of value for money. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify significant weaknesses, we will report these to you. In
consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in arrangements that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept any
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered
office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not
a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 2



Grant Thornton

Bromsgrove District Council Grant Thornton UK LLP

Parkside 2 Glass Wharf
Market Street, Temple Quay
Bromsgrove Bristol BS2 OEL
B618DA +lt (0)117 305 7600
+llt (0)117 955 4934

grantthornton.co.uk

27 November 2023

Dear Sirs/Madams

Recommendations made under section 24 schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
Our responsibilities

As well as our responsibilities to give an opinion on the financial statements and assess the arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the Council's use of resources,
we have additional powers and duties under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. These include powers to issue a public interest report, make written recommendations, apply to the
ourt for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law, and to give electors the opportunity to raise questions about the Council's accounts and to raise objections received in

(celation to the accounts.

cBVe have concluded that it is appropriate for us to use our powers to make written recommendations under section 24 of the Act, due to inadequate arrangements relating to issues with
@wonciol systems which further impact on key statutory returns and related financial governance and concerns around the authority’s arrangements to secure financial sustainability. The
continued non-delivery of the 2020/21 financial statements is a key reason for our updated $24 Recommendation. Further details are set out in the attached report.

What does the Council need to do next?

Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires the following actions:

The Council must consider the recommendation at a meeting held before the end of the period of one month beginning with the day on which it was sent to the Council.
At that public meeting the Council must decide

* whether the recommendations are to be accepted; and

* what, if any, action to take in response to these recommendations.

Schedule 7 specifies the meeting publication requirements that the Council must comply with.

Jackson Murray

Key Audit Partner
Grant Thornton UK LLP

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is

authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member

firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details. grontthomton-co-Uk

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Executive summary

8 ) Value for money arrangements and key recommendation(s)

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are required to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Auditors are required to report their commentary on the Council’s arrangements under specified criteria. 2020/21, reported on the 31t October 2022, was the first year that we reported our
findings in this way. The NAO have issued guidance to auditors which states that a commentary covering more than one financial year can be issued where it is more efficient and effective to
do so. We have decided to report a combined commentary on the Council’s arrangements for 2021/22 and 2022/23 because [engagement team to add explanation]. As part of our work, we
considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Our conclusions are
-pymmarised in the table below.

(&/e have included a summary on the Council’s progress against the key and statutory recommendations raised in 2020/21 to our report for 2021/22 and 2022/23. This is for the purposes of
Mlarity to ensure that it is clear which recommendations remain outstanding and which can be closed. This summary is on pages 11 to 14. Bromsgrove District Council (BDC) also has a totally
$hared management team with Redditch Borough Council (RBC). RBC may also be referred to in this report.

(=)

Criteria 2021/22 Auditor Judgment 2022/23 Auditor Judgment

Significant weakness in arrangements identified resulting in one
statutory recommendation (SR1) and four improvement
recommendations

Significant weakness in arrangements identified resulting in one
statutory recommendation (SR1) and four improvement
recommendations

Financial
sustainability

Significant weakness in arrangements identified resulting in one
statutory recommendation (SR1), one key recommendation and five
improvement recommendations

Significant weakness in arrangements identified resulting in one
Governance statutory recommendation (SR1), one key recommendation and five
improvement recommendations

Improving economy, No significant weakness in arrangements identified but two No significant weakness in arrangements identified but two
efficiency and improvement recommendations improvement recommendations raised
effectiveness

No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.
No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

=

0T Wsal| epuaby



Executive summary

TG abed

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Financial sustainability

Bromsgrove District Council (BDC)’s financial arrangements are significantly impacted by a flawed ledger implementation which occurred in February 2021.
This has had pervasive consequences on all aspects of organisational operations and the Council’s ability to fully prove its financial sustainability. As
reported in our 2020/21 Auditor’s Annual Report in October 2022 and our updates to Audit, Standards & Governance in May 2023 and September 2023, the
Council is still not able to produce full draft financial statements for 2020/21. The statutory recommendation in this area remains open and we have
updated the statutory recommendation to reflect changes over the last 12 months (see statutory recommendation 1).

Notwithstanding the financial ledger implementation issues and the impact on producing the accounts, the Council has been able to produce a financial
monitoring report for M11 of 2021/22 and quarterly monitoring and a draft outturn report for 2022/23. The M11 monitoring report showed the Council to be
reporting an estimated £367k underspend on the General Fund Revenue Budget which is a reasonably comfortable financial performance. The draft
2022/23 outturn is forecasting a £956k overspend which is set to be serviced by reserves. The majority of this overspend is linked to the nationally agreed
pay award which was significantly over the 2% planned for. It is important to note that all financial information produced since February 2021 is not
supported by audited financial statements, and as such could be subject to further change. This means that budget outturns could be incorrect as the
budgeting process each year is based on this unvalidated information. This has the potential to change the financial position significantly and may mean
inappropriate decisions are being taken.

The Council appears to be in a strong position for the medium term. Our review of the majority of savings that make up the medium term package
demonstrate that the plans are based on robust assumptions. We were able to validate the majority of the Council’s savings plans with third party evidence
which is demonstrative of strong assumptions underpinning the plan. Itis important to note, however, that these savings appear to only secure the Council’s
financial sustainability for the medium term. When the medium term period elapses, the Council will need to identify new and recurrent savings for the post-
2026/27 period. The Council currently report a healthy level of reserves (£5.8m estimated as at 31 March 2023, which is above the 5% net revenue
expenditure benchmark). The Council must note that any non-delivery of savings would increase its reliance on reserves, though based on our review of the
savings plans, this is unlikely to materialise to an unsustainable degree in the medium term.

Though the Council’s MTFP appears to be predicated on fairly strong ground, it is important to note that we are basing this assessment on information that
is not currently supported by audited statements of accounts for the past three years - which creates a significant gap in assurance. This continues to be a
weakness, identified initially in October 2022, and we address this issue in statutory recommendation 1. We raise an improvement recommendation on
savings identification, development and reporting to encourage greater transparency in savings management.

The Council has reported significant underspends against its capital budgets relating to slippage, re-phasing and delays in capital projects. We have raised
an improvement recommendation in this area (see improvement recommendation 2) to strengthen the Council’s capital budget setting process.

The budget setting process at BDC has undergone significant changes since our reporting in October 2022. There has been a focus on greater Member
engagement and regular updates on emerging budget concerns have been publicly reported on a regular basis. The 2023/24 budget process also changed
significantly with the introduction of the ‘two tranche’ approach. While there has been improvement, we raise two improvement recommendations relating to
budget setting (see improvement recommendations 3 and 4).

Similarly, the budgetary control arrangements have notably improved. During 2021/22, there was no in-year financial monitoring reporting. In 2022/23, the
Council returned to in-year reporting which is extremely positive to note. Whilst there has been progress, it is important to note that the assurance in the
budget monitoring arrangements continues to be severely impacted by the flawed implementation of the ledger system in February 2021.

Public

=

2021/22

We are unable to
complete our
financial
statements audit
as the Council is
unable to produce
accounts.

2022/23

We are unable to
complete our
financial
statements audit
as the Council is

unable to produce
accounts.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

5

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Executive summary

S abed

Governance

We have found a significant weakness in the Council’s governance arrangements relating specifically to the failure to produce full financial statements for 2020/21, 2021/22 and
2022/23 (see statutory recommendation 1). The Council is significantly behind its statutory requirement to produce financial statements. This does not allow accountability and
transparency for the taxpayers of Bromsgrove. In our view, this is an unacceptable failure to comply with statutory duties. The Council has continued to report this position to
Members through Audit, Standards and Governance Committee and Cabinet.

Outside of the financial ledger issues, the Council’s governance arrangements have undergone significant improvement since our 2020/21 reporting. Since October 2019, there had
been no formal risk reporting arrangements at the Council. This remained throughout 2021/22 and was reinforced by ‘No assurance’ opinions from internal audit regarding risk
management. It was impossible for Members to have assurance that risks were properly being identified and appropriately managed. During 2022/23, the Council was able to
introduce a Risk Strategy and Risk Management Framework and introduce formal risk reporting via the Audit, Standards & Governance Committee. Due to the significance of the
deficiencies in 2021/22, we have found there to be a significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for risk management in that year. This was reported in our 2020/21 Auditors
Annual Report in October 2022. As this is a combined 2021/22 and 2022/23 report, we must also comment on the arrangements for 2022/23. Due to the improvement in the position
from 2021/22 to 2022/23, we do not find there to be a significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for 2022/23 but raise improvement recommendations. This demonstrates
a marked improvement in the arrangements from 2021/22 to 2022/23, noting that there remains work to do.

The Council had appropriate internal audit arrangements during 2021/22 and 2022/23. The service was effective and assessed the adequacy of internal controls, reporting
regularly Audit, Standards & Governance Committee. We raise one improvement recommendation relating to external assessment for compliance with PSIAS (see improvement
recommendation é). Internal audit provide the Council’s arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud. These are generally appropriate though an improvement
recommendation has been raised relating to whistleblowing arrangements (see improvement recommendation 8).

There is also room for improvement with regard to Audit, Standards & Governance Committee arrangements (see improvement recommendation 7).

We have found a new significant weakness for 2022/23 relating to the Council’s organisational capacity and capability. The average age of staff at the Council is 49 and
approximately 10% of Council staff are interim/temporary arrangements. Two of the three statutory officer roles are currently being fulfilled by interims. High turnover of staff has
led to a loss of corporate knowledge and history, and this impacted the finance team significantly along with the continuing development of the finance system implementation.
The finance team currently has several staff who are interim or on long-term sick leave, and there are also vacancies.

In September 2023, we reported to Audit, Standards & Governance Committee the challenges we were experiencing in terms of obtaining sufficient, appropriate evidence to
support our audit work in respect to the ledger implementation, as well as the receipt of other evidence that would allow us to undertake an audit of the 2020/21 financial
statements. We decided to redirect our audit team to other work as insufficient working papers had been provided and those that had been provided were not of the expected
quality. We attribute some of the difficulties experienced here to a lack of capacity in the finance team.

The combination of the turnover and capacity constraints coupled with the formidable task of rectifying the issues with the ledger implementation has lead us to conclude that
there is a significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements with regard to organisational capacity and capability (see key recommendation 1). The Council now have a
Workforce Strategy in place which is a positive step in the right direction. Effort must now be directed toward embedding the strategy and action plan. This issue was similarly
acknowledged by the LGA in the peer review. We also acknowledge that this is extremely challenging in the current local government environment and the difficulties surrounding
workforce recruitment and retention. These challenges appear to be having a particularly acute impact at the Council and Redditch Borough Council (RBC), with whom all staff
are shared.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 6

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Executive summary

egG abed

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

During 2021/22, the Council did not publish performance reports, which was a significant weakness in arrangements. The Council has returned to in-year reporting for 2022/23
and 2023/24 which is combined with financial reporting, though there is significant room for improvement in the quality of the reports (see improvement recommendation 9).
The Council clearly have a lot of meaningful data but it is currently not presented in the most accessible format to be able to properly interrogate the information. There are
currently limited benchmarks or targets against which to measure performance and there is therefore no standard expectation. The data shows what is happening but does
not assess whether this performance is ‘good’ or ‘bad’ and therefore does not drive behaviour and actions. The Council should put effort toward determining what quality of
service it would like to deliver, put arrangements in to review that regularly and then report against that position. The current performance reports demonstrate a good
foundation to build on but there is room for improvement.

The Council has Contract Procedure Rules though these have not been updated since October 2016. We raise an improvement recommendation urging the Council to review
the Contract Procedure Rules annually (see improvement recommendation 10). The procurement function has undergone significant change in the last year and a half and
improved significantly as is demonstrated by the journey from the ‘Limited assurance’ internal audit report from June 2022. There is, however, room for improvement. At
present, the procurement team does not report on waivers to committee level. We recommend that the Council report on waivers (in terms of numbers and values of waivers
raised) to the Audit, Standards & Governance Committee at least quarterly. This can ensure that senior leadership, Members and the public are aware of the level of waiver
use (see improvement recommendation 10).

The Council has notably strong partnership arrangements in place. The Council works closely with its statutory partners, commissioned providers, private businesses,
community and the voluntary sector to perform its responsibilities. Partnership working is a specific area of focus for both Councils, led by the Interim Chief Executive. The
Council brings together organisations from all sectors as community leaders and key members of their local strategic partnerships (LSPs), the Bromsgrove Partnership, as well
as the emerging local ‘Collaboratives’.

Since our report, the Council has made significant progress in their management of projects/programmes. A Project Management Framework has been created and Project
Management Office (PMQ) established to support project delivery. Formal reporting of all projects is undertaken on a monthly basis and feeds into the Finance and
Performance Reports.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

~

0T Wsal| epuaby



Use of auditor's powers

We bring the following matters to your attention:

2021/22

Public

2022/23

Statutory recommendations We have raised one statutory
recommendation.
Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors can make written recommendations to the

audited body which need to be considered by the body and responded to publicly

We have raised one statutory
recommendation.

Public Interest Report We did not issue

Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors have the power to make a report if they
nsider a matter is sufficiently important to be brought to the attention of the audited body or the public as a matter
oof urgency, including matters which may already be known to the public, but where it is in the public interest for the
%uditor to publish their independent view.

We did not issue

Epplicotion to the Court We did not apply

Under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, if auditors think that an item of account is contrary to
law, they may apply to the court for a declaration to that effect.

We did not apply

Advisory notice We did not issue

Under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may issue an advisory notice if the auditor
thinks that the authority or an officer of the authority:

is about to make or has made a decision which involves or would involve the authority incurring unlawful
expenditure,

* is about to take or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and
likely to cause a loss or deficiency, or

* is about to enter an item of account, the entry of which is unlawful.

We did not issue

Judicial review We did not apply

Under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may make an application for judicial review
of a decision of an authority, or of a failure by an authority to act, which it is reasonable to believe would have an
effect on the accounts of that body.

We did not apply

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

[e4]

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Recommendation made under section 24 schedule 7 of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 201

Area Recommendation (SR1)

Financial systems The Council still cannot produce full draft 2020/21 accounts. Incomplete versions of the financial statements for 2020/21 were
and governance presented to Audit, Standards and Governance Committee in December 2022, however, these had material balancing figures to
be resolved. We understand that these issues were subsequently resolved, however, draft financial statements have yet to be
certified by the Section 151 Officer who has stated that he will not certify the financial statements until external audit assurance
has been obtained on the opening balance transfer from the old to the new ledger relating to the longstanding issues stemming .
from the flawed ledger system implementation from February 2021. Although we are aware of this approach, we consider this to recommendations

be unsatisfactory progress since our issuing of the statutory recommendation that we raised in October 2022. The failure to g
produce 2020/21 accounts has had the subsequent impact of a failure to produce draft accounts for 2021/22 and 2022/23 that extern.ol CludleOI”S
which are the audit years which are the subject of this report. The Council is significantly behind its statutory requirement to can make is explomed
produce financial statements. This does not allow accountability and transparency for the taxpayers of Bromsgrove. In our view in Appendix C

this is an unacceptable failure to comply with statutory duties. The Council has continued to report this position to Members :
through Audit, Standards and Governance Committee and Cabinet.

The range of

We have attempted to undertake work on the opening ledger balances, however, progress to obtain information from the
Council and its ledger software provider has been slow and the Council only provided transactional data for period 0 (2020/21)
on the 13th November 2023 from the old system.

GG abed

Furthermore, the entire medium-term plan, including the projections surrounding the medium-term gap (the cumulative budget
deficit forecast up to 31t March 2026), the forecast reserves balance and all budget monitoring information is using data that
cannot be supported by audited financial statements since 2020/21. This has the compounding impact of placing a limited level
of assurance on the starting figures in the medium term financial plan. The lack of assurance in the figures included in the
budget monitoring reports is further demonstrated by:

+  The Council's reluctance to produce a whole-year 2021/22 outturn report (only an M1l report has been produced)

+ The correction to the 2020/21 outturn (which was originally presented in January 2022 and then corrected and presented
again in January 2023)

Recommendation

The Council must produce ‘true and fair’ draft accounts for 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 which are signed off by its Section 151
officer. In addition, the accounts must be supported by high quality working papers. Working papers must be subject to internal
quality control checks prior to being provided to external audit to avoid further delays and cost.

To achieve this, the Council needed to prioritise gaining access to period 0 balances for 2020/21 which are essential to gaining
assurance over the ledger transfer. This was only delivered on the 13" November and is therefore still subject to review. Once the
Section 151 Officer is satisfied that the ledger transfer was appropriate, he must certify draft accounts for 2020/21 and publish
these on the Council’s website. The public inspection period must also be started. The Council must then focus on the
production of 2021/22 and 2022/23 draft financial statements and their publication.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

9

0T wal| epusby



Public

Progress from prior year significant

weaknesses

Type of
recommendation

Recommendation

Progress to date

Impact on 2021/22 and 2022/23
reporting

Statutory The Council cannot yet produce its 2020/21 draft statement of accounts with
long-standing issues with its new ledger system in relation to cash receipting
requiring resolution. The Council must ensure that arrangements allow for the
successful implementation of cash receipting within its ERP system to allow key
elements of financial governance and compliance to be undertaken routinely

and in a timely manner. In order to achieve this the Council should:

* ensure the Council has access to the necessary knowledge and expertise to
resolve the remaining key issues with the ERP system in a timely manner to
provide management with sufficient assurance over the completeness and
veracity of the data included within the system;

* undertake appropriate testing of the fixes and ensure that appropriate sign-
off of these is received prior to running them on live system data; and

9G abed

* ensure budget holders and other relevant officers possess the skills and
knowledge to appropriately use the ERP system as intended, including
relevant training and updates to key documentation and process manuals.

Once system issues are properly resolved, the Council must:

* undertake key control activities such as bank and control account
reconciliations on a monthly basis and ensure that these are kept up to
date;

+ produce the 2020/21 and 2021/22 draft financial statements, along with high
quality supporting working papers;
* conclude the 2020/21 and 2021/22 RO and CO submissions, and other key

Government returns including Whole of Government Accounts; and

* ensure timely reporting of budget outturns and report publicly on in-year
financial monitoring, including updates on the capital programme and
savings scheme achievement.

In October 2022, we issued a statutory

recommendation relating to Redditch Borough
Council and Bromsgrove District Council’s flawed
finance system implementation (which occurred in
February 2021). The implementation had resulted in
the Councils being unable to produce 2020/21

accounts for external audit.

We acknowledge that progress has been made since
this date. We received an early draft version of the
2020/21 accounts in December 2022 and have been
able to perform some procedures relating to data
migration and testing. There remains to be significant
work required, this is documented in our report to
Audit, Standards & Governance from June 2023.

We presented a further update on progress to Audit,
Standards & Governance in September 2023 and
highlighted that we were still experiencing significant
difficulties in obtaining sufficient appropriate
evidence to support the work on the data transfer to
enable us to begin the 2020/21 audit of the financial

statements in earnest

The Council has made significant progress in a
number of areas (e.g. cash receipting, providing data
take on for all periods excluding period 0, return to
financial monitoring). Period O data was finally
received on the 13" November 2023. This progress

has been documented in this report.

Though there has been improvement,
the Council is still not able to
produce full 2020/21 accounts. This
has had the subsequent impact of a
failure to produce accounts for
2021/22 and 2022/23. For this
reason, the statutory
recommendation remains open until
the Council is able to produce
comprehensive 2020/21, 2021/22 and
2022/23 accounts.

The statutory recommendation
remains outstanding.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 10

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Progress from prior year significant
weaknesses

Type of Recommendation Progress to date Impact on 2021/22 and 2022/23 reporting
recommendation

Key The Council needs to ensure that the Medium-Term The Council has made significant progress in its medium  The Council’s medium term position is now predicated
Financial Plan presented to Members is completely term financial planning and budget setting on much stronger assumptions than our prior year
transparent regarding the financial challenge and that  arrangements. This is documented on pages 16 to 19. reporting. The significant weakness no longer applies
any savings schemes included are fully worked up and and this key recommendation is resolved. There
approved by Members in advance. continues to be uncertainty in the financial information

supporting the medium term plan, though this is
addressed in statutory recommendation 1.

The significant weakness in the medium term position
remains due to the issues surrounding the ledger
implementation. This is addressed in statutory
recommendation 1. We have raised improvement

/G abed

recommendations relating to savings identification,

management and monitoring and the budget setting
process (see improvement recommendation 1, 3 and

4).

Key The Council needs to improve management of key Since our 2020/21 report, the Council has made Although the finance ledger system issue remains, we
projects, such as the financial ledger implementation, to  significant progress in management of have addressed this in our statutory recommendation
ensure that expected benefits are realised. As part of this projects/programmes. This is documented on page 4. In  which remains on the Council. We, however, lift the
the Council needs to undertake a comprehensive review summary, a Project Management Framework has been  significant weakness relating to poor project
of the financial ledger implementation and ensure created and Project Management Office (PMO) management to recognise the progress the Council has
lessons are learned for future key projects. established to support project delivery. Formal reporting made in this area.

of all projects is undertaken on a monthly basis and

feeds into the Finance and Performance Reports. The significant weakness has been removed and key

recommendation resolved. No further action.

0T Wal| epuaby

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 N



Type of
recommendation

Public

Progress from prior year significant
weaknesses

Recommendation

Progress to date

Impact on 2021/22 and 2022/23 reporting

Key The Council should review and implement effective The Council’s performance management arrangements  We lift the significant weakness for 2022/23 due to the
governance arrangements in respect of performance are covered in detail on pages 38 to 39. As documented  return to in-year reporting but we would like to
monitoring to allow Members to make informed in our report for 2020/21, there was no performance emphasise that the quality of the Council’s performance
decisions. In order to achieve this the Council should reporting for 2021/22. The significant weakness for reports is inadequate and needs significant
reinstate public reporting on performance, linking this to  2021/22 therefore remains. In 2022/23, the Council improvement. We raise an improvement
the Council Plan and the related strategic objectives, returned to in-year reporting though the reports are in recommendation (see improvement recommendation 9).
allowing Members to scrutinise performance. This should need of significant work to be of an appropriate

wing rs to serutinise perror I . g wer ppropn The significant weakness is lifted and key
be done at least twice per year. standard. . .
recommendation resolved. However, see improvement

;JU recommendation 9.

«Q

@D

a

0o

Key The Council should review and implement effective The Council has made visible improvements to risk Due to the significance of the deficiencies in 2021/22, we

governance arrangements in respect of risk monitoring
to allow Members to make informed decisions. In order to
achieve this the Council should make risk management
reporting a standing item on the Audit, Standards &
Governance Committee agenda, with Members
considering the Corporate Risk Register and Risk
Management arrangements in an appropriate forum.

management arrangements since our 2020/21 report.
This is documented in detail on pages 29 to 30. To
summarise, the Council did not have sufficient risk
management arrangements during 2021/22. From our
review of Audit, Standards & Governance Committee
meetings and risk management reports, it is clear to see
the progress the authority has made with regard to the
Corporate Risk Register and the engagement with risk
management at the organisation. The improvement in
the quality of the reports from April 2021 to July 2023 is
worth noting.

have found there to be a significant weakness in the
Council’s arrangements for risk management in that
year. Due to the improvement in the position from
2021/22 to 2022/23, we do not find there to be a
significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for
2022/23 but raise an improvement recommendation (see
improvement recommendation 6).

The significant weakness has been removed and key
recommendation resolved. An improvement
recommendation has been raised (see improvement
recommendation 6).

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 12

0T Wal| epuaby



Public

Progress from prior year significant

weaknesses

Type of
recommendation

Recommendation

Progress to date

Impact on 2021/22 and 2022/23 reporting

Key The Council should ensure timely and relevant financial
monitoring reporting is undertaken and presented to the
appropriate public forum.

-

QD

«Q

@D

a

O

The Council’s budgetary control arrangements are
covered in detail on pages 17 to 19. In sum, there was no
in-year financial monitoring reporting for the whole of
2021/22. The Council has made progress and managed
to re-introduce in-year budget monitoring reporting in
2022/23. While there has been improvement, it is
important to note that the budget monitoring
arrangements are severely impacted by the flawed
implementation of the ledger system in February 2021.

Due to the fact that the Council did not have budget
monitoring arrangements in place for 2021/22, our
significant weakness remains for that year. However, as
we are providing a dual report and are also covering
2022/23 and as the Council has returned to in-year
budget monitoring, we have removed the significant
weakness in arrangements for 2022/23. Nevertheless, we
include in our statutory recommendation that the
reliability and accuracy of the budget monitoring
reports hinges on the successful rectification of the
ledger implementation.

The significant weakness is lifted and key
recommendation resolved. However, see improvement
recommendation 3.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 13

0T Wsal| epuaby



Key recommendations

Key Recommendation 1

Organisational capability and capacity

The Council should direct effort toward embedding and stepping up the Workforce Strategy
objectives. In line with the recommendations of the LGA Peer Review (March 2023}, the Council
should ensure that there is commitment at all levels of the organisation to enact succession
planning, creative recruitment and development of the workforce. The Council should also ensure
that existing staff are utilised in the most effective way possible to ensure delivery of key Council
programmes (such as the finance recovery programme) and the strategic priorities.

Audit year

2022/23

Why/impact

09 abed

At present, approximately 10% of the Council’s workforce is temporary/interim arrangements.
Furthermore, two out of three of the statutory officers are interim. This impacts on the
organisation’s ability to deliver business as usual as well as strategic extraordinary projects such
as the finance recovery programme. (Note, without interim staff there would be no finance
recovery programme in its present format.) Moreover, it impacts the bottom line as temporary
staff are a greater cost to the organisation than substantive arrangements. Bromsgrove District
Council is an authority with a significant improvement journey ahead and the organisational
capacity issues could hinder the Council’s ability to develop and improve.

Management Comments

The Council are implementing its Workforce Strategy which was launched in June. £150k
has been made available to ensure that there is appropriate HR resources to implement the
initial action points of the plan. This plan includes the requirement of services ensuring
that they properly plan their resources for the short, medium and long term resilience of the
Council in delivering its services to stakeholders. As an example of this the finance team
that is in the process of being rebuilt now has three officers undertaking CIPFA training in
order to develop accountants and capacity in-house. However, give present employment
conditions across the Country, part of this workforce plan needs to take account of the
requirement to use temporary resource.

The two Statutory Officers who are presently interim are having formalised arrangements
being put in place for the next year to ensure stability and continuity pending the
restarting and completion of both recruitment processes. Both officers have extensive local
authority experience, including organisational intelligence, member and staff support
which significantly mitigates the risk.

The Council, as part of the Tranche Two of the 2023/4 budget, are reviewing the overall
establishment to ensure it reflects its and the HRA’s needs and links properly to the
workforce strategy.

Public

The range of
recommendations that
external auditors can
make is explained in
Appendix C.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

F

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the local authority’s use of
resources

All local authorities are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness from their resources. This includes taking properly
informed decisions and managing key operational and financial risks so that they can deliver
their objectives and safeguard public money. The local authority’s responsibilities are set out
in Appendix A.

Local authorities report on their arrangements, and the effectiveness of these arrangements as part of their annual
governance statement.

nder the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, we are required to be satisfied whether the local authority has made
roper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

‘%he National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note (AGN] 03, requires us to assess arrangements under three areas:

o
%

RN
Financial Sustainability Governance Improving economy,
efficiency and effectiveness

Arrangements for ensuring the local Arrangements for ensuring that the

authority can continue to deliver local authority makes appropriate Arrangements for improving the way
services. This includes planning decisions in the right way. This the local authority delivers its
resources to ensure adequate includes arrangements for budget services. This includes arrangements
finances and maintain sustainable setting and management, risk for understanding costs and

levels of spending over the medium management, and ensuring the local delivering efficiencies and improving

term (3-5 years). authority makes decisions based on CULGRITES o SERem URErS,
appropriate information.

43. Further detail on how we approached our work is included in Appendix B.

>
">
D
D
D
Q
—
Our commentary on the local authority’s arrangements in each of these three areas, is set out on pages 16 to (D
3
o

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 15



Financial sustainability

We considered how the local authority:

* identifies all the significant financial pressures that
are relevant to its short and medium-term plans and
builds them into its plans

* plans to bridge its funding gaps and identify
achievable savings

plans its finances to support the sustainable delivery
of services in accordance with strategic and statutory
priorities

29 abed

ensures its financial plan is consistent with other plans
such as workforce, capital, investment and other
operational planning which may include working with
other local public bodies as part of a wider system

* identifies and manages risk to financial resilience,
such as unplanned changes in demand and
assumptions underlying its plans.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Budget setting

Alocal authority’s budget provides the financial basis for
the allocation of resources, the delivery of services and the
management of the organisation over the period of one
financial year. Authorities are required by statute to set and
agree an income and expenditure prior to the beginning of
the financial year to which the budget relates.

The Council sets a three-year medium term plan every year
with the Council Tax resolution being approved by Full
Council in the February prior to the start of the financial
year. The MTFP is updated annually.

The 2021/22 budget was approved by Full Council in
February 2021.

For the 2022/23 budget, the Council incorporated an
extraordinary element to the process in response to
expressed appetite on the behalf of members to understand
more about the underlying issues within the budget and
MTFP, and to allow greater involvement of Members in
advance of the formal report being received by Full Council
in February each year. Officers therefore created a Member
engagement plan for the 2022/23 Budget and MTFP report.
The plan involved presenting reconciliations between the
original approved budgets and any further updates.
Officers also highlighted additional engagement
opportunities through the Finance and Budget Working
Group and workshops open to all Members. The Council
also aimed to engage Members earlier on in the process and
provide reasonable opportunity for suggestions to be
considered. This demonstrates a positive step forward from
our 2020/21 reporting where we noted that the Council had
limited evidence of internal involvement in the budget
setting process.

Public

In 2021/22, the Cabinet was presented with an update on
the preparation of the MTFP for 2022/23 to 2024/25 in
December 2021. In this meeting, the Executive Director of
Resources provided an update on emerging budget
concerns and expressed the opportunity for further Member
engagement. There was a distinct emphasis on the fragility
of the Council’s financial position and the increasing focus
on rebuilding the General Fund reserves balance. This also
represents a strengthening of arrangements.

The draft budget for 2022/23 was noted by the Cabinet in
February 2022, having been pre-scrutinised by the Finance
and Budget Working Group. The final budget was approved
by Full Council later in the month.

The Council made further changes to the budget setting
process for 2023/21.

In October 2022, the Cabinet was advised that the budget
setting process for 2023/24 and the accompanying MTFP
2023/24 to 2025/26 would run in two ‘tranches.’ Due to the
difficulties facing the Council (and the local government
sector as a whole), officers considered it prudent to split the
budget setting process into two. The initial tranche would
seek to close as much of the deficit as possible using
information known as at the end of September 2022 and
seek approval for those savings to be implemented at
Council in January 2023. The second tranche would be
considered after the Christmas break which would be
approved in February 2023. This would take into account
the Local Government Settlement, the final detail for which
was not due to be known until early January 2023.

In November 2022, the Cabinet received a further update on
changes to the MTFP following announcements from the
Chancellor in November 2022 and again in January 2023
following confirmation of the Local Government Settlement
in December 2022.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

0T Wsal| epuaby



Financial sustainability

The initial Tranche 1savings were presented for Cabinet
approval in January 2023. Tranche 2 was reviewed by the
Cabinet in early February and approved by Full Council in
February 2023. There has clearly been a concerted effort to
develop the budget setting process at Bromsgrove District
Council from 2020/21 to 2023/24. There is a notable
increase in the level of engagement of senior officers from
our reporting for 2020/21.

The Council included in the budget report a table
demonstrating the changes in the financial projections and
budget gap for 2021/22 based on the original estimation of
Bhe budget gap from February 2020. The Council included
xplanations of the reasons for changes

c?he report also demonstrates the impact on the medium-
rm financial plan. The budget report contains estimates
and assumptions such as inflation, interest rates,
government grants, council tax base and collection rates
which are updated annually. This serves as evidence of the
Council considering trends and the impact on the final
outturn and, in this case, the forecast budget gap.

There is evidence that the budget setting process is linked
with the annual business planning process as the report
directly links the MTFP to the Council’s Strategic Purposes.
The Purposes that drive financial considerations are noted
to be:

* Runand grow successful business
*  Work and financial independence
* Living independent, active and healthy lives
* Affordable and sustainable homes

¢ Communities which are safe, well maintained and green

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

There is evidence of internal engagement in the 2021/22,
2022/23 and 2023/24 budget setting process. The Finance
and Budget Working Group met regularly in the 12 months
preceding the February budget approval to review costs,
fees and charges and the capital programme.

These meetings often resulted in recommendations to the
Cabinet. There is significant officer engagement in the
budget setting process and Member to officer engagement
in the devising of the savings proposals or income
generation opportunities. In response to the LGA Peer Review
from March 2023, the Council noted that the budget setting
process has ‘improved significantly from a democratic
perspective.”

There continues to be limited evidence of external
engagement in the budget setting process. There is no
mention of external consultations feeding into the 2021/22,
2022/23 or 2023/24 budgets (see improvement
recommendation l].

There also continues to be limited evidence of trend analysis
and extrapolation, sensitivity analysis or alternative
proposals and scenarios being considered in the budget
setting process. While this is not a significant weakness, the
Council could enhance the budget setting process by
including scenario modelling and presenting to Members to
support their decision-making process (see improvement
recommendation 3).

Public

Budgetary control

In our report for 2020/21, we found a significant weakness in
the Council’s arrangements surrounding budgetary control.
This was relating to the fact that budget monitoring
reporting essentially ceased with the flawed implementation
of the new ledger system in February 2021. There was
therefore no in-year reporting for the whole of 2021/22.

The Council has made progress since our key
recommendation and managed to re-introduce in-year
budget monitoring reporting in 2022/23. In 2021/22, there
were two reports presented to the Cabinet relating to the
outturn of 2020/21. In 2022/23, the Council presented the
Financial Monitoring Report for M112021/22 and began in-
year reporting for 2022/23 with the presentation of the
period 12022/23 in July 2022.

With regard to budgetary control for the 2022/23 financial
year, the Cabinet received budget monitoring reports for
period 1in July 2022, Quarter 1in September 2022, Quarter
2 in December 2022 and Quarter 3 in March 2023.

However, it is important to note that in January 2023 the
Cabinet also received a second report relating to the
financial outturn for 2020/21. Members were originally
presented with the 2020/21 outturn in January 2022, a whole
year earlier. Officers were presenting this report again as
the original report contained inaccurate information
regarding the outturn position and the latest report served
as a correction.

In 2023/24, the Council has presented monitoring reports for
Quarter  of 2022/23, the draft outturn position for 2022/23
and quarter 1of 2023/24.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 17

0T Wsal| epuaby



Financial sustainability

The Council has put significant effort toward ensuring
processes and systems are in place to ensure budgetary
control. There has been progress toward communicating
relevant management information to Members. It is, however,
important to note that this communication has not always
been accurate or timely.

There is evidence of engagement with budget holders to
review performance and identify actions to resolve variances.
Financial reports are sent to budget holders on a monthly
basis. As part of this process a detailed review is undertaken
with support from the finance team to ensure that all issues
are considered and significant savings or cost pressures are
addressed.

There is evidence of reporting to Cabinet in-year and at
outturn. The reports include appropriate treasury
TMhanagement activity, including borrowing and investment
Qyctivity. For example, the Revenue Outturn report for 2020/21
updated in January 2023) showed £4.756m of short-term
ojorrowing and investments of £2m.

'H'he reports include summaries providing clear understandings
of drivers of cost pressures and action being taken. There are
also explanations for variances to budget and outturn and
actions being taken to mitigate the variances. The reports
include relevant non-financial information, for example,
capacity constraints within the finance team is mentioned in
the budget monitoring reports to provide explanations for
delays to timely reporting. There is clear effort in the reports to
provide sufficient information for key decisions to be made.

While there has been progress, it is important to note that the
budget monitoring arrangements are severely impacted by
the flawed implementation of the ledger system in February
2021. For example, the Council is not comfortable producing a
final outturn position for 2021/22 (which is why an M11 position
was reported) due to the lack of assurance in the cash
receipting related figures for the 2021/22 position.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

We also do not have assurance in the accuracy or
reliability of the information reported in the budget
monitoring and outturn reports for the same reason, as the
data is being driven by a system that has had unaudited
accounts for 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23. Officers and
Members could therefore be making decisions that are
misled due to the lack of assurance in the financial
information reported. The consequence of this is a lack of
assurance in the medium-term plan and medium-term
position.

The accuracy concerns are further evidenced by the fact
that the 2020/21 outturn was reported twice, one year
apart, due to inaccuracies in the initial reporting.

Internal audit reports have also continued to highlight risk
in certain financial areas such as budget monitoring and
reconciliations. ‘Limited’ assurance opinions were reported
in 2022/23 against debtors and the main ledger reflecting
ongoing risks.

We also cannot place assurance on a budget monitoring
audit performed by internal audit as they opted not to
perform a review in 2021/22 and 2022/23 as they
recognised that an audit would be of limited value as the
risks and required actions were already known.

The fact that the Council has returned to in-year reporting
demonstrates significant progress since our determination
of a significant weakness in arrangements for 2021/22.
Due to the fact that the Council did not have budget
monitoring arrangements in place for 2021/22, our
significant weakness remains for that year.

This is further corroborated by a ‘Limited’ assurance
internal audit into budget monitoring published in June
2022.

However, as we are providing a dual report and are also
covering 2022/23 and as the Council has returned to in-
year budget monitoring, we have removed the significant
weakness in arrangements for 2022/23. Nevertheless, we
include in our statutory recommendation (see statutory
recommendation 1) that the reliability and accuracy of the
budget monitoring reports hinges on the successful
rectification of the ledger implementation.

Public

The Council was able to provide evidence of increased
efforts to ensure that non-finance colleagues are involved in
the budget monitoring process. We viewed a copy of a
training pack that was rolled out to budget managers to
demonstrate effective budget management. This is an
improvement from the 2020/21 reporting where we found
limited evidence of this.

Discussions with officers show that the finance recovery
programme is definitely of importance to the whole
organisation which is demonstrates an improvement from
our reporting for 2020/21 where we noted limited
engagement from officers with the financial position.

2021/22 planning and performance

The 2021/22 budget was set against the backdrop of COVID-
19 and the resulting financial pressures that had a
fundamental impact on local economies, nationwide
uncertainty surrounding the financial impact of Brexit
negotiations, the prospect of a potential new funding
formula (that was eventually delayed] and general
uncertainty on the future funding arrangements with central
government.

Toward the end of 2020/21 and start of 2021/22, to add to
these challenges, Bromsgrove also experienced a flawed
implementation of their new finance ledger system in
February 2021. This ledger system implementation has
resulted in the Council being unable to produce accounts
for 2021/22 and 2022/23. This was addressed in our
statutory recommendation which was issued to the Council
in October 2022, relating to the 2020/21 financial year.

In February 2021, the Council set an original General Fund
revenue budget of £11.99m.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 18

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Financial sustainability

As per the budget report for 2021/22 presented in February 2021, the Council forecast identified As per the 2022/23 provisional outturn report presented to the Cabinet in October 2023,

savings and additional income of £426k for 2021/22. the Council is projecting a revenue budget overspend of £956k (7.9% of the original
budget).

Due to the flawed ledger implementation and the failure to produce audited statements of udget]

accounts, the Council the Council has not produced a 2021/22 final outturn report. The Council The overspend is primarily being driven by the larger than forecast pay award and

has produced an M1l estimated outturn of £367k underspend on the General Fund revenue increased fuel and fleet maintenance costs affecting a number of directorates across the

budget. Council. As with the 2021/22 outturn, the Council will not produce a final 2022/23 outturn

iti til the | impl tation i full Ived.
The Council did not report on savings progress during 2021/22. This is addressed in our position until the ledger implementation issues are fully resolved

improvement recommendation 1. In reviewing the budgets for 2022/23, it was evident that The Council provide the caveat in the 2022/23 outturn report that due to the issues

£477k of savings were not delivered for 2021/22. We queried the Council to understand how relating to the flawed ledger implementation, and in particular issues with entries in

£L477k of savings were undelivered yet the target was £426k (meaning the Council did not suspense and miscoding, the report is subject to change. The budget monitoring and

deliver over £51k above its original target) and the Council was unable to highlight why this outturn reports are all potentially subject to change and will continue to be until the
“Was the case. The issues surrounding this relate primarily to the account ledger implementation Council is able to finalise accounts for 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23. The Council was
&hich has resulted in confusion and uncertainty surrounding figures for 2021/22. able to contribute £1.315m to General Fund reserves during 2022/23, bringing the reported
(‘I? . . . . . balance to £5.8m as at 31 March 2023. This was due to a re-allocation of earmarked

he Council noted, however, that in 2022/23, the savings for 2021/22 were delivered via staff
. . . . . reserves.

Gpvings as is evident in the Quarter 2 Finance and Performance Report, though £57k was still

not delivered.

The General Fund unearmarked reserves were reported as £4.613m at 31 March 2021 and the 2023/24 performance

council used £0.218m of reserves during the year. The Council ended 2021/22 with reserves of

£L.485m of General Fund unearmarked reserves. The Local Government Finance Settlement 2023/24 was challenging but more generous

than most authorities were expecting. The Spending Review total for local government
increased by £1.6 billion in 2022/23 and in 2023/24 the Review stated that this would be
the same ‘cash’ level as 2022/23. Though the impact of COVID on Council finances has
reduced significantly, the current predicted high inflation rates and cost of living crisis has

2022/23 planning and performance

In 2022/23, the Council was still feeling the impacts of COVID-19 although the funding from increased pressure on Council budgets. Inflation, in particular, is presenting as a
government to meet the costs ceased. We note that there were additional pressures in budget considerable cost pressure in 2023/2!4 budgets impacting Council costs.
costs, inflation levels not seen in over 20 years, interest rates at pre banking crash levels, Brexit For Bromsgrove, the settlement resulted in additional income in the form of a New Homes

and due to supply chain issues and it is clear that councils were facing a difficult national Bonus (£127k), Services Grant (£68k) and Funding Guarantee (£1,027k). However, also
backdrop against which to make decisions to ensure future financial sustainability. resulted in a reduction in the Council Tax base creating a £2lk cost pressure.

During 2022/23, the Council were issued with the statutory recommendations previously The Council pursued a more strategic approach to 2023/24 budget setting, this is covered

mentioned. in pages 18 to 20. The Council set a net General Fund revenue budget of £14.7m in

In February 2022, the Council set an original General Fund revenue budget of £12.069m (o February 2023.

small increase on the previous year). The Council aimed to deliver savings of £0.176m. As per The Council is currently forecasting an overspend of £788k on the General Fund revenue
the January 2023 financial monitoring report (which is the latest available report due to the budget.

ledger issues), the Council is expecting to fully deliver these savings.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Financial sustainability

At 2023/24 budget setting, the Council agreed to set up an earmarked reserve which can be
used to mitigate overspends. The Council are planning to use £351k of this to mitigate the
£788k overspend position, leaving £437k unmitigated. The assumption is therefore that the
General Fund unearmarked reserves will be used to mitigate the rest of the overspend,
depleting reserves to £5.363m if the overspend is not mitigated in-year.

The medium term position

The Council has acknowledged in the medium-term financial plan that the outlook beyond
2023/24 remains uncertain. In an atmosphere of political and international uncertainty,
economic challenges such as inflation, increased interest rates, lack of clarity on future
fimgnce settlements and the long-term impact of greater service demand, authorities are
tc®ked with the difficult task of demonstrating a resilient and sustainable position from which

t&%/eother shocks.

TK@Council is forecasting a £6.9m cumulative budget gap for the medium term. The Council

|s@0nning to meet this budget gap through a combination of savings and reserves usage,

It is generally accepted that councils seek to maintain a General Fund reserves balance that
is at minimum 5% of net expenditure (excluding housing benefits and HRA). 5% of net
revenue expenditure for Bromsgrove for 2023/24 would be £0.7m. The Council is therefore
well above the minimum recommended level of General Fund reserves which is positive to
note.

The Council has decided to plan to build a level of General Fund reserves which are 10% of
gross expenditure less housing benefits in order to provide some further resilience. This would
mean General Fund reserves should be at a level of at least £2.8m. As is demonstrated in
Table 2, the Council is forecasting to maintain well above this threshold throughout the
medium term period, though it is important to note that this is predicated on full and timely
delivery of savings plans.

Contributions
to/usage from
reserves in year

£’m £'m

Reserves
(as at 31 March)

see Table 1. 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2019/20 4.502 0.111 | Actual

2020/21 4.613 -0.128| Estimate
Total Expenditure 14,71 14,604 14,840 2021/22 4485 1315 | Estimate
Total Income (12,806) (12,771) (12,631) 2022/23 5.8 -0.150 | Estimate
Budget G(]p 1’905 1,833 2,209 2023/2'1‘ 5.65 0.244 Forecast

2024/25 5.894 -0.231| Forecast
Savings 1,655 1.877 1,778

2025/26 5.663 Forecast
Reserves 250 £I+I+] 431 Table 2: Unearmarked General Fund Reserves Balance

Source: Budget report for 2023/24
Table 1: The medium term budget gap

As is demonstrated by Table 1, if the Council does not deliver 100% of its savings plan, this
increases the reliance on the reserves balance to bridge the gap. The Council’s General Fund
reserves balance as at 31 March 2023 is forecast to be £5.8m.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Source: Budget Report for 2023/24

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

n
o

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Financial sustainability

As a slight caveat, the figures in Table 1and 2 are slightly different as in between the
February 2023 budget report and the October 2023 budget monitoring report, the Council
was able to identify additional savings. Table 4 below highlights the change in reserves
balances:

In order to test the stage of development of the savings included in the MTFP, we reviewed
the supporting documentation for two selected savings, namely:

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

£°000 £°000 £°000
Forecast reserves contribution/usage Table 1 Table 2 Variances
Pension Savings 1,019 1,019 1,019
2023/24 usage 250 150 100
2024/25 contribution Ly 24t 200 Capacity Grid 200 200 0
'6025/26 usage 431 231 200 Table 3: Savings Proposals in 2023/24 Budget

&ble 4: Movement in Reserves from 2023/2l budget report to Q1 budget monitoring report
(Bource: Budget Report for 2023/2% and Q12023/23 budget monitoring report

(@]

\l
Essentially, the Council is forecasting to either increase the contribution to the reserves or
reduce the need to use their reserves. The Council have attributed this to an allocation into
the General Fund from Business Rates and various S31 contributions during the medium term
period.

Local authorities across the country are dealing with issues of over-reliance on reserves to
meet budget gaps, with no headroom or contingencies to mitigate the risks of not delivering
wholly on savings plans. As mentioned in the 2023/2Y4 budget report, the reserves are all the
Council has to fund transformative initiatives, redundancies and any service overspends.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Source: Budget Report for 2023/2!4

Pension contributions are reviewed on a three-yearly basis by the County Council’s
actuaries. The Council’s pension contributions are made up of two elements, the Council’s
employer contribution in service accounts and a central contribution which sits in the Chief
Executive’s budgets. We asked the Council to provide supporting documentation to validate
the assumptions used to derive the forecast savings included in the plan and we could see
that this was supported by strong assumptions including third party verification from the
actuary showing that the saving was actually forecast to materialise to more than had been
input into the MTFP in February 2023. The Council was also able to provide downloads of the
ledger which demonstrated the change in the existing budget to the revised budget which
showed the cost decrease and therefore the forecast saving. This saving makes up
approximately a third of the cumulative medium term gap so to see that is supported by
credible assumptions adds robustness to the medium term position.

The second saving relates to uncollected Council Tax/Business Rates. The Council should
have been writing off this debt on a periodic basis but lacked the resource to do so. In
2022/23, the Council made the decision to engage Capacity Grid by Liberata to collect the
debt. As the debt is not accounted for in the budget, the debt collected by Liberata will
appear as additional income which reduces the savings requirement during the medium
term. We were able to view projections produced by Liberata and therefore able to see that
the saving is based on information produced by a third party. As well as a saving, collection
of this uncollected debt will result in a decrease in the debt on the balance sheet when it
materialises.

0T Wsal| epuaby

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 21



Public

Financial sustainability

The review of these three savings demonstrates that a significant proportion of the Council’s
medium term savings plan is based on robust assumptions supported by third party
documentation. The pensions saving alone makes up £1m of the Council’s £1.6m savings plan
for 2023/2\4.

The real risk surrounds the post 2025/26 environment. The pensions saving makes up the
largest proportion of the Council’'s medium term savings plan and the fund is due to be re-
assessed in three years. The reassessment will have a definitive impact on whether the
Council will be able to make similar size savings after 2025/26.

The review of savings therefore demonstrates a level of strength in the Council’s current
medium term plan. We can see significant progress in the budget setting process in terms of
_'Hcreoseol engagement and progress in terms of presentation of the medium term plan.

owever, we still note issues with transparency surrounding savings identification and
Mevelopment. This was noted in our prior year report. The Council had no savings monitoring
gyrangements in place during 2021/22. In 2022/23, the Council reported savings updates to
Ce Audit, Governance & Standards Committee though there is limited evidence of
meaningful engagement with the savings progress from Members.

We raise an improvement recommendation (see improvement recommendation 1) urging the
Council to ensure that savings delivery is monitored independently of basic budget
monitoring at a corporate level, variances are adequately managed and challenged and the
quality impact of proposed savings is assessed and monitored during and after
implementation to assess whether any quality risks have occurred. Savings should also be
supported with a clear delivery plan.

The importance of clarity surrounding savings is greater emphasised by the fact that the
Council is relying heavily on savings to close its medium term budget gap. Any lack of
delivery on savings increases the Council’s reliance on its reserves balance as is
demonstrated in Table 1. The Council, however, is in a strong position as the largest of its
savings is based on robust assumptions. If the Council were only to deliver the pensions
saving and Capacity Grid saving, it would still be financially sustainable in the medium term
period - this is a much more promising position than many other authorities are in.

Though the Council’s MTFP appears to be predicated on fairly strong ground, it is important
to note that we are basing this assessment on information that is not currently supported by
audited statements of accounts for the past three years - which creates a significant gap in
assurance.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

The entire medium term plan, including the projections surrounding the medium-term gap,
the forecast reserves balance and all budget monitoring information is using data that
cannot be supported by audited financial statements from 2020/21. The issue highlighted in
Statutory Recommendation 1 has the compounding impact of placing a limited level of
assurance on the figures in the medium-term financial plan. The lack of assurance in the
figures included in the budget monitoring reports is further demonstrated by:

* the Council's reluctance to produce a whole-year 2021/22 outturn report (only an M11
report has been produced); and

* the correction to the 2020/21 outturn (which was originally presented in January 2022
and then corrected and presented again in January 2023).

It is for this reason that we find a significant weakness in the Council’s medium term position
and have included this in the statutory recommendation raised (see statutory
recommendation 1). We cannot place assurance on the Council’s stated level of reserves
which links to the budgetary information included in the MTFP meaning we cannot determine
that a significant weakness in arrangements does not exist in regards to the medium term
plan. Once the Council has resolved statutory recommendation 1, the weakness in the
medium term position will gain the validity of audited statements of accounts, therefore
providing the medium term plan with much necessary backing and assurance.

Capital

At 2021/22 budget setting, the Council budgeted to spend £13.323m on capital expenditure
for the year. As noted in the M11 outturn report, there was a significant underspend on the
2020/21 capital programme leading to a request of £4.3m slippage of schemes from 2020/21
to 2021/22. Further schemes were agreed resulting in a total capital budget for 2021/22 of
£15.3m. At M11 of 2021/22, the Council reported £2.7m expenditure against this budget, giving
rise to an £12.6m underspend (which is 82% of the budget).

The 2022/23 budget showed the intention to spend £2.410m on capital. An updated capital
programme was approved in the budget for 2022/23 in February 2023. This increased the
capital programme by £8.126m, which is £5.7m higher than the original budget set in
February 2022. This is due to a number of schemes coming on during the year and a full
review of the MTFP in December 2022 using actual data. The provisional outturn report shows
capital expenditure of £10.266m against the new budget of £13.099m (which is a £2.843m
underspend or 22% of the budget).

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 22

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Financial sustainability

The reports provide significant explanations for the variances which are reasonable
(slippage, re-phasing etc.) but there appears to be weaknesses in the Council’s capital
budget setting process given the level of slippage. The Council have noted that a significant
part of its capital expenditure is related to the fleet which the Council are taking stop gap
measures of refurbishment rather than purchasing pending the Government’s environment
paper being produced and the focus required on Levelling Up Fund projects to ensure
compliance with Government requirements. There was also significant slippage due to
COVID-19 which is starting to be caught up in 2023/24.

Conclusion

The Council’s M11 forecast for 2021/22 noted an estimated underspend position on the
General Fund Revenue Budget. The draft 2022/23 outturn reported noted an estimated
overspend driven by a higher than expected pay award.

The medium term position appears to be reasonably comfortable as the majority of the
savings driving the medium term plan are predicted on robust assumptions that can be
supported by third party evidence.

-UAIthough there is monitoring of the capital programme alongside the revenue budget

(© monitoring, indications are that focus should be on setting realistic capital budgets that

@ allow for sufficient lead time before expenditure is likely to be incurred. Inability to set a
Odrealistic capital budget undermines the Council’s perceived capability to manage its capital

It is, however, important to note that all financial information being used to assess the
Council’s financial sustainability are based on figures that are not supported by audited
financial statements since 2019/20. It is for this reason that we find a significant weakness in
the Council’s medium term position and have included this in the statutory recommendation

©budget and deliver its growth plans.

The difficulty in management of the capital programme will become increasingly challenging
given the current high level of inflation. We have raised an improvement recommendation
(see improvement recommendation 2] in this area. We acknowledge that capital
programmes are complex and affected by procurement, public consultation, funding and
financing considerations, and potentially planning permissions. The Council must consider
the realism in its original budget and consider the prior year outturn when setting the
successive year’s budget.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

raised (see statutory recommendation 1). We cannot place assurance on the Council’s
stated level of reserves which links to the budgetary information included in the MTFP
meaning we cannot determine that a significant weakness in arrangements does not exist in
regards to the medium term plan. Once the Council has resolved statutory recommendation
1, the weakness in the medium term position will gain the validity of audited statements of
accounts, therefore providing the medium term plan with much necessary backing and
assurance.

We raise four improvement recommendations relating to savings, capital management and
the budget setting process.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 23

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improvement recommendations

g Financial sustainability
Improvement Recommendation 1 Savings
The Council should ensure that:
* stakeholders are consulted during the development of savings plans (depending on the nature of the saving, stakeholders could include
local residents, service users or local businesses);
* savings delivery is monitored independently of basic budget monitoring at a corporate level;
* variances from plans are adequately challenged and mitigated;
=) * the quality impact of proposed savings is assessed and monitored during and after implementation to assess whether any quality risks
Q have occurred.
«Q
® .
~ Audit year 2021/22 and 2022/23
o
Whg/impoct At present, there is no evidence of external stakeholder consultation for savings included in the medium term financial plan Liberate
although there has been a feedback form in the Savings Proposal Document. At present, there is no way to tell that the savings agreed at
budget setting are the same savings delivered at outturn. Members and residents therefore do not have assurance that the Council has
managed to achieve the saving in the area highlighted at budget setting. There is currently no project management arrangements
supporting the savings programme and no independent monitoring of savings outside of budget monitoring arrangements. Without the
appropriate supporting architecture, the Council risks mismanaging the savings programme and therefore risks potentially failing to deliver
the savings.
Management Comments The Council runs a two Tranche budget process. Given the expected lateness of the Provisional Local Government Settlement, there

are no service based savings in Tranche 1 of the 2024/5 budget process. Consultation will be taking place with Stakeholders in late
January/early February once the final budget position is known.

Wider savings monitoring will be undertaken by the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee on a quarterly basis, rather than
half yearly, to ensure plans are being delivered as agreed.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 24

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improvement recommendations

g Financial sustainability
Improvement Recommendation 2 Capital
The Council should review and evaluate how it sets it capital budget. Consideration of this will enable it to set more realistic budgets going
forward.
Audit year 2021/22 and 2022/23
—_—
J
g Why/impact The Council has a track record of significant under-delivery of its annual capital budgets. Although there is monitoring of the capital
o)) programme alongside the revenue budget monitoring, indications are that focus should be turned to setting realistic capital budgets that
~ allow for sufficient lead time before expenditure is likely to be incurred. Inability to set a realistic capital budget undermines the authority’s
- perceived capability to manage its capital budget and deliver its growth plans. The Council must consider the realism in its original budget
and consider the prior year outturn when setting the successive year’s budget.
quqgement Comments The Council is setting up an internal support network to ensure the delivery of the Levelling Up Fund budgets which amount to £16m

over the next 2 years (the vast majority of the Capital Programme).

Wider Capital Programme budgets will be reviewed for deliverability as Tranche 2 of the Budget and where possible will link to
strategic priorities.

A Governance Group, linked to the new Programme Management arrangements, will monitor and challenge internal delivery.
Quarterly monitoring will give wider narrative on capital programme delivery than is presently the case to aid understanding.

It is important to note that there has also been slippage in capital schemes due to the impact of C-19 on materials/contractors
during the period referenced in this report. Another significant factor is the awaited Government paper (Environment Act) that
impacts the refuse fleet.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 25

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improvement recommendations

@ Financial sustainability

Improvement Recommendation 3

The Council should include trend analysis and extrapolation, risk and sensitivity analysis and evidence of alternative proposals and
scenarios considered and the corresponding impact in the budget setting process.

Audit year

2021/22 and 2022/23

Why/impact

There also continues to be limited evidence of trend analysis and extrapolation, sensitivity analysis or alternative proposals and scenarios
being considered in the budget setting process. While this is not a significant weakness, the Council could enhance the budget setting
process by including scenario modelling and presenting to Members to support their decision-making process.

Z/ abed

Management Comments

The Council has purchased the LG Futures Benchmarking tool to identify areas where service costs are higher/significantly higher
than their “Audit” Families. This data is being used as the starting point for savings analysis required to balance the budget in
Tranche 2 following the Local Government Financial Settlement. Part of the ongoing work will be, linked to performance data,
alternative delivery methods.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

no
o

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improvement recommendations

@ Financial sustainability

Improvement Recommendation &

The Council should include greater evidence of external consultation in the budget setting process.

Audit year

2021/22 and 2022/23

Why/impact

There continues to be limited evidence of external engagement in the budget setting process. There is no mention of external consultations
feeding into the 2021/22, 2022/23 or 2023/24 budgets.

Management Comments

e abed

The Council runs a two Tranche budget process. Given the expected lateness of the Provisional Local Government Settlement, there
are no service based savings in Tranche 1 of the budget. Consultation will be taking place with Stakeholders in late January/early
February for the 2024/25 budget and MTFP once the final budget position is known.

A feedback form was included in the 2023/% “savings proposal” document. This is the first time in recent years that feedback has
been sought.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 27

0T Wsal| epuaby



Governance

We considered how the local authority:

* monitors and assesses risk and gains assurance over
the effective operation of internal controls, including
arrangements to prevent and detect fraud

approaches and carries out its annual budget setting
process

ensures effective processes and systems are in place
to ensure budgetary control; communicate relevant,
accurate and timely management information
(including non-financial information); supports its
statutory financial reporting; and ensures corrective
action is taken where needed, including in relation to
significant partnerships

) abed

* ensures it makes properly informed decisions,
supported by appropriate evidence and allowing for
challenge and transparency. This includes
arrangements for effective challenge from those
charged with governance/Audit, Standards &
Governance Committee

* monitors and ensures appropriate standards, such as
meeting legislative/regulatory requirements and
standards in terms of staff and board member
behaviour (such as gifts and hospitality or
declaration/conflicts of interests) and where it
procures and commissions services.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Risk management

The Council has made significant progress in risk
management arrangements since our 2020/21 report. In this
report, we had documented insufficient arrangements in
terms of a lack of formal update reports or presentation of
risk registers to Members until July 2022. We found a
significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements
surrounding risk management for 2020/21.

In our 2020/21 report, we noted limited progress since the
review performed by Zurich Municipal which had been
commissioned in response to a ‘Limited Assurance’ internal
audit opinion into risk management arrangements from
2018/19. A follow-up review was carried out by Internal Audit
in March 2021 (Final Report June 2021) with the purpose of
identifying what progress had been made against the Risk
Management Strategies. At that time there was a lack of
evidence that the actions within the Risk Management
Strategies had been fully completed and embedded within
the Councils and therefore a no assurance opinion was
issued.

The lack of appropriate arrangements for risk management
is evident in the Audit, Standards and Governance
committee meeting minutes and papers during 2021/22. Our
review showed that Members were typically only receiving
verbal updates on the Corporate Risk Register (CRR) with
very little information on how risks were being managed. It
was impossible for Members to have assurance that risks
were properly being identified and appropriately managed.
For example, at the October 2021 meeting, a verbal update
was provided in respect of the CRR but there was no
mention of the actual risks on the CRR or any evidence of
engagement with the risks from the minutes. At this point,
work was ongoing with Zurich Municipal.

Public

In March 2022 a further follow up review was carried out by
internal audit which concluded ‘no assurance’ regarding the
Council’s risk management arrangements. This means that
no assurance could be given on the system of internal
control as significant weaknesses in the design and/or
operation of the key controls could result in failure to
achieve the organisation’s objectives in the area of review.
The basis of this opinion was due to the failure to produce
an action plan. Internal audit acknowledged that a risk
management system was in place and that there were areas
of good practice but that this was not uniform across the
Council and effective risk management needed to be
embedded and driven by senior leadership.

The new ‘Overall Risk and Corporate Governance Report’
format was presented to Audit, Standards & Governance
Committee members at the April 2022 meeting. Officers
announced that a plan had been agreed with CMT and
implementation had already commenced. Quarterly officer
Risk boards were established with each department
nominating a representative to attend these boards. There
was an acknowledgement that some of the momentum in
terms of risks had been lost over 2021/22 and this was
partially ascribed to capacity constraints in the finance
team. However, there was hope that a more embedded risk
management approach would be taken forward at the
organisation.

The Council’s new formal ‘Risk Management Framework’
was presented to the July 2022 Audit, Standards &
Governance Committee. This framework outlines how the
organisation identifies strategic risks, understands them,
records them within the risk management system.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 28

0T Wsal| epuaby



Governance

Risks are assessed using a 3x3 impact assessment matrix
and then the scores determine whether a risk is ‘Red’,
‘Amber’ or ‘Green’ (RAG). Members also approved the
definition of how risks move from being ‘departmental’ or
‘corporate’ in nature. To escalate the risk ‘must have
significant impact on Councils finances, be cross-
departmental in nature and/or result in serious reputational
damage.’

From our review of Audit, Standards & Governance
committee meetings and risk management reports, it is clear
see the progress the authority has made with regard to
Ee Corporate Risk Register and the engagement with risk
@hanagement at the organisation. The improvement in the
cauolitg of the reports from April 2021 to July 2023 is
qlioteworthg. There is also demonstrable improvement in the
evel of Member and officer engagement with the Corporate
Risk Registers.

This improvement has also been recognised by internal
audit. In April 2023, internal audit issued a ‘moderate
assurance’ opinion which indicates that the system of
control is generally sound, however, some of the expected
controls are not in place and/or not operating effectively.

The latest publicly available Corporate Risk Register showed
13 risks. This is an appropriate number to allow for
meaningful engagement with each risk. Councils must be
cautious on reporting too many risks and therefore
disincentivizing substantive scrutiny of each risk.

The register also included RAG ratings, a description of each
risk and the mitigating factors in place to manage each risk.
This is a significant improvement from the April 2021 where
the Council was providing purely verbal updates of the risk
register with no meaningful descriptions or any mention of
mitigating factors.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Due to the significance of the deficiencies in 2021/22, we
have found there to be a significant weakness in the
Council’s arrangements for risk management in that year.
As this is a combined 2021/22 and 2022/23 report, we must
also comment on the arrangements for 2022/23. Due to the
improvement in the position from 2021/22 to 2022/23, we do
not find there to be a significant weakness in the Council’s
arrangements for 2022/23 but raise improvement
recommendations. This demonstrates a marked
improvement in the arrangements from 2021/22 to 2022/23
which is worth noting. There is, however, room for
improvement (see improvement recommendation 5).

Internal audit

The internal audit service at Bromsgrove District Council is
provided by Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service
(WIASS). This is hosted by Worcester City Council and
provides internal audit to a number of local authorities in
Worcestershire. The service was effective during 2021/22
and 2022/23 and assesses the effectiveness of internal
controls, reporting regularly to Audit, Standards &
Governance Committee.

The Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 was presented to the July
2021 Audit, Standards & Governance Committee.
Operational progress against the plan is closely monitored
by the Head of the Internal Shared Service and is reported
to the Shared Service’s Client Officer Group which
comprises of the Section 151 officers from the client
organisations and to the Audit, Standards & Governance
Committee on a quarterly basis. Regular reporting to Audit,
Standards & Governance Committee provides sufficient
assurance for Members to be able to assess whether internal
controls are effective.

Public

The Internal Audit Annual Opinion for 2021/22 was presented
in July 2022 alongside the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan.
Internal audit does not give an allocated assurance opinion
but provides a commentary.

For 2021/22, internal audit concluded that ‘the internal
control arrangements during 2021/22 managed the principal
risks in a number of areas, but not all, and can be
reasonably relied upon to ensure that the Council’s
corporate objectives have been met in the main’. 71% of
audits undertaken for 2021/22 received an assurance
allocation of ‘moderate’ or above. Internal audit delivered a
sufficient amount of its annual plan, delivering 93% of
planned audits.

The Internal Audit Opinion for 2022/23 concluded that 27%
of the audits undertaken which received an assurance
allocated returned a ‘moderate’ assurance or above but
there remain several assurances to be confirmed.
Indications are that the remaining will fall into these
categories. This is a significant drop from 2021/22 but it is
due to a few reviews waiting final sign off or still ongoing
rather than indicative of weaknesses in the control
environment. Internal audit delivered a sufficient amount of
its annual plan, again delivering 88% of planned audits.

Internal audit are required to be externally assessed at least
once every five years to ensure compliance with Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The Worcestershire
Internal Audit Shared Service (WIASS) was last externally
assessed six years ago. It was due to be assessed in 2022
but was deferred due to potential changes to the shared
services arrangements with the County Council. The
partnership therefore decided to pause the external
assessment until there was greater certainty surrounding the
arrangements. The partnership have set a date in January
2024 for an external assessment.

29

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

0T Wsal| epuaby



Governance

We include an improvement recommendation emphasizing
the importance of undergoing the external assessment (see
improvement recommendation 6). When this is complete, the
improvement recommendation can be resolved.

Internal audit provide the Council’s arrangements for the
prevention and detection of fraud. Undertaking independent
investigations into allegations of fraud and irregularity
forms part of the key aims and objectives of internal audit’s
annual plans. Through the internal audit service, the Council
is part of the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) which is a data
matching exercise conducted by the Cabinet Office to
;Jassist in the prevention and detection of fraud.

he Council have a whistleblowing policy in place but this
was last updated in 2017. We raise an improvement

commendation (see improvement recommendation 8] to
recommend that this is regularly reviewed and updated as
appropriate.

Audit committee effectiveness

The purpose of the Audit, Standards & Governance
Committee is to provide an independent and high-level
focus on the adequacy of governance, risk and control
arrangements at the Council. The Committee’s role in
ensuring that there is sufficient assurance over governance,
risk and control gives greater confidence to those charged
with governance that those arrangements are effective. We
recognise that since the May 2023 elections the make-up of
the Committee has changed. We make these comments
irrespective of specific make-up and rather of the Audit,
Standards & Governance Committee in theory.

There are no statutory requirements that determine the
composition of the Audit, Standards & Governance
Committee.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

The Audit, Standards & Governance Committee at
Bromsgrove District Council comprises twelve members.
CIPFA’s recommendation in Audit, Standards & Governance
Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and
Police (2022] is authorities should strive to have no more
than eight members, the Council is therefore above the
recommendation. We raise an improvement
recommendation (see improvement recommendation 7)
encouraging the Council to reconsider the number of
members on the Audit, Standards & Governance Committee.
CIPFA recognises that committees of this size should allow
for sufficient breadth of experience but is small enough to
allow the training and development of a dedicated group.

CIPFA guidance emphasises the importance of the
separation of executive roles and the membership of the
Audit, Standards & Governance Committee. Where an
authority has a cabinet system of governance, as at
Bromsgrove District Council, including a member of the
cabinet on the committee is discouraged. We have
compared the membership of the Audit, Standards &
Governance Committee with the members of the Cabinet to
ensure a clear separation. We can confirm that no members
of the Cabinet are also members of the Audit, Standards &
Governance Committee, in line with the guidance.

There are currently no independent members on Bromsgrove
District Council’s Audit, Standards & Governance
Committee. CIPFA guidance and the Redmond Review
(2020) recommend the committee includes two co-opted
independent members. We recommend that the Council
considers the merits of appointing appropriately qualified
independent members to the Audit, Standards &
Governance Committee (see improvement recommendation
7) noting that there has been discussion of this at Audit,
Standards & Governance Committee and the challenges of
the availability of suitably qualified individuals and
questions over remuneration.

Public

The injection of an external view can often bring a new
approach to committee discussions and provides an
element of continuity outside the political cycle (though this
would be more salient at an authority that had annual
changes/elections).

To discharge its responsibilities effectively, CIPFA guidance
recommends the committee meet at least four times a year.
Bromsgrove District Council reiterate this by including in the
Constitution that the Committee will meet at least four times
a year. Bromsgrove District Council’s Audit, Standards &
Governance Committee met three times in 2021/22 and
seven times in 2022/23. We include the failure to meet four
times in our improvement recommendation 8 but recognise
that the Council have actioned this recommendation for
2022/23. The Council should continue to ensure that the
Audit, Standards & Governance Committee meets at least
four times every year.

It is important for Audit, Standards & Governance
Committee members to maintain an apolitical approach.
During our review, we noted that it was customary for Audit,
Standards & Governance Committee members to be asked
if whipping arrangements were in place for Audit, Standards
& Governance Committee meetings. This is considered to be
unusual for Audit, Standards & Governance Committees as
members are encouraged to view the Audit, Standards &
Governance Committee as a non-political non-scrutiny
committee that is concerned with the operations of the
authority. It is important that a political culture is not
fostered at Audit, Standards & Governance Committee
meetings (see improvement recommendation 7).

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

0T Wsal| epuaby



Governance

Organisational capacity and capability

There is evidence of a lack of capacity in the organisation
having a detrimental impact on operational delivery. In the
February 2022 budget, the Section 25 Statement noted the
impact of COVID-19 on the capacity of the management
team to deliver change, efficiencies and associated savings
as a key risk.

Turnover of staff at the Council remained high during
2021/22 and 2022/23. As commented in internal audit’s
annual report for 2022/23, this has created challenges
within services especially in finance. The loss of staff and
perience has impacted the finance team significantly
@long with the continuing development of the finance
Mystem implementation.

\l

~pternal audit commented in their Annual Report that
2022/23 was a demanding year due to staff turnover and
difficulties encountered recruiting to vacant posts.

In September 2023, we reported to Audit, Standards &
Governance Committee the challenges we were continuing
to experience in terms of obtaining sufficient appropriate
evidence to support our audit. We decided to redirect our
audit team to other work as insufficient working papers had
been provided and those that had been provided were not
of the expected quality. We attribute some of the difficulties
experienced here to a lack of capacity in the finance team.

There is high turnover of senior staff. Two of the three
statutory officer roles are currently being fulfilled by interim
arrangements. In January 2021, Full Council appointed a
new Section 151 officer (Chief Finance Officer). After 18
months in post, that officer left the Council and a new
Interim Section 151 officer was appointed in June 2022 for a
period of 12 months. In June 2023, the Council voted to
extend the Interim Officer’s appointment for a further six
months until 22 December 2023.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

In September 2023, following the retirement of the Chief
Executive (Head of Paid Service), the Council appointed the
Deputy Chief Executive to the Interim Chief Executive
position in an acting up arrangement until the new Chief
Executive was recruited and in post.

To backfill the Deputy Chief Executive role, there is an
internally appointed Interim Deputy Chief Executive in post
currently as well.

The prevalence of interim and acting up arrangements has
resulted in capacity challenges. The Council are aware of
this. In the 2023/24 budget, loss of key personnel was
identified as one of the core risks in the MTFP. The average
age of staff at the Council is 49 and approximately 10% of
Council staff are interim/temporary arrangements.

There is evidence of the Council putting effort toward this
with the development of the Workforce Strategy. It is,
however, important to note that the Council is operating in
an extremely difficult environment. There is an acute
recruitment issue across Gloucestershire/Worcestershire
and succession planning is a necessity for key roles. Staff
retention and recruitment remained an area of concern for
local government in the West Midlands, including for
Bromsgrove District Council. The Council have recognised
the need to review how best to attract and retain skilled and
qualified staff moving forward.

Bromsgrove District Council is also a Council that has
serious and pervasive weaknesses in its financial accounts
processes due to the flawed ledger implementation. This has
also led to a failure to meet statutory reporting deadlines
and a failure to produce accounts and therefore close
external audit opinions. The combination of the turnover and
capacity constraints coupled with the formidable task of
rectifying the issues with the ledger implementation has led
us to conclude that there is a significant weakness in the
Council’s arrangements with regard to organisational
capacity and capability.

Public

We are concerned that the Council will find improvement
extremely difficult given the high turnover of individuals at
all levels of the organisation and over-reliance on specific
individuals resulting in low retention. The fact that two of the
statutory officers are interim arrangements also leaves a
gap at the top of the organisation. Without effective long-
term leadership in Councils with shared service
orrongements, the improvement to the stotutorg reporting
position is likely to be extremely difficult. High turnover and
lack of capability and capacity in the finance team is only
exacerbating this issue.

We have therefore identified a significant weakness in
arrangements with regard to organisational capacity and
capability (see key recommendation 1). The Council now
have a Workforce Strategy in place which is a positive step
in the right direction. Effort must now be directed toward
embedding the strategy and action plan. This was similarly
acknowledged by the LGA in the peer review. We also
acknowledge that this is extremely challenging in the current
local government environment and the difficulties
surrounding workforce recruitment and retention. These
challenges appear to be having a particularly acute impact
at the Council.

Leadership and decision-making

Bromsgrove District Council is a district council that
operates with a Cabinet system. The Council’s governance
arrangements are explained in the Annual Governance
Statement (AGS) and the Constitution sets out how the
Council operates, how decisions are made and the
procedures which are followed to ensure that it is efficient,
transparent and accountable to local residents.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 31

0T Wsal| epuaby



Governance

There is evidence of senior officer demonstrating transparency and openness in decision-
making and no evidence of inappropriate tone from the top. Throughout our interview
process for this report, we noted that officers were engaged and extremely helpful in terms of
providing evidence and documentation.

This was noted in the LGA peer review where it noted that 'the organisational culture is one
where the staff feel supported and empowered to bring forward improvements. They are
happy and want to help the council to respond to the needs of the different communities.”

Conclusion

e have found a significant weakness in the Council’s governance arrangements giving rise
(o a statutory recommendation (see statutory recommendation 1). This is relating specifically
®o the failure to produce full financial statements for 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23. The
~Jouncil is significantly behind its statutory requirement to produce financial statements. This
Roes not allow accountability and transparency for the taxpayers of Bromsgrove. In our
view, this is an unacceptable failure to comply with statutory duties.

We have also found a new significant weakness giving rise to a key recommendation relating
to organisational capacity and capability (see key recommendation 1). There is evidence of a
lack of capacity in the organisation having a detrimental impact on operational delivery. The
average age of staff at the Council is 49 and approximately 10% of Council staff are
interim/temporary arrangements. Two of the three statutory officer roles are currently being
fulfilled by interims. We are concerned that the Council will find improvement extremely
difficult given the high turnover of individuals at all levels of the organisation and over-
reliance on specific individuals resulting in low retention. Without effective long-term
leadership, the improvement to the statutory reporting position is likely to be extremely
difficult. High turnover and lack of capability and capacity in the finance team is only
exacerbating this issue.

Outside of the financial ledger issues, the Council’s governance arrangements have
undergone significant improvement since our 2020/21 reporting. We have seen improvement
in risk management arrangements with the return to in-year reporting, though we raise an
improvement recommendation (see improvement recommendation 5).

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Public

The Council has an effective internal audit service in place (though see improvement
recommendation 6). There is also room for improvement in Audit, Standards & Governance
Committee arrangements (see improvement recommendation 7) and counter fraud (see
improvement recommendation 8).

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

32

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improvement recommendations

Governance
Improvement Recommendation 5 Risk management
a) The Council should clearly define its risk appetite in the Risk Management Framework;
b) We recommend that for each risk reported to Audit, Standards & Governance or Cabinet for each risk reported:
*  relevant key controls and sources of assurance are set out
*  they are RAG-rated, including impact and likelihood
*  they are mapped to corporate objectives
=) *  they are allocated to a named senior officer
Q *  direction of travel for each key risk.

Q c) Internal audit have highlighted important weaknesses in the Council’s risk management framework in their latest report from April 2023.
@ We include in our recommendation that the Council direct effort toward working with internal audit to resolve their recommendations.
\l
© .

Audit year 2022/23

Whg/impact At present, the Council’s Risk Management Framework does not define the Council’s risk appetite. Greater definition can enhance the
quality of the framework. The Council’s Corporate Risk Register (CRR) is not clearly accessible to Members. Greater clarity would enhance
Members’ ability to gain assurance that risk at the organisation is being appropriately managed.

Management Comments The high risk Recommendation actions of the Internal Audit Update Report have been actioned apart from understanding Risk

appetites of the Councils. Following the Strategic Priority setting sessions have taken place at both Councils, Risk Appetite sessions
will be run for the Executive to link then risk appetites in the delivery of those priorities. These sessions will be externally facilitated
and will be delivered before the end of the financial year.

The Corporate and Departmental Risk Register is reported to and available in Audit Governance and Standards Committee papers.
The background documentation is available on the 4Risk system.

A specific location will be sourced for the wider Member community to access the Risk Register.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 33

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improvement recommendations

08 abed

Governance

Improvement The internal audit service should be externally assessed to ensure the it is compliant with

Recommendation 6 PSIAS.

Audit year 2022/23

Whg/impoct Internal audit are required to be externally assessed at least once every five years to ensure
compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The Worcestershire Internal
Audit Shared Service (WIASS) was last externally assessed six years ago. It was due to be
assessed in 2022 but was deferred due potential changes to the shared services
arrangements with the County Council. The partnership therefore decided to pause the
external assessment until there was greater certainty surrounding the arrangements. The
partnership have set a date in January 2024 for an external assessment. When this is
complete, the improvement recommendation can be resolved.

quqgement This assessment is due to take place in January 2024 and the results will be fed back via

Comments the Internal Audit reports.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 34

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improvement recommendations

Governance

Improvement Audit Committee

Recommendation 7 *  The Council should consider the merits of appointing two appropriately qualified independent members to the Audit, Standards &
Governance Committee.

Members must ensure that the Audit, Standards & Governance Committee maintains its apolitical nature.

The Council should consider the number of members on the Audit, Standards & Governance Committee. CIPFA recommends eight
members and BDC’s currently stands at twelve.

The Council must ensure that the Audit, Standards & Governance committee meets at least four times per year.

Audit year 2021/22 and 2022/23

Whg/impoct There are currently no independent members on Bromsgrove District Council’s Audit, Standards & Governance Committee. CIPFA guidance
and the Redmond Review (2020) recommend the committee includes two-coopted independent members. We recommend that the Council
considers the merits of appointing appropriately qualified independent members to the Audit, Governance & Standards Committee. The
injection of an external view can often bring a new approach to committee discussions and provides an element of continuity outside the
political cycle (though this would be more salient at an authority that had annual changes/elections). It is important for audit committee
members to maintain an apolitical approach.

During our review, we noted that it was customary for Audit, Standards & Governance Committee members to be asked if whipping
arrangements were in place for Audit, Standards & Governance Committee meetings. This is considered to be unusual for audit committees
as members are encouraged to view the audit committee as a non-political non-scrutiny committee that is concerned with the operations of
the authority. It is important that a political culture is not fostered at audit committee meetings.

CIPFA guidance recommends audit committees be made up of eight members. Bromsgrove currently has twelve members.

In 2021/22, the Audit, Standards & Governance committee met 3 times. CIPFA recommends meeting at least four times a year.

T8 abed

Management Comments The Council did have an independent Audit Committee Member, but this has not been recently. This will be reviewed, and an
Independent Member sought.
We understand the point that is being made on the apolitical nature of the committee in relation to whipping arrangements and will
take advice on the appropriate solution.
The number of members on the committee was increased to 12 due to quorum not being reached. This has not been the case since
the May 2023 elections and the numbers will be reviewed.
Until the Accounts issues are resolved, the Committee meets 6 times a year.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improvement recommendations

Governance
Improvement Counter fraud
Recommendation 8 The Council should update its whistleblowing policy every one to three years.
Audit year 2021/22 and 2022/23
g Why/impact The Council have a whistleblowing policy in place though this was last updated in November
«Q 2010. This means the policy is unlikely to be consistent with legislative changes regarding
@ whistleblowing arrangements since 2010. The Council is encouraged to review its
% whistleblowing policy to ensure it reflects the letter and spirit of the law.
Management The Whistleblowing policy will be updated before the end of the financial year.
Comments

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

0T Wsal| epuaby

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 36



Public

Improving economy, efficiency and

effectiveness

&%

We considered how the local authority:

* uses financial and performance information to assess
performance to identify areas for improvement

evaluates the services it provides to assess
performance and identify areas for improvement

ensures it delivers its role within significant
partnerships and engages with stakeholders it has
identified, in order to assess whether it is meeting its
objectives

€8 abed

where it commissions or procures services assesses
whether it is realising the expected benefits.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Performance

The Council Plan 2019-23 was built around five long term
strategic purposes underpinned by a set of key priorities.
The strategic purposes are:

* Runand grow a successful business

*  Work & financial independence

* Affordable & sustainable homes

* Lliving independent, active and healthy Lives

*  Communities which are safe, well maintained and green
The priorities set out in the Council Plan 2019-23 are:
* Economic development and regeneration

Skills for the future

* Improved health and wellbeing

* Abalanced housing market

* Reducing crime & disorder

* Financial Stability

* Sustainability

*  High Quality Services

* Green Thread

In June 2022, the Cabinet agreed the Council Plan
Addendum 2022/23. The aim of the Council Plan Addendum
was to incorporate the impacts of COVID-19 into the old
Council Plan 2019-23 and write it such that it would work
alongside the original Council Plan.

The Council Plan Addendum priorities are the same but is
designed to provide an intermediary position ahead of a full
review of the Council's long term priorities in 2024,

As documented in our report for 2020/21, there was no
performance reporting for 2021/22. The significant weakness
for 2021/22 therefore remains.

In 2022/23, the first ‘Finance and Performance Report’ for
Quarter 1 was presented to 6th October 2022 Cabinet.
Appendix E of the report presented the Strategic Priorities
and Performance Measures. The report was rudimentary in
nature, containing no information on how performance
indicators were derived and inconsistent comparator data
for Members to be able to assess whether the Council’s
performance against a target, compared to previous years
or against other authorities.

The second performance report for 2022/23 went to
November 2022 Cabinet. The report improved marginally in
terms of numbers of measures presented but there
continued to be significant gaps in terms of detail which
hinders Members’ ability to have assurance that the Council
is performing in line with expectation. The Quarter 3 report
was presented in March 2023 and Quarter 4 report in June
2023. The Council was able to present a Quarter 1
performance report for 2023/2% to September 2023
Cabinet.

In March 2023, the LGA performed a peer review of
Bromsgrove concluded that there was “a disconnect
between what the Council wants to deliver and achieve and
the activities the organisation is pursuing.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 37

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improving economy, efficiency and

effectiveness

A lack of specific clarity about the desired outcomes from
the delivery of the priorities means that priorities are open to
interpretation. Clearer communication to staff on the
priorities and the expected outcomes backed up with a
robust performance management framework to track
progress should help to ensure that organisational effort is
invested in the right places.”

Ultimately, the Council has returned to in-year performance
reporting. This is a significant improvement from the 2021/22
position where no performance reporting had taken place
since 2018. There is still, however, significant room for
;meprovement in the quality of the performance reports.

‘g\/e lift the significant weakness for 2022/23 due to the return
o in-year reporting but we would like to emphasise that the
uality of the Council’s performance reports is low and
needs significant improvement. We raise an improvement
recommendation (see improvement recommendation 11). The
Council clearly has a lot of meaningful data but it is
currently not presented in the most accessible format to be
able to properly interpret the information and therefore does
not drive behaviour and actions. There is also no standard
expectation. The data shows what is happening but does not
assess whether this performance is ‘good’ or ‘bad.” The
Council should put effort toward determining what quality of
service it would like to deliver, put arrangements in place to
review that regularly and then report against that position.
The current performance reports demonstrate a good
foundation to build on but there is room for improvement.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Procurement

Robust and compliant procurement is key in the delivery of
public services as organisations need to meet statutory
obligations and deliver value for money for taxpayers.

Part 6 of the Council’s Constitution details the Officer
Scheme of Delegations. The Council’s Constitution clarifies
that key decisions with significant financial implications for
the authority are Cabinet level decisions with a combined
financial spend (either as a single item or for the length of
the contract) of £60,000 or more.

The Council has Contract Procedure Rules though these
have not been updated since October 2016. We raise an
improvement recommendation urging the Council to review
the Contract Procedure Rules annually (see improvement
recommendation 12).

In June 2022, internal audit issued a ‘Limited’ assurance
opinion surrounding the procurement service at Bromsgrove
District Council. The review found multiple areas within the
procurement rules which were not being complied with and
there was limited communication with the procurement
service for support and advice - although it was
acknowledged that there had been a lot of effort on the side
of the procurement team to communicate with the service
areas through training and other means. The subsequent
follow up reports tracking implementation of the
recommendations raised showed good progress from
procurement and by June 2023 all recommendations had
been implemented.

In spring 2024, the new Procurement Bill is expected to be
introduced. The Bill aims to deliver better value for UK public
procurement by driving value for money decision-making
and innovation.

In July 2023, the Bromsgrove District Cabinet was provided

with assurance by officers that the Council had already put
measures in place to meet the majority of the requirements
of the new legislation. Some of the measures already in
place include the “No Contract, No Order” procurement
regime which was implemented on the TechOne system on 1
April 2023. This requires a purchase order to be linked to a
contract in order to be raised therefore mitigating the risk
that the Council is spending money with suppliers without
having appropriate contracts in place. Other measures
include requiring all suppliers to be approved by
procurement and payments teams, all monthly spending
above £600 to be published on the Council’s website and
public reporting of the Contracts Register. The Procurement
team are also available for monthly meetings with Heads of
Service to ensure monitoring of what services are procuring
so they can check compliance with the “No Contract, No
Order” regime. Procurement training is also already
provided to teams on request and there is a dedicated
Procurement team page on the Council’s website.

The Council also maintain a Procurement Pipeline based on
the contracts register which provides a forward look of
potential contract opportunities and highlights when existing
contracts are due to expire.

The pipeline enables proper planning of procurement
processes to ensure the Council is maximising on contract
opportunities.

The Council received feedback from local businesses in 2023
that the Council’s high procurement requirements acted as a
barrier for them to bid for work directly. The Council
recognised this and acknowledged that it would investigate
ways to encourage bids within a risk-managed framework.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 38

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improving economy, efficiency and

effectiveness

This is particularly important given one of the goals of the
new Procurement Bill is to open up Council procurements to
new entrants such as small businesses and social enterprises
so that they could compete for and win more public
contracts.

The procurement function has undergone significant change
in the last year and a half and improved significantly as is
demonstrated by the journey from the internal audit report
from June 2022.

There is, however, room for improvement. At present, the
ocurement team does not report on waivers to committee
devel. We recommend that the Council report on waivers (in
‘%rms of numbers and value of waivers raised) to the Audit,
overnance & Standards Committee at least quarterly. This
n ensure that senior leadership, Members and the public
are aware of the level of waiver use (see improvement
recommendation 12).

The Contracts Register is managed on the Proactis system
and mirrored on the TechOne system where spend on
contracts is visible. Both systems provide alerts to
procurement and contract managers when contracts are
nearing expiry, typically three to six months before, and the
procurement team contact the department to see what they
are planning to do. The Council therefore have a reasonable
level of assurance that the Contracts Register is kept up to
date as it is automatically flagged by the system.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Partnerships

Partnership working is central to the delivery of many local
authority services. The Council maintains strong partnership
arrangements with key stakeholders and has continued to
do so during 2021/22 and 2022/23.

The Council works closely with its statutory partners,
commissioned providers, private businesses, community and
the voluntary sector to perform its responsibilities.

The most obvious partnership-type arrangement in place at
Bromsgrove is the shared services arrangement with
Redditch Borough Council. This has been in place for a
number of years and continues to serve both authorities well.
This was commented on in the LGA Peer Review from March
2023 which noted that the shared service arrangement was
“working well across both councils. It is commendable that
whilst each council retains political and democratic
sovereignty, people see themselves as working for one
organisation and are committed to serving the residents of
both Councils.”

At the request of the Member Support Steering Group a lot of
the training is taking place jointly in 2023/24 with Redditch
Borough Council. The aim is to achieve efficiency savings
and provides opportunities for Members to network with
Councillors from another authority. However, where
Members did not feel joint training was appropriate,
separate sessions are being held (e.g. the Council's Overview
and Scrutiny training session is being delivered to Redditch
Members only). This indicates there is a positive contribution
to engagement and collaboration across both authorities in
the shared services structure.

In the Council Plan 2019-23 addendum, the Council
acknowledges that it cannot deliver all of its priorities on its

own, considerable support and input from partner
organisations is needed if priorities are to be successfully
delivered. The Council categorizes its role in delivery of its
priorities as either:

* Lead - to be the lead organisation in the delivery of the
activity/project that delivers the priority

* Participant - to be involved with partner agencies who
will be leading the activity/project that delivers the
priority

* Influence - to work collaboratively with partner agencies
to persuade them to take a particular course of action

This delineation is helpful for demarcating the Council’s
responsibilities in particular projects/activities and therefore
clearly defining the limitations of their accountability.

Partnership working is a specific area of focus for both
Councils, led by the Chief Executive. Both councils bring
together organisations from all sectors as community
leaders and key members of their local strategic
partnerships (LSPs), the Bromsgrove Partnership and the
Redditch Partnership, as well as the emerging locall
‘Collaboratives’.

The LSPs each act as a single body that brings together
organisations from the public, private and voluntary and
community sectors to improve the quality of life for people in
their area. Each provides a forum capable of collaborative
leadership and co-ordination to enable the sharing of
information, resources, and effort to better understand and
meet the needs and aspirations of local communities. The
LSPs enable local organisations to come together and
address issues that are important to people living, working,
and visiting in the areas.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 39

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improving economy, efficiency and

effectiveness

Benefits realisation

In our report for 2020/21, we found a significant weakness in
the Council’s arrangements for managing major projects
and ensuring the intended benefits from major projects are
realised. Since our report, the Council has made significant
progress in their management of projects/programmes.

In October 2022, the Council produced a Project
Management Framework. The Framework creates the
expectation for each project to have a sponsor, project
manager, business case, risk assessment and project
—@porting. The move came as part of the Council’s efforts to
Wrganize appropriate governance arrangements in order to
ddress the financial challenges and ensure all projects are
curing value for money through appropriate management
ond organisation.

In early 2023, an Audit Task Group was established at
Bromsgrove District Council to investigate the reasons
behind the issuing of our Statutory Recommendation in
October 2022. The Task Group provided recommendations
on lessons learned to Bromsgrove District Council. At its
Cabinet in June 2023, Bromsgrove gave approval to
implement the recommendations of the Bromsgrove Audit
Task Group.

One of the recommendations was that a permanent Project
Management Office (PMO) be set up at BDC to support the
full range of projects at both Councils. The Cabinet resolved
that formal reporting of all projects is undertaken on a
monthly basis by officers and the information fed into the
Quarterly Finance and Performance Reports for Members.

The Cabinet also resolved that a programme office be
established to provide oversight and validation of the

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

delivery of projects across the organisation. The roles of a
programme manager and programme officer were
established to provide support for the delivery of oversight
for ICT and Organisational Change projects across the
organisation and a compliance structure was put in place to
ensure delivery of projects and management of multiple
independencies across projects.

The creation of the Programme Management Office is
certainly a step in the right direction due to the fact that the
LGA was sceptical of the Council’s ability to deliver on its
key ambitions (economy, regeneration and skills)
considering its lack of capacity in programme and project
management. The creation of the Project Management
Framework and the Programme Management Office is a
clear demonstration of the Council’s efforts to invest in this
area and address the deficiencies highlighted by the LGA.

Although the finance ledger system issue remains, we have
addressed this in our statutory recommendation which
remains on the Council. We, however, lift the significant
weakness relating to poor project management to recognise
the progress the Council has made in this area.

Conclusion

No significant weakness in arrangements identified. The
Council’s performance management processes have
improved though there is room for improvement (see
improvement recommendation 9). Procurement has also
improved though an improvement recommendation has been
raised (see improvement recommendation 10).

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

40

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improvement recommendations

@i Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

Improvement Recommendation 9 Performance
The Council must put effort toward improving the presentation and accessibility of the performance monitoring reports and
maintaining timely reporting.
The Council should:
* define a suite of key performance indicators against which to measure performance aligned to the strategic objectives;
explain how those indicators are derived (e.g. statutory obligation)
for each KPI, outline a performance target which meets the service quality the Council wishes to deliver;

;_)U * for each KPI, state performance against this target, how the performance has changed over time and consider benchmarking
Q against NNs as appropriate.
o) g
(o¢] .
~ Audit year 2021/22 and 2022/23
Whg/im pact The Council clearly have a lot of meaningful data but it is currently not presented in the most accessible format to be able to

properly interrogate the information. There are currently limited benchmarks or targets against which to measure performance.
The data shows what is happening but does not assess whether this performance is ‘good’ or ‘bad.” The Council should put effort
toward determining what quality of service it would like to deliver, put arrangements in to review that regularly and then report
against that position. The current performance reports demonstrate a good foundation to build on but there is room for
improvement.

Management Comments Following the Strategic Priority sessions, performance monitoring information will be revised to ensure it relates to the
measurement of these priorities.
Delivery of indicators is already being developed with the use of Power Bl templates, however those tools are only as good
as the information being used which will also have its collection processes redefined.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 H

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Improvement recommendations

@* Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

Improvement Procurement

Recommendation 10 The Council should update its Contract Procedure Rules annually.
The Council should report on the number and value of waivers to Audit, Standards &
Governance quarterly.

Audit year 2021/22 and 2022/23
o
Q
«Q
D Why/impact The Council has Contract Procedure Rules though these have not been updated since
fe0) October 2016. At present, the procurement team does not report on waivers to committee level.
oo This can ensure that senior leadership are aware of the level of waiver use.
Management The procurement and contract rules will be updated by the end of the financial year in
Comments order to take account of the changes to procurement rules which need to be

implemented on the 1st April 2024.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 42

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Follow-up of previous recommendations

Recommendation Type of Date Management view of progress to date Auditor Further action?
recommendation raised view:
Addressed?
1 The Council cannot yet produce its 2020/21 draft Statutory Oct 2022  The following Progress has been made: Partially Statutory

68 abed

statement of accounts with long-standing issues with its
new ledger system in relation to cash receipting requiring
resolution. The Council must ensure that arrangements
allow for the successful implementation of cash receipting
within its ERP system to allow key elements of financial
governance and compliance to be undertaken routinely
and in a timely manner. In order to achieve this the
Council should:

ensure the Council has access to the necessary
knowledge and expertise to resolve the remaining key
issues with the ERP system in a timely manner to provide
management with sufficient assurance over the
completeness and veracity of the data included within the
system;

undertake appropriate testing of the fixes and ensure that
appropriate sign-off of these is received prior to running
them on live system data; and

ensure budget holders and other relevant officers possess
the skills and knowledge to appropriately use the ERP
system as intended, including relevant training and
updates to key documentation and process manuals.
Once system issues are properly resolved, the Council
must:

undertake key control activities such as bank and control
account reconciliations on a monthly basis and ensure
that these are kept up to date;

produce the 2020/21 and 2021/22 draft financial
statements, along with high quality supporting working
papers;

conclude the 2020/21 and 2021/22 RO and CO
submissions, and other key Government returns including
Whole of Government Accounts; and

ensure timely reporting of budget outturns and report
publicly on in-year financial monitoring, including
updates on the capital programme and savings scheme
achievement.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Cash Receipting system issues were corrected by
TechOne in November 2022.

Backlog in reconciliations due to the cash
receipting timetables to be completed and the
Council being up to date by end of the 2023
calendar year

Bromsgrove Audit Task Group ran a review of why
the Council was issued with a S24 Statement in
February 2023 and came up with a number of
recommendations which were accepted by
Bromsgrove District Council Audit, Standards &
Governance Committee and Cabinet.

The Council were able to upgrade its TechOne
System from the version it was on at Go Live to the
latest version 23A (which was o5 version upgrade)
in July 2023.

Internal Back Office protocols documented and
circulated.

Data take on balances for all periods except Period
0 provided to external auditors for review. Council
working with previous IT supplier to provide Period
0. Accounts will be provided (as per Audit,
Standards & Governance Committee and Cabinet
minutes) once Auditors have approved Data Take
on Balances.

All key financial returns except RO's/CQO's 20/21 and
21/22 (draft 22/23 provided) and WGA now have
been provided

Updated finance training provided to Services
including the roll out of a new Budget Manager
module for inputting forecasts directly on TechOne
in September 2023. This will be used for the first
time in Q2 monitoring 2023/4 financial year.

Audit, Standards & Governance Committee reviews
progress on movement of key financial issues at
every meeting (this updated reporting requirement
started in January 2023). The same report goes to

recommendation
remains open

Cabinet twice a year.
2022/23 Initial Outturn reporf, d
September 2023.

ﬁollrvse&en%{ulraeport - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

43

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Follow-up of previous recommendations

Recommendation Type of Date
recommendation raised

Management view of progress to date

Auditor
view:
Addressed?

Further action?

1 The Council needs to ensure that the Medium-Term Key Oct 22
Financial Plan presented to Members is completely
transparent regarding the financial challenge and that
any savings schemes included are fully worked up and
approved by Members in advance.

06 dbed

New Two Phase process followed for the 2023/4
MTFP. Initial proposals were reviewed by Finance
and Budget Working Group and comments fed into
Cabinet in October. Proposals were contained in
an appendix which set out the savings proposals.
Included in the Savings Proposals Document was a
feedback form. Proposals were then agreed by
Cabinet in December before being approved by
Council in January.

Phase 2 of the process had a far more limited time
for review but still went through the Finance and
Budget Working Group review process with
comments fed through to Cabinet and then
approval in February. A Robustness statement set
out the Risks of the budget, including the present
financial crisis the Country is working through.
Overall budget moved to a sustainable position
over the three year lifecycle.

Previous years unallocated savings budgets dealt

with in Q1 and Q2 2023/4 Finance and Performance

Monitoring reports.
Same process is being run for the 2024/25 MTFP
Process.

Partially

MTFP is robust
though issues
remain
surrounding
validity of
information. These
are addressed in
Statutory
Recommendation
1

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

£
F

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Follow-up of previous recommendations

Recommendation Type of

recommendation raised

Management view of progress to date Auditor

Further action?
view:
Addressed?

2  The Council needs to improve management of key Key
projects, such as the financial ledger implementation, to
ensure that expected benefits are realised. As part of this
the Council needs to undertake a comprehensive review
of the financial ledger implementation and ensure lessons
are learned for future key projects.

16 abed

Projects Report was approved by Cabinet in July Yes Improvement
2023 which approved the formation of a recommendation
Programme office. The recommendations of that raised
report were that:

Formal reporting of all projects is undertaken on a
monthly basis by Officers and this information
feeds into the Quarterly Finance and Performance
Reports for Members.

2) That a compliance structure is put in place to
ensure delivery of projects and management of the
multiple interdependencies across projects. This
includes:

a. A council programme office be established to
provide oversight and

validation of the delivery of projects across the
organisation.

b. The roles of a programme manager and a
programme officer be

established to provide support for the delivery of
this oversight,

especially for ICT and Organisational Change
projects across the

organisation.

In addition, Bromsgrove Audit Task Group ran a
review of why the Council was issued with a S24
Statement in February 2023 and came up with a
number of recommendations which were accepted
Audit, Standards & Governance Committee and
Cabinet at Bromsgrove. These recommendations
have fed into the above report.

Internally there has been a Back Office Working
Group which has met since July 2022 which reviews
cross back-office pressures linked to the
implementation of projects to prioritise Council
needs. The Yth Tier cross Council working Group,
which has been meeting since August 2022, and has
representation of all Council departments also
forward scans to identify cross cutting projects that

require resourcing.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

45

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Follow-up of previous recommendations

Recommendation Type of Date Management view of progress to date Auditor Further action?
recommendation raised view:
Addressed?

3 The Council should review and implement effective Key Oct 22 *  Quarterly combined Finance and Performance Yes Improvement
governance arrangements in respect of performance monitoring Reports for Cabinet were relaunched in recommendation
monitoring to allow Members to make informed decisions. Q12022/23 Financial year. O1, O2 and Q3 have all raised
In order to achieve this the Council should reinstate public been to Cabinet. The O4 and Financial outturn
reporting on performance, linking this to the Council Plan reports were separate reports due to timing of
and the related strategic objectives, allowing Members to Outturn information.
scrutinise performance. This should be done at least twice
per year. * The Same process is being followed in the 2023/4

Financial year.
4  The Council should review and implement effective Key Oct 22 * Risk Monitoring Arrangements were updated Yes Improvement
o governance arrangements in respect of risk monitoring to following adverse Internal Audit Reports. . Quarterly recommendation
oY) allow Members to make informed decisions. In order to officer Risk boards were established in April 2022 raised
Q achieve this the Council should make risk management with each department nominating a representative
@ reporting a standing item on the Audit, Standards & to attend these boards. Information from those
8 Governance Committee agenda, with Members boards feeds into an Overall Quarterly Risk Report

considering the Corporate Risk Register and Risk
Management arrangements in an appropriate forum.

to CMT and then this Report being reported to
Audit, Standards & Governance Committee. Up to
June 2023, for the first year, the report was also
reported to Cabinet. As part of this process the
definitions of Corporate and Departmental Risks
were redefined and a common way of reporting
risks used by the whole Council.

Assurance rating of Risk Management has now
improved to Moderate Assurance

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

£
o

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Follow-up of previous recommendations

Recommendation Type of Date Management view of progress to date Auditor Further action?
recommendation raised view:
Addressed?

5 The Council should ensure timely and relevant financial Key Oct 22 Quarterly combined Finance and Performance Yes Issues
monitoring reporting is undertaken and presented to the monitoring Reports for Cabinet were relaunched in Q1 surrounding
appropriate public forum. 2022/23 Financial year. O1, Q2 and Q3 have all been financial

to Cabinet (and initially Challenged by the Finance monitoring reports
and Budget Working Group). The Q4 and Financial highlighted in
outturn reports were separate reports due to timing of statutory
Outturn information. recommendation
2

The Same process is being followed in the 2023/4
Financial year.

_d The Medium-Term Financial Plan / Budget setting report  Improvement Oct 22 Council Priorities were reviewed in August and Yes No

Q should be linked to specific actions which are set out in September 2023 and will form a report to Cabinet in

© the Council Plan to make it clearer how investments in October 2023. Present 2 Stage MTFP Process,

® services will help to achieve the eight key priorities as set implemented for the 2023/4 MTFP. sets out these links.

(o] out in the Council Plan.

w 2022/3 Plan linked to the existing Priorities.

2 The Council needs to improve capital budgeting and Improvement Oct 22 Capital monitoring integrated with the Quarterly No Improvement
ensure that the capital programme is delivered as Monitoring Process. Separate Governance Group recommendation
planned. (Officer led) feeds into Levelling Up Board meetings for raised

the significant spending required to be delivered (from
Government Grant) over the next 2 years.

Large Projects included in the process set out in Key
Recommendation 2 on Project Management, of which
the Governance Group is one strand.

3 The Council should develop a workforce plan / strategy Improvement Oct 22 The new Council workforce Strategy Action Plan was Yes, Key
and ensure that this aligns to its financial plans. launched in the summer of 2023. although recommendation

capacity raised
constraints
remain

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

x
~

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Follow-up of previous recommendations

Recommendation Type of Date Management view of progress to date Auditor Further action?
recommendation raised view:
Addressed?

4 Financial plans presented to Members should include Improvement Oct 22 This is covered in the 2 Tranche MTFP Process as No Improvement
better explanation around the key risks and assumptions explained in Key Recommendation 1. recommendation
as well as sensitivity analysis and modelling different raised
scenarios.

5  The Council should work with Internal Audit to ensure that  Improvement Oct 22 This is an ongoing item. The Council, through the No Improvement
proactive fraud prevention work is included in the audit Internal Audit Service, is part of the National Fraud recommendation
plan, and the work and outcomes are reported to the Initiative scheme and provides yearly data. Matches raised
Audit, Standards & Governance Committee. are then followed up. 15 days of Audit time are

allocated to this task.

A further 6 days are allocated in 2023/4 to Corporate
;JU Anti-Fraud and Corruption work.
Q
M5  The Council needs to ensure that internal and external Improvement Oct 22 This is covered in the 2 Tranche MTFP Process as Partially Improvement
© stakeholders, including service users, are engaged and explained in Key Recommendation 1. recommendation
> consulted in the budget setting processes, and that this is There was a consultation feedback form as part of the raised

documented and reported. 2023/Y4 savings proposals document although a more

proactive stakeholder Engagement will happen in the

20224/5 Process.

Staff were updated via the Chief Executives Briefings

where the Section 151 Officer gave regular Updates.

Unions were also updated at the appropriate times at

the regular Union Meetings.

7 The Council needs to develop quarterly financial Improvement Oct 22 Joint Finance and Performance Reports have been Yes No
monitoring reports so that performance information is delivered to Members since Q1 of the 2022/23 Financial
included in order to better explain variances and the Year.
financial impact of service decisions.

8  The Council needs to ensure that budget holders are Improvement Oct 22 For Q2 of the 2023/ financial year budget managers ~ Partially Improvement

actively involved in budget monitoring and are aware that

it is a key part of their role.

will move to using TechOne to deliver their quarterly
forecasts. To facilitate finance Awareness Training and
also specific TechOne training has been provided to
budget managers to enable this to work. In 2022/23
Forecasts were delivered vis spreadsheets and
consolidated into the Quarterly reports that went to
Members.

recommendation
raised

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

48

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Follow-up of previous recommendations

Recommendation Type of Date Management view of progress to date Auditor Further action?
recommendation raised view:
Addressed?

9 The Council need to put in place arrangements to provide Improvement Oct 22 Audit, Standards & Governance Committee Review the  Yes Accuracy issue
independent assurance over the accuracy on in-year in year savings proposals twice a year, assessing addressed in
financial reporting and performance information. deliverability in year and risk. There are 10 days statutory

allocated in 2023/ for an audit on Corporate Data recommendation
Quality and Usage.

10 The Council needs to significantly enhance the use of Improvement Oct 22 The Council are using LG Futures Benchmarking data  Partially Improvement
benchmarking costs and performance against other (RA 2023] to inform decisions on the 2024/5 MTFP recommendation
similar bodies. Process. raised

The Council has measured its own Corporate
Performance through an LGA Peer Review that took
=) place in March 2023.
D
Qi1 The Council needs to ensure that the recommendations Improvement Oct 22 The Council has produced its response to the Peer Yes No
@ made by the LGA Corporate Peer Challenge in January Review that took place in March 2023 (which took on
8 2018 and February 2020 are addressed and that it then points from the previous Peer Reviews) in a Report to
further improves by learning from exemplar councils Cabinet on the 13th June. This contained actions plans
across the country. around: The Council Plan, Governance and
Engagement, Workforce Strategy, Agile Working and
Finance Recovery.
The Peer Team are returning for a light touch review at
the end of the calendar year.

12 The Council should ensure that it has an up-to-date Improvement Oct 22 Significant training has been undertaken with Service  No Improvement
procurement strategy and that this, and any other key users in order to ensure they understand procurement recommendations
policies and strategies, are routinely reviewed and compliance requirements. "No Compliance No Order” raised
updated. was implemented in April 2023 on the TechOne

systems, meaning that payments will only now be
made if they are linked to a requisition.
13 The Council needs to engage and consult with key Improvement Oct 22 Although a brief Stakeholder questionnaire was Yes No

stakeholders, where appropriate, to determine local
priorities for resources or opportunities for savings.

included in the 2023/4 Savings Proposals document,
more will be done in the 2024/5 MTFP Process.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

49

0T Wsal| epuaby



Public

Opinion on the financial statements for
2021/22 and 2022/23

As noted in our statutory recommendation, the Council has

been unable to produce draft financial statements for

2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 and therefore our audit work

is outstanding. The Council is now significantly behind its
ﬁatutorg financial reporting responsibilities.

96 abe

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

50

0T Wsal| epuaby



Appendices



Public

Appendix A - Responsibilities of the local

authority

Public bodies spending taxpayers’ money are accountable
for their stewardship of the resources entrusted to them.
They should account properly for their use of resources and

manage themselves well so that the public can be confident.

Financial statements are the main way in which local public
bodies account for how they use their resources. Local
public bodies are required to prepare and publish financial
statements setting out their financial performance for the
ear. To do this, bodies need to maintain proper accounting
ﬁcords and ensure they have effective systems of internal
%ontrol.

I local public bodies are responsible for putting in place

oproper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness from their resources. This includes taking
properly informed decisions and managing key operational
and financial risks so that they can deliver their objectives
and safeguard public money. Local public bodies report on
their arrangements, and the effectiveness with which the
arrangements are operating, as part of their annual
governance statement

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent] is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent]
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent] or equivalent is
required to prepare the financial statements in accordance
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code
of practice on local authority accounting in the United
Kingdom. In preparing the financial statements, the Chief
Financial Officer (or equivalent) is responsible for assessing
the local authority’s ability to continue as a going concern
and use the going concern basis of accounting unless there
is an intention by government that the services provided by
the local authority will no longer be provided.

The local authority is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

£
:
o

sl

PoT— |

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

62

0T wal| epuaby



Appendix B - Risks of significant
weaknesses, our procedures and findings

Public

As part of our planning and assessment work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the local authority's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources that we needed to perform further procedures on. The
risks we identified are detailed in the table below, along with the further procedures we performed, our findings and the final outcome of our

work:

Year of audit

Risk of significant weakness

Procedures undertaken

Findings

Outcome

021/22 and / or
022/23
(@)
D
(o]
©

Financial sustainability was not identified
as a potential significant weakness.

See pages 17 to 28 for more detail.

We have found a significant
weakness in the Council’s
arrangements to secure financial
sustainability.

Appropriate arrangements not in
place, one statutory
recommendation raised and five
improvement recommendations
raised.

2021/22 and / or
2022/23

Governance was identified as a potential
significant weakness due to the previous
statutory recommendation.

See pages 29 to 38 for more detail.

We have found a significant
weakness in the Council’s
governance arrangements relating
to the flawed ledger implementation.

Appropriate arrangements not in
place, one statutory
recommendation raised, one key
recommendation and five
improvement recommendation

2021/22 and / or
2022/23

Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness was not identified as a
significant weakness.

See pages 39 to 44 for more detail.

No significant weakness in
arrangements identified but two
improvement recommendations
raised

Appropriate arrangements in place
two improvement recommendations
raised.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023 53

0T Wsal| epuaby



Appendix C - An explanatory
recommendations

A range of different recommendations can be raised by the local authority’s auditors as follows:

Type of recommendation

Background Raised within this report

Public

note on

Page reference

Statutory

Written recommendations to the local Yes
authority under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

9to 10

ey
Q
Q

o)
H
o
o

The NAO Code of Audit Practice requires that  Yes
where auditors identify significant

weaknesses as part of their arrangements to
secure value for money they should make
recommendations setting out the actions that
should be taken by the local authority. We

have defined these recommendations as ‘key
recommendations’.

15

Improvement

These recommendations, if implemented Yes
should improve the arrangements in place at

the local authority, but are not a result of
identifying significant weaknesses in the locall
authority’s arrangements.

24 to 28, 34 to 38 and 43 to 44

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditor’s Annual Report - Bromsgrove District Council [Interim] | November 2023

al
F

0T Wsal| epuaby



Agenda Item 11

s Bromsgrove
¥ District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Portfolio Holder Report

Portfolio Holder Report - Leisure, Culture and Climate Change

Introduction and Overview:

At Bromsgrove District Council Portfolio Holders provide an annual update to Council
on services within their portfolio remit. These services are delivered in accordance
with the Council’s Strategic Purposes, as detailed in the Bromsgrove District Council
Plan 2019 — 2023.

This report provides an outline of services and activities within the remit of this
particular Portfolio Holder. Information is included in relation to the Council’s
Strategic Purposes, relevant key activities, partnership working, projects and
programmes and news stories.

A version of this report, focusing on each Portfolio Holder’s remit in turn, will be
considered at each meeting of Council (except for the Annual Council meeting).

Whilst services will be contributing information into this report it is worth noting that
not all sections of the report will be relevant to all service areas. In this circumstance,
some sections may not be completed by all services.

The report will be structured as follows:

1) Update on Strategic Purposes

2) Partnership working

3) Key activities and priorities

4) Good news stories and awards (if applicable)
5) Other

The Council has the following Strategic Purposes and Priorities:

Strategic Purposes Council Priorities
Run and grow a successful business | Economic development and regeneration
Work and financial independence Skills for the future
Living independent, active and Improving health & well being
healthy lives
Affordable and sustainable homes A balanced housing market
Communities which are safe, well Reducing crime & disorder
maintained and green
The Green Thread runs through the Internal priorities
Council Plan
Financial stability
High quality services
Sustainability

Page 101



Agenda Item 11

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Portfolio Holder Report

1. Update on Strategic Purposes

Leisure and Culture Services

The relevant strategic purposes are:

e Living independent, active, and healthy lives
e Communities which are safe, well maintained and green.
e The Green Thread runs through the Council Plan

The leisure and culture strategy supports the strategic purposes by:

Creating a VISION: Healthy bodies and minds through active, engaged and
creative communities

Creating an AIM: To inspire everyone to celebrate our historic past and
participate in building a brighter future through access to parks, open spaces,
sport, physical activity, arts, heritage, culture and everyday creativity. This way we
will inspire our communities to lead longer happier, healthier, and more successful
lives.

Providing a focus for Key activities

Since the last portfolio holder report the following has been achieved:

Implementation of aspects of The Leisure and Culture strategy. By way of
reminder the component parts are the Parks and Open spaces Strategy and four
management plans; Arts and Culture strategy and the Built Facility Strategy

The Playing pitch strategy will follow in February 2024

In terms of the Arts and Culture Strategy, the following has been achieved in terms
of Strategy Recommendations 39, 40 and 42:

1 Cultural Compact for North East Worcestershire Annual Conference on 281"
March 2023 at Avoncroft Museum with 52 local, regional and national
partner organisations represented

2 Cultural Compact business, youth and heritage theme group pilot projects
delivering:

i) Ludic Rooms and HOW College pixel art project bringing to life the
Paolozzi Mosaic Masterpieces (over 1000 views of the work in first
month),

i) Heritage Trail project with Wythall Transport Museum, Avoncroft
Museum and Norton Museum,

iif) 700 visitors to the world renowned exhibition “Of All the People of All
the World: North East Worcestershire” by Stans Café Theatre at

Page 102



Agenda Item 11

£4 Bromsgrove
ey District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Portfolio Holder Report

Avoncroft Museum in Easter Holidays

3 Cultural Compact Heritage Open Days Festival September 2023 with over
27 activities during the 10-day activity in rural and urban locations across
the District. Locations and venues taking part across Bromsgrove included
Avoncroft Museum, Bromsgrove Galloper Heritage Community Public
Artwork, Bromsgrove Independent Design Centre, Norton Museum, St
John's Church, Bromsgrove, St Mark's Church, Finstall and Tardebigge
Wharf Guided Local History Walks.

4 Just under 1000 people involved in consultation and engagement leading to
the launch of the Cultural Compact’s first major participation campaign:
ReNEW : Rediscover North East Worcestershire. Visit the project’s holding
page for more details and the project’s promotional video produced in
partnership with residents: www.rediscovernew.co.uk

5 ReNEW launch event at HOW College on 27" October 2023 with over 50 in
attendance.

6 Production of costed activity plans aligned with the ReNEW campaign for
submission to Arts Council England and National Lottery Heritage Fund
close to completion.

7 Secured £33,000 from UK Shared Prosperity Fund towards ReNEW grants
scheme with a focus on regenerating redundant spaces across the district
through the use of creativity. Launch workshop with 30 participant
organisations and individuals at Bromsgrove’s DrySpy Public House on 24"
November 2023.

Built Facility Strategy:

1 Negotiated and secured the first Community Use Agreement with the new
owner and operator of the Rylands Leisure Centre. An Advisory Group to
monitor community use has been established in line with the agreement with
Sport England

2 A £5000 UK Shared Prosperity Fund sports grants scheme has been
launched in November 2023 to increase community access to sports leisure
facilities across the District.

Playing Pitch Strategy

1 The Playing Pitch Strategy is scheduled to be considered for endorsement by
Bromsgrove District Council in February 2024

Cross Cutting Leisure and Culture Strategy delivery:

Page 103


http://www.rediscovernew.co.uk/

Agenda Item 11

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Portfolio Holder Report

1 Holiday Activities & Food funding is a targeted programme aimed at
supporting children and young people during the main school holidays who
are entitled to free school meals. This funding has supported holiday
activities across Bromsgrove with various different providers to deliver
activities with a meal or food packages. This is supported by The Children's
and Young Peoples Providers Group in Bromsgrove.

Easter - £15,688.00
Summer - £44,523.00
Winter - £15,210.00

2 Four Disability Programmes (sailing, football, life skills and cycling) .
Working in partnership with Upton Warren Sailing Club, Aztec Upton
Warren, the Mayors Community Weekend, the POD in Charford, Rigby Hall
School, Sport England, RYA, National Lottery Community Fund and
Midland Mencap

2023 funding awarded - £6,321

3 Cross departmental working to support the launch of the new Bromsgrove
District Council £50,000 Youth Service funding in Autumn 2023

4 In partnership with Public Health and Bromsgrove Sports and Leisure
Centre delivery of £18,628 physical activity voucher scheme targeting 200
Bromsgrove residents who are physical inactive and struggle with weight
gain.

5 Health intervention work

i)  Multiple Sclerosis support,

i) Finding Freedom with Fibromyalgia project,

iii) Support for community exercise classes in Wythall, Sidemoor, St
Goswalds, Alvechurch, Hillcrest and Rubery

iv) 200 participants in health walks scheme in Lickey End, Sanders Park,
Blackwell, the Oakalls and Wythall

v) 1000+ people participating in couch to 5k schemes in Central area,
Catshill, Alvechurch vi) Walking Football Versus Arthritis for 50+ people
in Hagley

In relation to Parks and Events

1. Management plan implementation and a phased approach of delivery from
years 2022- 27 for key parks

2. Delivery of Green Fair meeting some objectives of climate change agenda
at Sanders Park

3. Improvements to the management of allotments commenced

Page 104



Agenda Item 11

£4 Bromsgrove
ey District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Portfolio Holder Report

4. Funding secured through the UKSPF fund to provide capital projects across
parks with management plans.

5. Lawns Tennis Association funding (£12K) to improve the tennis courts
facility at Sanders Park with a new access gate and refreshed surfacing.

6. The delivery of the Light trail at Sanders park
7. Improvements to some play areas across Bromsgrove, this included new

equipment, surfacing and removal of unsafe equipment. The Play Audit on
the Forward Plan will spearhead further improvements.

Climate Change

Relevant Strategic Purpose ‘Communities that are safe, well maintained &
green’

Climate Change supports the Council’s strategic purpose of ‘Communities which
are safe, well maintained & green’. In addition, it underpins the green thread that
runs through the Council Plan and supports the delivery of achieving carbon
reduction across council services. It also contributes to each of the Council’s four
other Strategic Purposes all of which have measures that support climate change
initiatives.

In addition to the Strategic purposes, the Council’s Plan also sets out its
organisational priorities, and within a sustainability framework a requirement on
any review of services to understand how we can adapt to climate change.

Members will recall that the Council declared a climate emergency in 2019,

affirming that is will place the Climate Emergency at the centre of its decision-
making process.

Key activities since last report:

In October 2022, the Council adopted a Carbon Reduction Strategy and
Implementation Plan. This is our first Carbon Reduction Strategy which covers the
next 3 years and is published on our website. The Strategy sets out how as a
Council we will achieve a 50% reduction in carbon dioxide by 2030 and Net Zero
by 2040. This is in advance of the Government’s target of Net Zero by 2050.

Each of the Council’s service areas contributed to the Strategy and
Implementation Plan in order to produce ‘carbon reduction pathways’. Through
this approach carbon reduction will become ‘business as usual’ and truly
embedded throughout the organisation.

Page 105



Agenda Item 11

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Portfolio Holder Report

Over the last 12 month our key successes and activities have been:

e Office for low emission vehicles funded electric taxi scheme — estimated
Carbon savings of 126 C02 tonnes for the wider area, beyond Council
operations

e Low carbon heating & Solar PV project at the Artrix Centre - estimated
carbon saving of 100 CO2 tonnes.

e Purchase of 100% green electricity for the Council - estimated carbon
saving of 98 CO2 tonnes.

e First delivery and implementation of hydrotreated vegetable oil (HVO) low
carbon fuel for the Council’s diesel fleet - estimated carbon saving of 530
CO02 tonnes per annum and the Council is now using HVO in all its diesel
vehicles

e Bromsgrove Zero Carbon District Heat Network study — carbon savings to
be achieved when the scheme is operational.

e A Green Fair at Sanders Park as a key event to communicate the message
of a low carbon future to the wider community.

Anticipated Activities/Key Milestones For Next Period

Our Carbon Reduction Strategy sets out our actions over the next 3 years to work
towards our Net Zero target. Our top 5 future actions are:

e Assess further low carbon fleet fuel options - estimated carbon saving of
349 CO2 tonnes.

e Seek commercial partners to build out the Bromsgrove District Heat
Network - estimated carbon saving of 100 CO2 tonnes.

e Support Bromsgrove District Housing Trust to apply for funding to improve
efficiency of housing stock- estimated carbon saving to the District of 50 CO2
tonnes.

e Set up arolling programme of works to improve energy efficiency/
renewable generation in the buildings with the highest consumption -
estimated carbon saving of 48 CO2 tonnes.

¢ Implement Recommendations of the 2020 Energy Saving Trust report into
decarbonising the council’s transport fleet including staff mileage and travel
plans across all service areas - estimated carbon saving of 36 CO2 tonnes.

It was acknowledged that given the importance of this area of work additional
staffing resources were required at a more strategic level. Consequently, in
November 2022 the Council approved a budget bid to fund a Senior Climate
Change Officer post. This post will be advertised in February 2023. Following the
resignation of our Climate Change Officer at the end of 2022, a further post of
Graduate Climate Change Officer will be recruited during 2023.

Our Carbon Reduction Implementation plan will be refreshed every 3 years and
reviewed annually. Progress against targets will be reviewed by the Climate

Page 106



Agenda Item 11

&3 Bromsgrove
gy District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Portfolio Holder Report

Change Working Party. The Strategy will further provide the focus, steer and
priority for the Climate change Panel for the next 3 years.

Page 107



Agenda Item 11

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Portfolio Holder Report

2. Partnership Working:

The Council works with a range of partner organisations to meet the needs of
residents and businesses in the District. The following section details work delivered
within the remit of this Portfolio Holder.

Leisure and Culture Services

Partnership working examples:

The Cultural Compact organisations who have supported the development of our
ReNEW campaign include:

Active Herefordshire and Worcestershire, AIR: artsinredditch (local arts forum),
Bromsgrove Arts Alive, Bromsgrove Independent Business Club, Bromsgrove
Society, Canals and Rivers Trust, Culture Central, GRIN Creative, Friends of St
Johns, Heart of Worcestershire College, Herefordshire and Worcestershire
Chamber of Commerce, Redditch and Bromsgrove Health Collaboratives,
Kingfisher Shopping Centre, Ludic Rooms, Motionhouse Dance Theatre, National
Trust, Norton Museum, Redditch BID, Reimagine Redditch Consortium (Creative
People and Places Project), Royal Enfield (European region), Royal Shakespeare
Company, Rubicon Leisure, Severn Arts, Simon McKeweon, Stans Café Theatre ,
Dry Spy Public House , Heart of England Forest Trust, University of Worcester,
Visit Worcestershire, Worcestershire Wildlife Trust, WMCA Cultural Services,
Writing West Midlands, Young Solutions.

Anticipated Activities/Key Milestones For Next Period

The key milestones will relate to working through the recommendations in the
Leisure and Cultural Strategy and inviting members to approve the Playing Pitch
Strategy as detailed in the Forward Plan. In addition, the team will be spending
any external funding received.

1. Cultural Compact Annual Conference and Plenary 15" March 2024 at St
Johns Church to reflect on progress of ReNEW participation campaign

2. Increasing number of organisations aligning with the ReNEW participation
campaign.

Page 108


https://www.activehw.co.uk/
https://www.artsinredditch.com/
http://bsoc.co.uk/
http://bsoc.co.uk/
https://canalrivertrust.org.uk/
https://www.culturecentral.co.uk/
https://en-gb.facebook.com/FriendsStJohnsBromsgrove/posts/
https://en-gb.facebook.com/FriendsStJohnsBromsgrove/posts/
https://www.howcollege.ac.uk/
https://www.kingfishershopping.co.uk/
https://www.motionhouse.co.uk/
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/join-us?campid=PPC_Central_Membership_Google_PureBrand&dfaid=1&gclid=82188e068b34111d1886ec964ccb998e&gclsrc=3p.ds&msclkid=82188e068b34111d1886ec964ccb998e
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/join-us?campid=PPC_Central_Membership_Google_PureBrand&dfaid=1&gclid=82188e068b34111d1886ec964ccb998e&gclsrc=3p.ds&msclkid=82188e068b34111d1886ec964ccb998e
https://reimagineredditch.org/consortium/
https://reimagineredditch.org/consortium/
https://www.royalenfield.com/
https://rubiconleisure.co.uk/
https://www.severnarts.org.uk/
http://www.stanscafe.co.uk/about-us.html
https://www.thedryspy.co.uk/galleries
https://heartofenglandforest.org/
https://www.worcester.ac.uk/
https://www.visitworcestershire.org/
https://www.worcswildlifetrust.co.uk/
https://www.wmca.org.uk/what-we-do/culture-and-creative-economy/
https://writingwestmidlands.org/
https://www.youngsolutions.org.uk/

Agenda Item 11

Bromsgrove
District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Portfolio Holder Report

3. Funding applications to be submitted to Arts Council England and National
Lottery Heritage Fund to deliver ReNEW campaign.

4. Roll out of quality standards certification scheme for health intervention
projects.

5. Increase of Couch 2 5K schemes with development into Wythall area with
alignment with Fun Run in this ward

6. Continued fundraising for various positive activities in communities.

7. Endeavour to increase the number of Community Use Agreements

Climate Change

Partnership working

It is vital that we work closely with partners, in order to reduce the carbon emissions
of the district as a whole. It is important that we use our sphere of influence to
encourage others to address their own emissions. The council also benefits from
partnership working with county, regional and national organisations by seeking out
and engaging the support that may be available.

Key activities since last report:

A key partner for the Council has been the West Midlands Net Zero Hub who have
supported us in developing our Carbon Reduction Action Plan. | would like to say
particularly thanks to Alex Pearson for this work.

We currently work closely on a district level with partners such as ‘Everyone Active’
who run our sports and leisure facilities. We work closely with Worcestershire
County Council to ensure that homes and businesses can benefit from the advice
and grants that are made available through the Sustainability Team. The Council is
also part of the Joint Worcestershire and Herefordshire Waste Partnership group
working towards waste reduction and better waste management across the county.
We are also working closely with Worcestershire Regulatory Services to promote
Electric Taxis through the licencing system. On a regional level alongside working
with the Midlands Net Zero Hub we also work with the West Midlands Combined
Authority and Sustainability West Midlands on several carbon reduction projects. On

Page 109



Agenda Item 11

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Portfolio Holder Report

a national level we have recently worked with the Energy Saving Trust to look at
carbon reduction options across our vehicle fleet.

Anticipated Activities/Key Milestones and Priorities For Next Period

e Work with Partners to deliver of the actions that require a partnership
approach contained in the carbon reduction strategy

e Officers to attend monthly sustainability officers group meetings, organised
through the County Council in order to share learning

e Investigate opportunities for carbon reduction with our suppliers and
delivery partners

e Ensure that our Carbon Reduction Strategy is aligned with the other
Worcestershire Councils and review all plans annually

e Work with Worcestershire Regulatory Services to investigate how we might
develop a Street Trading Policy to encourage low carbon and sustainable
trades to operate in the local area

e We will also continue to explore options with Worcestershire County Council
and local businesses to encourage walking and cycling to work.

1. News Stories and Awards

Leisure and Culture Services

Contributions to delivery of arts and culture strategy

1. £35,000 awarded by Arts Council England to support Cultural Compact for
North-East Worcestershire

Page 110



Agenda Item 12

Recommendations from the Cabinet Meeting held on 22"4 November 2023

Governance Systems Review Update — Overview and Scrutiny Board

RECOMMENDED that

1) The proposed Memorandum of Understanding concerning cross party working
be approved, subject to an amendment to point 5 of the Principles section to
read as follows: “Recognise and respect that each individual Member can
contribute to decisions that are taken and should be given the opportunity to be
involved and able to provide their opinion before a decision be taken”.

Medium Term Financial Plan 2024/5 to 2026/7 — Tranche 1

RECOMMEND that

1) That the Play capital works for 2023/4 as set out in 3.38 are approved and
added to the Capital Programme.

Treasury Management Strateqgy Half Yearly Report

RECOMMENDED that

1) Council note the position in relation to the Council’s Prudential indicators.

Finance And Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 2 2023/24

RECOMMENDED that

1) Changes to the Capital Programme in relation to ICT be actioned, bringing
forward Cyber Security linked Tape Drive replacements forward from 2024/5
into 2023/4, and increasing the budget in 2023/4 to ensure the continuation of
the Civica OpenRevenues system for the administration of council tax, business
rates and housing benefits.

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13a

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Overview and Scrutiny
Board 20" November 2023

Governance Systems Task Group — Update Report

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Charlie Hotham, Portfolio
Holder for Finance and Enabling

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal,
Democratic and Property Services

Report Author Job Title: Head of Legal, Democratic and

Claire Felton Property Services

Contact email:
c.felton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Wards Affected No specific ward relevance
Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A
Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) An Effective and Sustainable Council

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1.

2.1

2.2

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Overview and Scrutiny Board is asked to RECOMMEND that:-

1) The terms of reference for the Cabinet Advisory Groups be
approved,;

2) The proposed Memorandum of Understanding concerning
cross party working be approved; and

3) The update in respect of progress with implementing the
recommendations made by the Governance Systems Task
Group be noted.

BACKGROUND

The report details the work that has been undertaken at the Council to
implement the recommendations made by the Governance Systems
Task Group and which were approved at an extraordinary meeting of
Council held on 20" September 2023.

The Overview and Scrutiny Board is invited to consider the update
provided and whether to approve the recommendations detailed in the
report.

Page 113



mailto:c.felton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Agenda Item 13a

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Overview and Scrutiny
Board 20" November 2023

3. OPERATIONAL ISSUES

3.1 The Governance Systems Task Group completed a review of the
Council’'s governance model in September 2023. The findings detailed
in the group’s report were subsequently approved at an extraordinary
meeting of Council held on 20" September 2023.

3.2  Since Council approved the group’s recommendations, the Constitution
Review Working Group has held a number of meetings to consider
progress with the implementation of the actions that were proposed.

3.3 At a meeting of the Constitution Review Working Group held on 28t
September 2023, Members agreed that meetings of the group should
take place approximately once a month to enable Members to ensure
that the amendments to the Council’s constitution and working
practices that are required, following on from the review, will be
delivered in time for all such changes to be in place by the start of the
2024/25 municipal year.

3.4 At a subsequent meeting of the Constitution Review Working Group,
held on 15t November 2023, Members considered initial draft terms of
reference for the Cabinet Advisory Groups that had been proposed by
the Governance Systems Task Group. Members also considered a
draft Memorandum of Understanding for cross party working, which
had similarly been proposed by the Task Group.

3.5 A number of amendments were requested by Members to these
documents and it was agreed that a further meeting of the Constitution
Review Working Group should take place to consider the updated
versions of the Cabinet Advisory Group terms of reference and
Memorandum of Understanding for cross party working. To ensure
that this could take place in time for a written update on the subject to
be reported to the Overview and Scrutiny Board meeting in November
2023, this additional meeting of the Constitution Review Working
Group took place at midday on Wednesday 8" November 2023.

3.6  Based on the amendments that had already been made to both
documents and which were subsequently suggested at the meeting of
the Constitution Review Working Group held on 8" November, the
group endorsed the attached terms of reference for Cabinet Advisory
Groups and Memorandum of Understanding for cross party working.

Page 114



Agenda Item 13a

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Overview and Scrutiny
Board 20" November 2023

3.7  In addition to this work, it is important to note that a comprehensive
review of the Council’s constitution is currently being undertaken on
behalf of the Council. Findings arising from the Governance Systems
Task Group will be taken into account as part of this process, whilst the
review also aims to simplify and reduce the current length of the
constitution. Any proposed changes to the constitution arising from this
process will ultimately need to be determined by Council.

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  There are no specific financial implications arising from this report.

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Review and revision of the Constitution is governed by Article 15 of the
Constitution.

6. OTHER - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqic Purpose

6.1 The action proposed in this report supports the strategic purpose “an
effective and sustainable Council”.

Climate Change Implications

6.2  There are no specific climate change implications.

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.3  There are no specific equalities and diversity implications.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1 There is a risk that if the Council does not progress in a timely manner
with consideration of the changes to the constitution required as a result
of the Governance Systems Task Group, these amendments will not be
in place in time for the start of the 2024/25 municipal year as intended.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Proposed Cabinet Advisory Group Terms of Reference.

Page 115



Agenda Item 13a

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Overview and Scrutiny

Board 20" November 2023

Appendix 2 — Proposed Memorandum of Understanding concerning

cross party working.

Background Papers

Governance Systems Task Group’s final report: Governance Systems

Task Group - report

Minutes of the meeting of the extraordinary Council meeting held on
20t September 2023: Minutes - Council meeting, 20th September

2023

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date
Portfolio Holder Councillor Charlie Hotham. 10/11/2023
Lead Director / Head of Claire Felton, Head of Legal, 08/11/2023
Service Democratic and Property
Services
Financial Services Pete Carpenter, Director of 08/11/2023
Finance and Resources
Legal Services Claire Felton, Head of Legal, 08/11/2023
Democratic and Property
Services

Page 116


https://moderngovwebpublic.bromsgrove.gov.uk/documents/s54984/Governance%20Systems%20Task%20Group%20-%20report.pdf
https://moderngovwebpublic.bromsgrove.gov.uk/documents/s54984/Governance%20Systems%20Task%20Group%20-%20report.pdf
https://moderngovwebpublic.bromsgrove.gov.uk/documents/g4254/Printed%20minutes%2020th-Sep-2023%2018.00%20Council.pdf?T=1
https://moderngovwebpublic.bromsgrove.gov.uk/documents/g4254/Printed%20minutes%2020th-Sep-2023%2018.00%20Council.pdf?T=1

Agenda Item 13a

CABINET ADVISORY GROUP

1. Cross Party working is widely recognised as a valuable part of the democratic
process and it is important that there is openness and transparency in the way that

the Cabinet operates.

2. Bromsgrove District Council will facilitate all member engagement and consultation
on decisions to be taken by Cabinet by way of Cabinet Advisory Groups (“CAGs”).

3. CAGs are not formal Committees of the Council. They are informal groups convened
to enable all members to be aware of and to contribute to strategic and other items.

4. CAGs are not subject to any of the procedure rules in the Council’s Constitution. The
rules on political proportionality also do not apply.

5. CAGs should not attempt to replicate the functional areas covered by the audit and

overview and scrutiny committees.

6. Any elected member can attend a CAG meeting. The meetings will be chaired by the

relevant Portfolio Holder(s). Officers and other Cabinet Members may attend.

7. CAG meetings can be conducted in person, or in virtual or hybrid format at the

discretion of the group.

8. Dates for the CAGs will be included in the calendar of meetings in advance, although
additional meetings can be scheduled throughout the year as and when required by
the Portfolio Holder.

9. Democratic Services shall arrange meeting times and provide any documentation
required in advance of the meeting. A note of the views of members in attendance
will be taken and actions reported to the Cabinet Working Group. This will also be

referenced in any report to Cabinet.

10. The normal rules relating to access to information apply, in terms of members and

officers observing the confidentiality of exempt information.

11. The Code of Conduct applies when attending CAG meetings and declarations of
interests will need to be declared as a standing item on the agenda. Some members

may not be able to participate in some items due to their personal interests.

14093874-1 Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13a

Bromsgrove District Council

Memorandum of Understanding

concerning

CROSS PARTY WORKING

2023
Introduction

(A) Following the 2023 elections the political representation of the Council changed so
that no party held the majority of seats on the Council.

(B) In recognition of this change a review was carried out to understand which model of

governance would best suit no overall control.

© On 20 September 2023 Council resolved to retain the leader and cabinet model of

governance on a hybrid basis involving all members, wherever possible.

(D) All Members including group leaders wish to enter this Memorandum of
Understanding to provide for their on-going relationship, aspirations, expectations and

continuing collaboration and participation in the decision making at the Council.

(E) These principles shall be incorporated into the Council’'s new constitution from May
2024.

Page 119



Agenda Item 13a

Principles
The Parties agree to adopt the following principles to effect good decision making in the Council:

1. Acknowledge that cross party working is a valuable part of the

democratic process;

2. Act in good faith and in the spirit of partnership with open and

honest conversations;
3. Co operate to achieve effective cross party work;

4. Work collaboratively and collectively to find solutions in the best

interests of the community;

5. Recognise that each individual member can contribute to decisions
that are taken and should be involved and able to provide their
opinion before a decision is taken.

6. Accept that the political proportionality rules shall apply to the
allocation of seats on all formal committees and that wherever
possible the person presiding full Council, Audit and Overview and
Scrutiny Committee meetings should be selected from the political
parties not represented on the Cabinet.

7. Accept that where possible the principles of political proportionality
shall also apply to any other roles and responsibilities to be
allocated [for example outside body appointments, not including ex

officio appointments]

Page 120



Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 22nd November 2023

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY HALF YEARLY REPORT

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Charlie Hotham,
Finance and Enabling Portfolio Holder
Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes
Relevant Head of Service Michelle Howell
Report Author Job Title: Head of Finance & Customer Services

email:michelle.howell@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel: 0152764252

Wards Affected N/A

Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) | All

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1  This report for 2023/24 presents a half yearly update on the Council’s Capital
and Treasury Management Strategies, including all prudential indicators.
There is the requirement for progress to reported through Cabinet to Council
at the half year pointy.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet are asked to Recommend to Council that:

1 That Cabinet note the position in relation to the Councils Prudential
indicators.

3. Background

Introduction

3.1 The Authority has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice
(the CIPFA Code) which requires the Authority to approve, as a minimum,
treasury management semi-annual and annual outturn reports.

3.2  This report includes the new requirement in the 2021 Code, mandatory from 18t

April 2023, of quarterly reporting of the treasury management prudential
indicators.

Page 121



Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 22nd November 2023

3.3  The Authority’s treasury management strategy for 2023/24 was approved at a
meeting on the 22" February 2023. The Authority has invested substantial
sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of
invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The
successful identification, monitoring and control of risk remains central to the
Authority’s treasury management strategy.

External Context

3.4  Economic background: UK inflation remained stubbornly high over much the
period compared to the US and euro zone, keeping expectations elevated of
how much further the Bank of England (BoE) would hike rates compared to the
regions. However, inflation data published in the latter part of the period
undershot expectations, causing financial markets to reassess the peak in BoE
Bank Rate. This was followed very soon after by the BoE deciding to keep Bank
Rate on hold at 5.25% in September, against expectation for another 0.25%
rise.

3.5 Economic growth in the UK remained relatively weak over the period. In
calendar Q2 2023, the economy expanded by 0.2%. However, monthly GDP
data showed a 0.5% contraction in July, the largest fall to date in 2023 and
worse than the 0.2% decline predicted which could be an indication the
monetary tightening cycle is starting to cause recessionary or at the very least
stagnating economic conditions.

3.6  July data showed the unemployment rate increased to 4.3% (3mth/year) while
the employment rate rose to 75.5%. Pay growth was 8.5% for total pay
(including bonuses) and 7.8% for regular pay, which for the latter was the
highest recorded annual growth rate. Adjusting for inflation, pay growth in real
terms were positive at 1.2% and 0.6% for total pay and regular pay respectively.

3.7 Inflation continued to fall from its peak as annual headline CPI declined to 6.7%
in July 2023 from 6.8% in the previous month against expectations for a tick
back up to 7.0%. The largest downward contribution came from food prices.
The core rate also surprised on the downside, falling to 6.2% from 6.9%
compared to predictions for it to only edge down to 6.8%.

3.8 The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee continued tightening
monetary policy over most of the period, taking Bank Rate to 5.25% in August.
Against expectations of a further hike in September, the Committee voted 5-4
to maintain Bank Rate at 5.25%. Each of the four dissenters were in favour of
another 0.25% increase.

Page 122



Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 22nd November 2023

3.9 Financial market Bank Rate expectations moderated over the period as falling
inflation and weakening data gave some indication that higher interest rates
were working. Expectations fell from predicting a peak of over 6% in June to
5.5% just ahead of the September MPC meeting, and to then expecting 5.25%
to be the peak by the end of the period.

3.10 Following the September MPC meeting, Arlingclose, the authority’s treasury
adviser, modestly revised its interest forecast to reflect the central view that
5.25% will now be the peak in Bank Rate. In the short term the risks are to the
upside if inflation increases again, but over the remaining part of the time
horizon the risks are to the downside from economic activity weakening more
than expected.

3.11 The lagged effect of monetary policy together with the staggered fixed term
mortgage maturities over the next 12-24 months means the full impact from
Bank Rate rises are still yet to be felt by households. As such, while consumer
confidence continued to improve over the period, the GfK measure hit -21 in
September, it is likely this will reverse at some point. Higher rates will also
impact business and according to S&P/CIPS survey data, the UK
manufacturing and services sector contracted during the quarter with all
measures scoring under 50, indicating contraction in the sectors.

3.12 The US Federal Reserve increased its key interest rate to 5.25-5.50% over the
period, pausing in September following a 0.25% rise the month before, and
indicating that it may have not quite completed its monetary tightening cycle.

3.13 Having fallen throughout 2023, annual US inflation started to pick up again in
July 2023, rising from 3% in June, which represented the lowest level since
March 2021, to 3.2% in July and then jumping again to 3.7% in August, beating
expectations for a rise to 3.6%. Rising oil prices were the main cause of the
increase. US GDP growth registered 2.1% annualised in the second calendar
qguarter of 2023, down from the initial estimate of 2.4% but above the 2%
expansion seen in the first quarter.

3.14 The European Central Bank increased its key deposit, main refinancing, and
marginal lending interest rates to 4.00%, 4.50% and 4.75% respectively in
September, and hinted these levels may represent the peak in rates but also
emphasising rates would stay high for as long as required to bring inflation
down to target.

Page 123



Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 22nd November 2023

3.15 Although continuing to decline steadily, inflation has been sticky, Eurozone
annual headline CPI fell to 5.2% in August while annual core inflation eased to
5.3% having stuck at 5.5% in the previous two months. GDP growth remains
weak, with recent data showing the region expanded by only 0.1% in the three
months to June 2023, the rate as the previous quatrter.

Financial markets:

3.16 Financial market sentiment and bond yields remained volatile, with the latter
generally trending downwards as there were signs inflation, while still high, was
moderating and interest rates were at a peak.

3.17 Giltyields fell towards the end of the period. The 5-year UK benchmark gilt yield
rose from 3.30% to peak at 4.91% in July before trending downwards to 4.29%,
the 10-year gilt yield rose from 3.43% to 4.75% in August before declining to
4.45%, and the 20-year yield from 3.75% to 4.97% in August and then fell back
to 4.84%. The Sterling Overnight Rate (SONIA) averaged 4.73% over the
period.

Credit review:

3.18 Having completed a review of its credit advice on unsecured deposits at UK
and non-UK banks following concerns of a wider financial crisis after the
collapse of Silicon Valley Bank purchase of Credit Suisse by UBS, as well as
other well-publicised banking sector issues, in March Arlingclose reduced the
advised maximum duration limit for all banks on its recommended counterparty
list to 35 days. This stance continued to be maintained at the end of the period.

3.19 During the second quarter of the period, Moody’s revised the outlook on
Svenska Handelsbanken to negative from stable, citing concerns around the
Swedish real estate sector.

3.20 Having put the US sovereign rating on Rating Watch Negative earlier in the
period, Fitch took further action in August, downgrading the long-term rating to
AA+, partly around ongoing debt ceiling concerns but also an expected fiscal
deterioration over the next couple of years.

3.21 Following the issue of a Section 114 notice, in September Arlingclose advised
against undertaking new lending to Birmingham City Council, and later in the
month cut its recommended duration on Warrington Borough Council to a
maximum of 100 days.

Page 124



Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 22nd November 2023

3.22 Arlingclose continued to monitor and assess credit default swap levels for signs
of ongoing credit stress and although no changes were made to recommended
durations over the period, Northern Trust Corporation was added to the
counterparty list.

3.23 Heightened market volatility is expected to remain a feature, at least in the near

term and, as ever, the institutions and durations on the Authority’s counterparty

list recommended by Arlingclose remains under constant review.

Local Context

3.24 On 318t March 2023, the Authority had net investments of £6.52m arising from
its revenue and capital income and expenditure. The underlying need to borrow
for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR),
while balance sheet resources are the underlying resources available for

investment. These factors are summarised in Table 1 below.

Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary

31.3.23 31.3.24
Forecast Forecast
£m £m
General Fund CFR 16.49 16.59
Investments CFR 13.75 9.47
Total CFR 30.24 26.06
Less: External borrowing** 8.28 18.28
Internal (over) borrowing 21.96 7.78
Less: Balance sheet resources

Usable Reserves -13.40 -11.20
Working Capital -3.10 -3.10
Net New borrowing / (investments) 5.46 -6.52

* finance leases, PFI liabilities and transferred debt that form part of the Authority’s total debt
** shows only loans to which the Authority is committed and excludes optional refinancing

3.25

The treasury management position at 31 March 2023 and the change over the
six months’ is shown in Table 2 below.

Page 125



Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 22nd November 2023

Table 2: Treasury Management Summary

31.3.23 Movement 30.9.23 30.9.23
Balance £m Balance Rate
£m £m %
Long-term borrowing
PWLB
Other
Short-term borrowing 3.75 -3.75 0
Total borrowing 3.75 -3.75 0.00
Long-term investments
Short-term investments 1.0 4.70 5.70 5.00%
Cash and cash equivalents
Total investments 1.00 4.70 5.70
Net borrowing / (investments) 2.75 -8.45 -5.70

Borrowing

3.26 CIPFA’s 2021 Prudential Code is clear that local authorities must not borrow to
invest primarily for financial return and that it is not prudent for local authorities
to make any investment or spending decision that will increase the capital
financing requirement and so may lead to new borrowing, unless directly and
primarily related to the functions of the Authority. PWLB loans are no longer
available to local authorities planning to buy investment assets primarily for
yield unless these loans are for refinancing purposes.

3.27 The Authority has not invested in assets primarily for financial return or that are
not primarily related to the functions of the Authority. It has no plans to do so in

future.

Borrowing strategy and activity

3.28 As outlined in the treasury strategy, the Authority’s chief objective when
borrowing has been to strike an appropriately low risk balance between
securing lower interest costs and achieving cost certainty over the period for
which funds are required, with flexibility to renegotiate loans should the
Authority’s long-term plans change being a secondary objective. The
Authority’s borrowing strategy continues to address the key issue of affordability
without compromising the longer-term stability of the debt portfolio.

3.29 There was a substantial rise in the cost of both short- and long-term borrowing
over the last 18 months. Bank Rate rose by 1% from 4.25% at the beginning of

Page 126



Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 22nd November 2023

April to 5.25% at the end of September. Bank Rate was 2% higher than at the

end of September 2022.
3.30 UK qilt yields were volatile, mainly facing upward pressure since early April
following signs that UK growth had been more resilient, inflation stickier than
expected, and that the Bank of England saw persistently higher rates through
2023/24 as key to dampening domestic demand. Gilt yields, and consequently
PWLB borrowing rates, rose and broadly remained at elevated levels. On 301"
September, the PWLB certainty rates for maturity loans were 5.26% for 10-year
loans, 5.64% for 20-year loans and 5.43% for 50-year loans. Their equivalents
on 315t March 2023 were 4.33%, 4.70% and 4.41% respectively.
3.31 At 30" September the Authority held no loans, a decrease of £3.75m from 315t
March 2023, as part of its strategy for funding previous and current years’
capital programmes. There are no outstanding loans on 30" September are
summarised in Table 3 below.

Table 3: Borrowing Position

30.9.23 30.9.23
31.3.23 Net 30.9.23 | Weighted | Weighted
Balance | Movement | Balance Average Average
£m £m £m Rate Maturity
% (years)
Public Works Loan Board
Banks (LOBO)
Banks (fixed-term)
Local authorities (long-term)
Local authorities (short-term) 3.75 -3.75 0.00
Total borrowing 3.75 -3.75 0.00

3.32 The Authority’s short-term borrowing cost has increased with the rise in Bank
Rate and short-dated market rates. It has no short term debt at the moment

Treasury Investment Activity

3.33 The CIPFA Treasury Management Code now defines treasury management
investments as those investments which arise from the Authority’s cash flows
or treasury risk management activity that ultimately represents balances that
need to be invested until the cash is required for use in the course of business.
3.34 The Authority holds significant invested funds, representing income received in
advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held. During the half year,

the Authority’s investment balances ranged between £0.5million and 11 million

Page 127



Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 22nd November 2023

due to timing differences between income and expenditure. The investment
position is shown in table 4 below.

Table 4: Treasury Investment Position

31.3.23 Net 30.9.23 | 30.9.23 | 30.9.23
Income Weighted
Balance | Movement | Balance Average
Return :
Maturity
£'000 £'000 £'000 % days
Banks & building societies (unsecured)
Banks & building societies (secured deposits)
Covered bonds (secured)
Government 1.00 4.70 5.70 5.00% 6
Local authorities and other govt entities
Corporate bonds and loans
Money Market Funds
Total investments 1.00 4.70 5.70

3.35 Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the Authority to invest
its funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its treasury
investments before seeking the optimum rate of return, or yield. The Authority’s
objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between
risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk
of receiving unsuitably low investment income.

3.36 As demonstrated by the liability benchmark in this report, the Authority expects
to be a long-term borrower and new treasury investments are therefore
primarily made to manage day-to-day cash flows using short-term low risk
instruments. The existing portfolio of strategic pooled funds will be maintained
to diversify risk into different asset classes and boost investment income.

3.37 Bank Rate increased by 1%, from 4.25% at the beginning of April to 5.25% by
the end of September. Short-dated cash rates rose commensurately, with 3-
month rates rising to around 5.25% and 12-month rates to nearly 6%. The rates
on DMADF deposits also rose, ranging between 5.17% and 5.26% by the end
of September

3.38 £5m that is available for longer-term/ short-term investment is invested with
DMADF.

Page 128



Cabinet

3.39

3.40

3.41

3.42

Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

22" November 2023

Non-Treasury Investments

The definition of investments in the Treasury Management Code now covers
all the financial assets of the Authority as well as other non-financial assets
which the Authority holds primarily for financial return. Investments that do not
meet the definition of treasury management investments (i.e. management of
surplus cash) are categorised as either for service purposes (made explicitly to
further service objectives) and or for commercial purposes (made primarily for
financial return).

Investment Guidance issued by the Department for Levelling Up Housing and
Communities (DLUHC) and Welsh Government also includes within the
definition of investments all such assets held partially or wholly for financial
return.

The Authority does not hold these types of investments presently, although the
setting up of the new Housing Company will include a shareholding in a
subsidiary and a loan to that Subsidiary.

Treasury Performance

The Authority measures the financial performance of its treasury management
activities both in terms of its impact on the revenue budget and its relationship
to benchmark interest rates, as shown in table 5 below

Table 5: Performance

Actual Budget Over/ Actual Benchmark Over/
£m £m under % % under
Total borrowing 0 0 0
PFI and Finance leases 0 0 0
Total debt 0 0 0
Total treasury 5.70 5.00 0.70
investments
n/a n/a n/a
Compliance

3.43 The Interim Director of Finance reports that all treasury management activities
undertaken during the quarter complied fully with the principles in the Treasury
Management Code and the Authority’s approved Treasury Management
Strategy. Compliance with specific investment limits is demonstrated in table 6
below.

Page 129



Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet

22" November 2023

Table 6: Investment Limits

2023/24 30.9.23 2023/24 | Complied?
Maximum Actual Limit Yes/No
Any single organisation, except the UK
Government
UK Central Government Unlimited £5.7m Yes

ownership

Any group of organisations under the same

Any group of pooled fu
management

nds under the same

account

Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s nominee

Limit per non-UK country

landlords

Registered providers and registered social

societies

Unsecured investments with banks and building

Loans to unrated corporates

Money Market Funds

Strategic pooled funds

Real Estate Investment Trusts

3.44 Compliance with the Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for external
debt is demonstrated in table 7 below.

Table 7: Debt and the Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary

H1 30.9.23 2023/24 2023/24
2023/24 o Operational | Authorised | Complied?
. Actual .
Maximum £000 Boundary Limit Yes/No
£°000 £'000 £'000
Borrowing 5,500 0 45,000 55,000 Yes
PFI and Finance Leases 1,000 1,000 Yes
Total debt 5,500 0 46,000 56,000 Yes

3.45 Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring it
is not significant if the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to
variations in cash flow, and this is not counted as a compliance failure.

Page 130




Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 22nd November 2023

Treasury Management Prudential Indicators

3.46 As required by the 2021 CIPFA Treasury Management Code, the Authority
monitors and measures the following treasury management prudential
indicators.

1. Liability Benchmark:

3.47 This new indicator compares the Authority’s actual existing borrowing against
a liability benchmark that has been calculated to show the lowest risk level of
borrowing. The liability benchmark is an important tool to help establish whether
the Council is likely to be a long-term borrower or long-term investor in the
future, and so shape its strategic focus and decision making. It represents an
estimate of the cumulative amount of external borrowing the Council must hold
to fund its current capital and revenue plans while keeping treasury investments
at the minimum level of £2m required to manage day-to-day cash flow.

31.3.23 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.26

Actual Forecast Forecast | Forecast
Loans CFR 30.2 26.1 27.3 27.7
Less: Balance sheet resources
Usable reserves -13.4 -11.2 -10.8 -10.2
Working Capital -3.1 -3.1 -3.1 -3.1
Net loans requirement 13.7 11.8 13.4 14.4
Plus: Liquidity allowance 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Liability benchmark 13.9 12.0 13.6 14.6
Existing borrowing 3.7 18.28 18.28 18.28

3.48 Following on from the medium-term forecast above, the long-term liability
benchmark assumes capital expenditure funded by borrowing of £18m,
minimum revenue provision on new capital expenditure based on a 40 year
asset life and income, expenditure and reserves all increasing by inflation of
7% in 2024/5 reducing to 2% ongoing. This is shown in the chart below together
with the maturity profile of the Authority’s existing borrowing. Presently
borrowing has been delivered through the use of internal resources and the
Council has no long term borrowing.

3.49 Whilst borrowing may be above the liability benchmark, strategies involving
borrowing which Is significantly above the liability benchmark carry higher risk.

2. Maturity Structure of Borrowing:

Page 131



Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 22nd November 2023

3.50 This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to refinancing risk. The
upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of all borrowing were:

e | e | s | compte
Under 12 months 50% 0% 0% Yes
12 months and within 24 months 50% 0% 0% Yes
24 months and within 5 years 50% 0% 0% Yes
5 years and within 10 years 50% 0% 0% Yes
10 years and above 100% 0% 0% Yes

3.51 Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

3. Long-term Treasury Management Investments:

3.52 The purpose of this indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of
incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The prudential
limits on the long-term treasury management limits are:

2023/24 | 2024/25
Limit on principal invested beyond year end £1.0m £0.5m
Actual principal invested beyond year end Nil Nil
Complied? Yes Yes
3.53 Long-term investments with no fixed maturity date include strategic pooled
funds, real estate investment trusts and directly held equity but exclude money
market funds and bank accounts with no fixed maturity date as these are
considered short-term.
Additional indicators
Security:
3.54 The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by

monitoring the value-weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio.
This is calculated by applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.)
and taking the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each investment.
Unrated investments are assigned a score based on their perceived risk.

Page 132



Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 22" November 2023
2023/24 30.9.23 .
Target Actual Complied?
Portfolio average credit rating A UK Govt Yes

Liquidity:

3.55 The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity risk
by monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments

within a rolling three-month period, without additional borrowing.

3.56

30.9.23 2023/24 Complied?
Actual Target P )
Total cash available within [3] months £5.7m £2.5m Yes
Total sum borrowed in past [3] months without
. . 0 0 Yes
prior notice

Interest Rate Exposures:

This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to interest rate risk. Bank

Rate rose by 1.25% from 4.25% on 15 April to 5.25% by 30" September.

c s 2023/24 30.9.23 .
?
Interest rate risk indicator Target Actual Complied?
Qppgr l‘]mlt on one-year revenue impact of a 1% 500,000 0 Yes
rise in interest rates
Uppgr }1m1t on one-year revenue impact of a 1% 500,000 0 Yes
fall in interest rates

3.57 For context, the changes in interest rates during the quarter were:

31/3/23 30/9/23
Bank Rate 4.25% 5.25%
1-year PWLB certainty rate, maturity loans 4.78% 5.69%
5-year PWLB certainty rate, maturity loans 4.31% 5.22%
10-year PWLB certainty rate, maturity loans  4.33% 5.26%
20-year PWLB certainty rate, maturity loans  4.70% 5.64%
50-year PWLB certainty rate, maturity loans  4.41% 5.43%

The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that

maturing loans and investment will be replaced at new market rates.

IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

Page 133




Agenda Item 13b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 22nd November 2023

4.1  Financial implications are set out in Section 3.

Legal Implications

4.2 A number of statutes governing the provision of services covered by this
report contain express powers or duties to charge for services. Where an
express power to charge does not exist the Council has the power under
Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 to charge where the activity is
incidental or conducive to or calculated to facilitate the Council’s statutory
function.

Service / Operational Implications

4.3  Monitoring is undertaken to ensure that income targets are achieved, with
Treasury Management activities taking place on a daily basis.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

4.4  The only impact of treasury transaction is in respect of ethical investment
linked to the Council’s investment counterparties. Presently, the Council has
a limited counterparty list based on financial risk to the authority.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1  There is always significant risk in relation to treasury transactions, this is why
Councils appoint Treasury Advisors, which in the case of Bromsgrove is
Arlingclose. In addition, there is the requirement in this area to provide a
yearly Strategy report containing indicators/limits that must be met, a half
yearly update and closure report all of which must be reported to full Council.

6. APPENDICES

None

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS

MTFP 2023/4 — February 2023 which contains this year’s Asset Strategy,
Treasury Management Strategy and MRP Policy.

8. KEY

None

Page 134



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2024/5 TO 2026/7 — Tranche 1

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr. Charlie Hotham, Finance and Enabling
Portfolio Holder

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Michelle Howell

Report Author Job Title: Head of Finance & Customer Services
email:michelle.howell@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel:

Wards Affected N/A

Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A
Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) | All
Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1  The Council will set its budget in two Tranches this year as it did in the 2023/4
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) process. The initial Tranche will be
published in the Autumn with approval of options sought at Council in
January, with a second Tranche to be considered in January once final
settlement figures are known with final budget approval sought in February.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet are asked to Resolve that:

1 They endorse the inputs into the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan as
at the start of October, and the associated risks and opportunities.

2 These inputs have been used, along with the 2023/24-25/26 Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) agreed by Council in February 2023, to project an
initial “gap” to be closed.

3 An initial Tranche of savings proposals, as set out in Section 3.12 - 3.25
and the associated Savings Proposal Document in Appendix A, will be
published on the 14" November and any feedback will be considered by
Cabinet in January 2023 prior to seeking approval at Council in January
2024.

4 Tranche 2 of this process will add further information such as the Local
Government Settlement to give a final financial position for the Council.

Cabinet Recommend to Council that:

1. That the Play capital works for 2023/4 as set out in 3.38 are approved and
added to the Capital Programme.

Page 135



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

3. Background

Introduction

3.1 The Council sets a 3-year Medium Term Financial Plan every year, with the
final Council Tax Resolution being approved by Council in February. This
year’s process will be more difficult due to the following factors:

e Starting the process with a £637k overall deficit across the three years of
the 2023/24 MTFP.

e The present cost of living crisis.

e The fact that the Council is still to close its 2020/21 financial year and the
ongoing cross sector issues in relation to Audit which are set out in the
wider Finance Report.

e The movement of the Government to funding projects for specific
outcomes and the movement of this from a bidding process to an
“allocations” process.

e The time limited nature of these funds and the pressure this puts on other
deliverables.

e Loss of key personnel, present vacancies rates, and staff retention —
linked to the Workforce Strategy.

e Business Rates and Council Tax Income — and associated collection rates
and reliefs linked to the “cost of living” crisis and C-19 grants working their
way through our system.

¢ Inflation still not reducing as quickly as Government and Financial Market
predictions.

As such, it is prudent to split the budget process into two tranches,

e Having an initial Tranche which seeks to close as much of the deficit as
possible using information known as at the end of October and seeking
approval for those savings to be implemented at Council in January,

e Having a second Tranche after the Christmas break, for which approval
will be sought in February, that takes account of the Local Government
Settlement whose final detail will not be known until early January.

3.2 This report will set out:

The starting position for the 2024/25 MTFP.

The emerging national picture including expected settlement dates.
Council Priorities

Strategic Approach

The Council’s Base Assumptions including Inflation and Grants
Fees and Charges update.

Page 136



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET

Impact on Reserves and Balances.
Capital Programme.

Robustness Statement
Consultation Details.

The Starting Position for the 2024/25 MTFEP

3.3

22"d November 2023

The Council set a three year MTFP 2023/24 to 2025/26 in February 2023. The
plan moved the Council to a sustainable budget position over the three year
planning horizon with support from reserves to achieve this of £637k over the

three year period.

Bromsgrove Position Statement

2023124 | 2024125 | 2025126
T T FX 11110 ] FX 11110 ]

Base Budget Position 2223 MTFFR

Expenditure 1394z 12,077 12,247

Funding 10260 10264 -10. 724

Mer 1.588 1,213 1,623
Revised Gap 1,588 1,213 1,623
FPressures

50 Funding For Climate Change OFFicer 11 ] 11 ] 11 ]
Savings Opticons

Environmental Services Fartnership o -25 -50

Service Rewviews -140 -3E0 -405

Town Hall -Fo -Fo -Fo

Finance Yacancie=s -100 -100 -100

rRARF -10a -10a -10a

Fenzion Fund -EEZ -EEZ -EEZ

Engages Capacity Grid [One FF) 200 200 o

102 Increase in Fees and Charge=s -3E2 -383 -330

Total Savings -1, 625 -1, 847 -1, 748
Revised PFositicon - -4 —1Z2%
Fressures

Fay Fressure Year 1 iz iz iz

Fay Fres=sure Future YWear= [13€] La] La] 165

Transport Pre==ure pe =) 33 a4

Contracts Pres=sures 150 155 1E0

Core Pressures S00n a0E 1067
Updated PFosition BE3 Iz b L

Likilkic= InFlation Foz Foz Foz
Tranche 1 Final Draft Position 1,565 ar4 1,644
Draft Local Government Financial Settlement

Flew Home=s Bonus -127

Services Grant -ES

Funding Guarantes -10z27

= Tar Base Reduction 24

Eusiness Ratesflnwestment Inc Rebaseline -517 -200 -200

Future Years Settlements - assumption -1000 -1000
Settlement Draft Amounts 1715 o Fad 1]1] o Fad 1]1]

Ldditional Fensions Savings -395 -395 -395

Conwerstion of 502 of Lkilities to a Reserwe -351 -351 -351
Revised Deficit —BHF 933 263
Mew Pressures [KnownfOngoing)

Flest FRefurbishment 124 258 258

SLM Contract Rebasing 400 241 275

Lpprentiship Schems 50 50 50

Dlata Analyst =5 =5 =5

Flanning Enforcement 25 25 25

WS Increase 33 a0 E1

Cost of all out elections 1E7

LUnder Recowery of 220232 Council Tan 122

Increaszed pay award - =0 222 140 140 [u]
Tokal 1107F Eikig: ] 504
Fewized Diraft Fosition 50 44 A31

Table 1 — Opening MTFP Position

Page 137



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

The emerging national picture including expected Settlement Dates

3.4  Local Government is in uncharted territory. C-19 has changed significantly
the way Councils and the people they serve work, or expect to be served, and
this needs to be reflected in Service Plans and associated budgets.

3.5 The War in Ukraine has still not been resolved. This has led to Inflationary
increases that initially reached levels not seen since that late 1980’s although
they are now starting to reduce. This has however had a significant impact on
our customers and stakeholders and is now labelled a “cost of living” crisis.

3.6  Councils have declared “Climate Emergencies” and have challenging carbon
reduction targets to deliver by 2030, 2040 and 2050. At the moment plans are
within existing budgets, but as we move through the next three-year period
there will be the requirement for the prioritisation of resources and approval of
additional funding on a scheme by scheme basis. These will need to be taken
account of in future budgets, although a significant part of this budget spend
will be Capital in nature.

3.7  As mentioned in the Risk section, the Government made 2 major
announcements during the LGA Conference in July 2023, both of which will
significantly affect budgeting.

e The first of these was the launch of the Office for Local Government. They
will look at Council data to assess performance and try to predict if
Councils are getting into difficulty.

e The second was a movement from a bidding process for Funds to that of
an allocation’s method using data to inform those decisions (however
there is no increase in the funds being allocated/bid for). No further
guidance has been issued since the original guidance from DLUHC in July
2023. However, it is now key that all Council returns are made thinking
about this point and our records that are accessed by the Government are
as up to date as possible.

3.8 There are a number of other significant factors in looking at the 24/5 budget
which are linked to the Local Government Finance Market. Presently:

e There are a number of Local Authorities who have now issued S114
Statements, including the largest Council in the Country Birmingham.
Given the number of Council in financial distress there is a possibility that
the Government might be far more prescriptive than in previous years in its
funding allocations.

e Bromsgrove still have accounts unaudited from 2020/21 and will not have
the cash receipting backlogs cleared until the end of this calendar year
(2023). As such, there is still a degree of uncertainty on the overall
figures, until those years accounts have been finalised and audited.

Page 138



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

3.9

3.10

e That in the Local Government sector, there were still circa 900 Audits from
2015/16 that are still outstanding at the end of the summer. There is an
issue with audit resources to deliver these audits, with generally only
upper tier authorities being close to actual timescales due to the size of
their budgets. In light of this, DLUHC are looking to implement deadlines
for delivery which will possibly mean significant numbers of Councils,
including possibly Bromsgrove, who due to time constraints have not had
audits complete might end up with qualified accounts. The Council have
written to DLUHC and the LGA over this issue.

It is understood that the Chancellors Autumn Statement will now not happen
until the 22" November. This means that it is likely the Provisional Local
Government Settlement will not take place until the week before most
Councils break up for Christmas 2023. It is expected that this year’s Local
Government Settlement will be multi-year but, would be no longer than 2
years given the impending National Elections. The final Local Government
Settlement will be required halfway through January to enable all precepting
authorities to deliver their budgets — using this gives the following timetable:

Initial Tranche 1 Options published — 14" November

Cabinet discuss initial options — 22" November.

Chancellors Statement — 22" November

Provisional Local Government Settlement — Late December

Tranche 1 approved sought by Cabinet 17" January/Council 24" January
Final Local Government Settlement — Mid January (at the earliest)
Tranche 2 options ready — Late January

Tranche 2 options presented to Cabinet — 14" February

Full Budget approved by Council — 21t February

Timescales are estimated — however the issue is that there is little time for
delivery of either Tranche 1 or Tranche 2.

Council Strategic Priorities

The Leader and Portfolio Holders, with the support of the Corporate
Management Team, will be reviewing current strategic priorities in the Autumn.
Inputting into this process will be:

e Annual Community Survey 2022

e Community Priorities Survey

e Cost of Living survey

o Census

« Office of National Statistics

e Current priorities

Page 139


https://www.ons.gov.uk/

Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

3.11 Bromsgrove District Council’s current priorities are underpinned by a set of key
themes. These are set out in the current Council Plan 2019 — 2023 and in the
Council Plan Addendum 2022/23. The 5 themes are:

Run & grow a successful business.

Finding somewhere to live.

Aspiration, work & financial independence.

Living independent, active & healthy lives.

Communities which are safe, well-maintained, and green.

3.12 The council’s vision, priorities and themes are connected using a ‘green’ thread:

“To enrich the lives and aspirations of all our residents, businesses and
visitors through the provision of efficiently run and high-quality services,
ensuring that all in need receive appropriate help, support and opportunities”.

3.13 The council cannot deliver all priorities on its own. In some cases it can support,
influence, or work collaboratively with other partner agencies to persuade them
to take a particular course of action/undertake a particular
project. Considerable support and input from partner organisations will be
needed for priorities to be successfully achieved.

Strategic Approach

3.14 The Council has come into the 2023/24 budget process with a number of
conflicting issues. These include:
e An ongoing deficit to close of £637k from the 2023/24 MTFS.
e The requirement to fund the 23/4 pay award which is 5% higher than
planned at an average value of 7%.
e Increases in Council Tax are limited at 2% or £5, which is significantly
lower than the present rates of inflation.

3.15 The Council must move to financial sustainability over the time scale of the
next MTFS and indeed was on course for this before the agreement of the
2023/4 pay award. Given the magnitude of the savings due to this it is not
prudent to expect the movement to sustainability to happen by 2024/5.
However, the level of reserves and balances presently held suggest that
moving to sustainability by 2025/26 would be deliverable without a strain on
resources for any emergency situation.

3.16 As such, the strategy must be to move the Council to financial sustainability
by the 2025/26 financial year. To get to this position there will be the need for
investment, efficiencies and possibly the requirement to fund redundancy
(both from reserves and balances). These requirements will be outputs from
the Council having to implement changes to the way it operates to continue to
become a viable entity going forward.

Page 140



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

3.17 As set out later in the Robustness Statement, in compiling Tranchel of the
budget, assumptions have been made based on the best information held
now. Issues the Council is facing are not unique, they are being faced by
almost all Councils. Tranche 2 of the budget will adjust for any funding that
the Government will provide and also look at other options to close any deficit
should the Government settlement not bridge any resultant gap. Initiatives
that will be assessed in Tranche 2 (as more time is required to analyse these
individual options) include:

e Ensuring Grants are maximised.

Ensuring Agency work reflects the income provided for its delivery.

Reviewing the effectiveness of the Council’s largest Contracts.

Maximising the effectiveness of our refuse fleet

Reviewing the location and effectiveness of our Depot

Assessing the Council’s leisure and cultural strategy in terms of

affordability

e Reviewing recharging mechanisms between the Councils for

appropriateness

e Rationalisation of Back Office services as we embrace technology.

3.18 Many of these initiatives will require investment, for which the only present
source of funding is reserves (General Fund and Earmarked Reserves). Key
areas of investment will be:

e Documentation of Processes
e Investment in automation and robotic processes
e Possible redundancy — through restructures

3.19 However, in any situation, the Council must move to sustainability by the
2025/26 financial year.

The Council’s Base Assumptions including Inflation and Grants

3.20 Itis important to set out the base assumptions under which the budget is
constructed. These assumptions can then be stress tested for various
scenarios to test the robustness of the overall budget.

3.21 Tax Base and Corporate Financing underlying assumptions are as follows:

e Council Tax — Figures assume the full 1.99% allowable increase over all
years of the 3 year MTFP. The Local plan has housing increases of 363,
457 and 338 in the three years of the MTFP. For prudence, it is assumed
that increases of 150, 200 and 150 over the three year period.

e Business Rates Increases — business rates assume no growth in the base.

e New Homes Bonus — It is assumed to be none in 24/5 onwards pending
any change that might be announced in the Local Government settlement.

Page 141



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

e Services Grant - It is assumed that Central Government Grants are at
similar levels to previous years (as was the case in 2023/4)

e Pension Fund assumptions — takes account of the latest triennial valuation
which was received in September 2022. A significant risk is that the next
revaluation will be actioned in 2026 and as such the 2026/7 figure could
well change pending the outcome of that exercise.

3.22 Grant support assumptions are as follows (Revenue and Capital). It should
be noted that these are budgeted figures and final grant figures will not be
confirmed until the time of the final Local Government Settlement.

e The main Revenue Grants are
o S31Grant-£1.126m
o Housing Benefit Administration Grant - £0.148m
o Housing Benefit Grant - £11.0m
o Revenue Cost of Collection Grant - £0.119m
e The Council has £14.492m of Levelling Up Grant to be spent by April 2025
which is match funded by £1.610m of Council funding.
e The Council has £2.6m of UK Shared Prosperity Fund to spend by April
2025. This is both revenue and capital in nature.

3.23 There are significant pressures mounting on the Council (these are all
reflected in Appendix A).

e The Q1 2023/4 monitoring sets out the issue on the pay award, which has
been mitigated in part 2023/4 by the use of the Utilities Reserve. This still
leave a £437k deficit for the year.

e However, the ongoing impact of the new pay award on our ongoing
£15.4m employees budget at an average of 7% Increase is £1,078k a
year. However, we have already accounted for a pay award of 2% (£308k)
reduces this amount to an ongoing £770k a year to resolve.

e |tis also prudent to increase the Councils 2024/5 pay award impact from
2% to 3% given the significant increases that have been offered by the
Employers during 2022/3 and 2023/4. The 2025/6 and 2026/7 pay awards
are assumed to be 2%.

e Although inflation is coming down, at this point of time it is also prudent to
include a 5% budget for inflationary increases.

e However, we have the following budgets that were included in the 2023/4
budget but have not been called on yet that could partially mitigate these
pressures which include:

o We are only using 60% of the utilities budget increases this frees up
£140k a year

o We have not called on the circa £180k of inflationary increases to
contracts which was added to the base budget.

e In addition, there is the £351k utilities reserve that will have no calls on it
for 2024/5 and 2025/6.

Page 142



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

e We have included as an appendix the impact of a 7% increase in fees and
charges (non parking) — this amounts to an additional £273k. This
increase is in line with the inflationary increases to salaries which are
running at just over 7% and inflation which as of October 2023 was 6.8%.
Looking at a sensitivity analysis around this figure (although the increases
mean that the Council is just keeping pace with cost increases):

o If this increase was below inflation at just to 4% this would lead to a
savings/Income budget of £156k. However, at this level there
would be an ongoing deficit of £117k that would never be
recovered.

o An 8% increase would lead to a savings/income budget of £312k.

o It should be noted that another district in Worcestershire is looking
to increase WRS fees and charges by just under 7%. Given that it
is common practice to increase these fees and charges by the
same across the County, the increases would be in line with these
levels.

o We have also assumed that inflation on fees and charges will be
2%in 2025/6. This amounts to an additional £101k in 2025/6 and
£103k in 2026/7.

e The 2023/4 MTFP made the prudent assumption that not all the 2023/4
local government settlement was included in 2024/5 and 2025/6. This
amounted to £515k (a level of £1.2m was assumed not £1.7m). As part of
the base 2024/5 MTFP the assumption will be made that the central
Government funding levels will be at the same level as previous years.
This has reflected the reality of recent funding settlements.

e As part of the 23/4 MTFP, Departments had lists of possible savings
areas. These are set out in Appendix B.

3.24 Given these changes, a surplus position of circa £182k is projected for
2024/5, reducing to £53k in 2025/6 and £78k in 2026/7. This is before
departmental pressures.

3.25 Departmental pressures are summarised in the following table and amount to
£518k in 2024/5 increasing to £543k in 2026/7.

Service Adiu:tments 2024125] 202526 2026827
Reduction in Benefits Overpavrnents Target 200 200 200
Idze of HYO Fuel b 1003 of Fleet a0 a0 a0
Increaze in HE E ztablizhment 10 10 10
PRA Housing Licence Costs 15 5 L]
Planning Enforcernnet rough WhHS 72 72 i
Inzreased Parking Enforcernent SLA 93 93 93
Bt lncreased Charges 19 33 |
|Fterest Charges on Updated Capital Programme ki 36 6
tEF Increases on Capital Prograrme 24 45 48

Table 2 Departmental Pressures

Page 143



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

e There is presently a target of £500k for the reclaiming of Benefit
overpayments. We now have more accurate information and processes
which mean that initial payments are more accurate and the need for
recovery of overpayments has diminished. Over the past 2 years the
Council has recovered under half of this amount (with many linked to
Universal Credit payments) and so it is prudent to reduce this amount to
£300k.

e The Government has still not provided guidance on Waste delivery. The
Council has a diesel fleet which could use HVO fuel would reduced the
Carbon footprint of the fleet and the Council significantly. With alternatives
to Diesel (Electric and Hydrogen powered vehicles) being extremely
expensive with vehicles 2 to 4 times more expensive than existing vehicles
it would be prudent to ensure the fleet used HVO fuel, significantly
reducing the Council’s carbon footprint. However, HVO fuel at the
moment is significantly more expensive than diesel and this would cost an
additional £100k a year. The Councils Carbon pledge is to move to this
position over time so a £30k increase in budget allows for, prices
dependent a 30% use of this fuel and an estimated savings of 206 tonnes
of greenhouse gases from the fleet.

e The HR structure reports into one post. This funding added a second
senior post to relieve pressure in this service area. This is a shared service
and so costs are split with Redditch.

e There is the new requirement for the monitoring of the Private Housing
Sector. There is a capital bid of £30k for software to undertake this. The
ongoing licensing costs are £15k a year as they will be shared with
Redditch.

e The present pilot scheme on planning enforcement being delivered by
Worcester Regulatory Services is regularised as part of the budget at an
ongoing cost of £72k a year.

e The Service Level Agreement between the Council and Wychavon District
Council for the management and enforcement of on and off street parking
increases from £242k to £335k a year, an increase of £93k a year. This is
a new 5 year contract which will commence on the 15t April 2024. Future
years increases of this contract will increase with CPI.

e The North Worcestershire Water Management Service Level Agreement
with Redditch and Wyre Forest is being revised to reflect actual provision.
The existing allocations are the existing proportion of costs are Wyre
Forest 52% (£105k), Redditch 26% (£66k) and Bromsgrove 22%. (£61k).
These will change to 43% Bromsgrove, 32% Wyre Forest and 25%
Redditch. This would be a current year budget equivalent of Bromsgrove
£100k, Redditch £67k and Wyre Forest £72k.

e The Capital section sets out new items and changes to the Capital
programme. These will be addressed in that section. However, there are
ongoing additional revenue costs of those schemes that amount to £35k
for interest charges and £24k for Minimum Revenue Provision
requirements.

Page 144



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

3.26 These departmental changes result in an overall £518k pressure in the 2024/5
financial year reducing the overall position to a deficit of £337k and then
£465k by 2026/7. The whole revenue budget is summarised in the table on
the following page.

3.27 To meet strategic priorities, the Council requires more funding. In reviewing
the possible areas of savings set out in Appendix A, it was agreed that all
need to be assessed as part of the 2024/5 MTFP process although the
following three should be prioritised so that their impact could be possibly
included in Tranche 2 of the budget:

e Recharges

e Debt costs — given the slippage in the Capital Programme.
e Business Rates Re-baselining.

Page 145



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

Table 3 Revised MTFP Position
Bromsgrove Base Position

202N24[2024125] 2029 26] 20260 27|
" f000 | £000 [ £000 [ £000

Base Budget Position 22423 MTFP

E xpenditure 1948 | 12077 | 12347 | 12347

Funding -103600 | -10.864 | -10,724 | -10.724

Met 1588 | 1.213 | 1.623 | 1.623
Revized Gap 22423 MTFS 1588 | 1.213 | 1.623 | 1.623
Fhase 1Savings 202324 MTFD -1.625 | -1.847 | -1.748 | -1.748
Revized Position -37 -634 -125 -125
Phaze 1 Preszsures 202324 MTFp 1,602 1,608 1,769 1,769
Phase 1202324 MTFF Fosition 1,565 974 1644 | 1644
Local Governrmant Settlernent -1715 -1200 -1200 -1200
Additional Savings [Phaze 2] i -Fav -f07 -fa7
Additional Prezsures - Phase 2 107 229 B34 B34
Final 202324 MTFFP Position 250 -44 431 L%
Known Changes
234 Pay duward - 4% bore than planned 7o 70 7ra
| hilities Increazes running at BOZE - 4022 Savings -140 -140 -140
Exizting Inflation Budget [Unallocated) 138 -194 -134
[nflation on Caontracts - addibional 5% 90 90 90
Additional 15 on 245 Paw Award - to 322 154 154 154
¥+ additional Fees and Charges [hcome -273 =273 -273
Additional 252 Paw dward For 267 308
Cluarter 1234 Overspend position 788
Idze of 234 Untilities Reserve -351
2% Council Tax 20256 -191 -191
2% Council Tax 20267 -195
Year 2 Fees and Charges [hcome at 255 -1 -1
Y'ear 3 Fees and Charges [hcome at 25 -1
|ncrease in number of Properties [Ctax [noome] -3k -84 -1
Fovernrment Grant at 234 Levels -515 -515 -515
Draft Opening Position 437 -182 -53 -8
Service Adjustments
Reduction in Benefite Overpavrnents Target 200 200 200
Idze of HWVO Fuel by 10072 of Fleet a0 a0 a0
Increaze in HA Establi shrent 10 10 10
FRA Houzing Licence Costz 15 15 15
Flarnning Enforcermnet through wWhHS e T T
Increazed Parking Exforcement SLA 93 93 93
kb Increazed Charges 39 39 39
Interest Charges on Updated Capital Programme 35 36 3B
MMBP Increases on Capital Programmme 24 45 43
Revized Opening Position 437 337 488 465

Fees and Charges update

3.28 The section, looks at the impact of proposed Fees and Charges increases for
the 2024/25 Financial year. These increases are shown in detail by service in
the Fees and Charges Report which is shown as Appendix C. The table
below highlights the possible increase of income if 7% was applied across the
board. The 7% has been applied to Contributions and Fees and Charges

Page 146



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

(not parking) budgets and not on SLA Income or lifeline, where charges are
set statutorily, and charges across more than one area.

2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
Existing Budget -3,786,000 -3,791,000 -3,791,000
7% Increase 24/5 -273,000 -273,000 -273,000
2% Increase 25/6 -101,000 -101,000
2% Increase 26/7 -101,000
Revised Budget -4,059,000 -4,165,000 -4,266,000

Table 4 Fees and Charges Increases at 7%
3.29 The overall impact on the Council’s position is set out in the following section.
In setting the base budget levels to apply the increases an assessment has
been made on deliverability.
Impact on Reserves
3.30 The existing 23/24 MTFP saw general fund balances reduce by £637k over
the three year period as the original plan moved the Council towards
sustainability. In the 2023/4 budget, the Council was prudent and reviewed all
its earmarked Reserves and reallocated a substantial amount to the General
Fund and also a newly formed Utilities Reserve due to the significant pressure
on budgets in that area. As we have moved into 2023/4 there have been
additional inflationary pressures, although they have been due to staffing and
the 2023/4 allocation of the Utilities Reserve has been used to mitigate these.
Years 2 and 3 of this reserve are not required and have been transferred to
the General Fund to bolster its position.
3.31 The projected 2024/5 to 2026/7 position, at Tranche 1, has £1,290k of
pressures to mitigate. If alternatives are not found in Tranche 2 then the
General Fund will be required to support this deficit. Presently the general
Fund sits at a value of £4.625m (assuming that it is required to fund this
shortfall) at the 315t March 2027. This sum is approximately 10.5% of gross
expenditure and above the 5% benchmark quoted by the Government a being
a minimum requirement. If Housing benefit payments, which are passported
through the Council are ignored than this percentage rises to 15.9% of gross
expenditure.
3.32 The analysis in Table 5 sets out the effects on Council General Fund and
Earmarked Reserves. Full detail is set out in Appendix D

Page 147



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22" November 2023
Reserves F"usiti:n 202 024| 2024825] 202526] 2026827
General Fund Opening Positrion h.800 | 5.213 | 5.578 | 5.090
aeneral Fund Changes -587 365 -488 -465
General Fund Closing Position 5.213 | 5578 | 5.090 | 4.625
Earrnarked Rezerves 6,329 | 5502 | 5502 | 5502

Table 5 Reserves Position

e 1In 2023/4
o We start with £5.800m in the General Fund Reserve.
= £100k will be moved into the it from the Rates Reserve
= £250k was already being used to subsidise the base budget
= The overspend position is £437k
o This results in a closing 23/4 position of £5.213m
e In 2024/5
o We start with £5.213m
= We propose to transfer years 2 and 3 of the utilities reserve in
as the view is that this is now not required - £0.702m.
= There is a £337k deficit figure that will need funding.
o This results in a closing 24/5 position of £5.578m
e In 2025/6
o the opening position is £5.578m
= The present draft budget is a deficit of £488k which will require
funding.
o This results in a closing 25/6 position of £5.090m
e In 2026/7
o the opening position is £5.090m
= The present draft budget is a deficit of £465k which will require
funding.
o This results in a closing 26/7 position of £4.625m

Capital Programme

3.33 The Council over the past number of years has not spent its capital
programme allocations in year. A review has been carried out of
e All schemes that have not started (both from 22/23 and from previous
years)
e Schemes that have started
To assess deliverability and links to revised strategic priorities.

3.34 Present rationale is for any scheme not yet started (unless grant or S106
funded) to rebid for funds as part of the 2024/25 budget process. There will
be the need to add items to the capital programme to include sums for:

e |ICT hardware (such as laptops, etc)

Page 148



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

e Property Maintenance budgets (as minimal and significant work is required
to ensure energy efficiency compliance).

3.35 The priority in capital terms is for the Council to spend its grant funding. It has
the following:
e Levelling Up of £16.1m (£14.5m Grant, £1,6m Council)
e UK Shared Prosperity Funding of £2.8m

This funding is time limited and must all be spent by 2026 (with UKSPF being
2025). Therefore, there is a question over what resources would be available
to manage any significant capital spend above these schemes.

3.36 Appendix E sets out the present capital programme as agreed at Council in
February. It should be noted that in the original capital programme was in
2025/6 £1.597m of requirements for Barnt Green Millenium Park Toilets. This
should have been removed as it was in-correct, and the works had been
completed. Spend to date is £1.654m. Of this amount is £0.635m which
relates to the Burcot development. This takes total Burcot development
spend up to £11.2m of the total £11.6m budgeted costs.

3.37 The table below highlights additional Capital Programme bids, and
incorporates bids approved in the Quarter 1 financial monitoring for approval.
The revenue budget takes account of these additional costs. Full descriptions
are set out in the Savings Proposal document.

23/4 24/5 25/6 26/7 27/8
Q1 Approves Change - Fleet Replacement Costs £9,400 £15,000
Q1 Approved Change - Wheely Bin Increas £85,000
Q1 Approved Change - Wild Flowes Machinery £62,000
Revised Total £156,400 £0 £15,000 £0 £0

Table 6 — Capital Programme Changes
3.38 The following table summarised the Play Area requirements known at the

moment. As per Council on the 25" October, Members are feeding through
further Parks and Open Spaces requirements.

Page 149



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22" November 2023
Leisure Requirements 23/4 24/5 25/6 26/7 27/8
Cotton Pool Sanders Park £32,500
Sanders Park Pavilion improvements £10,000
Sanders Park refurbishments to café building exterior

£10,000
BDC Play areas £35,000{ £100,000
Additional parking as per Engineering team plan Sanders Park £215,000
Pathway and parking areas repairs Sanders Park £14,500
ClIr request Install height restrictor and bollards / hoops to car
park to prevent traveller access £15,000
MMP recommendation. Check that the access ramp from Leach
Heath Lane is DDA compliant. S5t Chads £20,000
Total £87,500| £364,500 f0 f0 £0

Table 7 Play Area Audit Requirements

An Initial Risk Assessment

3.39 As set out the Strategic Approach and Robustness Statement sections we are
budgeting in a time of extreme uncertainty.

3.40 As per the Risk Reports that are reported to both Executive and Audit,
Governance and Standards and Committees these are:

Resolution of the approved budget position.

Financial process rectification.

Decisions made to address financial pressures and implementing new
projects that are not informed by robust data and evidence.

Adequate workforce planning.

The next Pension fund re-valuation which will impact 2026/7 figures.

3.41 The core risks of implementation

Any savings proposal must pass the S151 Officers tests for robustness
and delivery. If items are not deliverable or amounts not obtainable,
they cannot be included.

Implementation of savings to time and budget — there must be full
implementation processes documented to ensure implementation
within timescales.

Non delivery is a high risk - Savings tracking and ensuring
implementation happens based on the plans and the assumptions will
become part of the Council’s core processes

Loss of key personnel will be crucial in a number of proposals and
mitigation plans will need to be drawn up

Change of corporate direction/priorities

Robustness Statement

3.42 For Tranche 1, the opinion of the Interim Director of Finance is that the
2024/25 budget estimates contain considerable risk due to the level of

Page 150



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

uncertainty in the Council’s operating environment, making it problematic to
develop meaningful assumptions.

3.43 The revenue budget and capital programme have been formulated having
regard to several factors including:

Funding Available.

Inflation.

Risks and Uncertainties.

Priorities.

Service Pressures.

Commercial Opportunities.

Operating in a Post C-19 environment.

3.44 The MTFP highlights that the current financial position is potentially untenable
without some form of intervention or further substantial savings and this will
become clearer with the Chancellors Statement in November. Whilst a
balanced budget for 2023/24 was approved with the use of reserves and
balances in February 2023, the Council is currently forecasting a £0.5m
overspend in 2023/24 due to the additional demands placed on it due to the
provisional pay award, which in turn is utilising reserves balances to fund
these pressures.

3.45 Given all the uncertainty which encapsulates this MTFP, the assumptions
have been based on the best available information to the Council at this time.
Work will continue in validating all assumptions, robustly challenging
estimates, ensuring the delivery of existing saving plans. Updates will be
included in Tranche 2 of the MTFS and balanced budget setting process.

Tranche 1 Feedback

3.46 Tranche One is the first Phase of the 2024/25 budget process. The proposals
are set out in Appendix C of the Savings Proposal Document. A feedback
section is included at the end of that document. Any feedback can then be
reported. The draft consultation timetable is in Table 5.

Savings Proposals and MTFP Published 14" November 2023
Budget Scrutiny Committee 215 November 2023
Cabinet 22" November 2023
Feedback Closing Date 5% January 2024
Cabinet 17™ January 2024
Council 24" January 2024

Table 8 Consultation Timetable

3.47 Hard copies of the Savings Proposal Document (Appendix A) can be available
on request. The Savings Proposal Document will be published on the website

Page 151



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

and internal intranet (Orb) for residents, businesses and staff to view and
provide responses via an online survey. The Council has raised awareness of
the budget proposals via use of social media.

4. IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

4.1  Financial implications are set out in section 3.

Legal Implications

4.2 A number of statutes governing the provision of services covered by this
report contain express powers or duties to charge for services. Where an
express power to charge does not exist the Council has the power under
Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 to charge where the activity is
incidental or conducive to or calculated to facilitate the Council’s statutory
function.

Service / Operational Implications

4.3  Monitoring will be undertaken to ensure that income targets are achieved.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

4.4  The implementation of the revised fees and charges will be notified in
advance to the customer to ensure that all users are aware of the new
charges and any concessions available to them.

4.5 Initial Equalities Impact Assessments will be taken where required.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 Thereis arisk that if fees and charges are not increased that income levels
will not be achieved, and the cost of services will increase. This is mitigated
by managers reviewing their fees and charges annually.

6. APPENDICES

Appendix A — Savings Proposal Document
Appendix B — Possible Savings Areas
Appendix C — Fees and Charges by Service
Appendix D - Reserves

Page 152



Agenda Item 13c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22"d November 2023

Appendix E — Existing Capital Programme

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

7. KEY

None

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Quarter 2 2023-24 — Financial and Performance Report

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Hotham — Portfolio Holder for Finance
and Governance

Portfolio Holder Consulted | Yes

Relevant Head of Service Michelle Howell
Deborah Poole

Report Head of Finance and Customer Services
Authors michelle.howell@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Head of Business Transformation, Organisational
Development and Digital Strategy
d.poole@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Wards Affected All Wards
Ward Councillor(s) | No
consulted

Relevant Strategic | All
Purpose(s)

Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

This report contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph(s) 2, 3 & 6 of
Part | of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:

e The current overspend position in relation to Revenue and Capital
Budgets for the period April to September and the full year revenue
overspend position of £464k after applying £351k from the Utilities
Reserve as approved at Quarter 1 be noted.

e The present status of the Asset Strategy.

e There is no change to the procurements over £200k due to be
delivered during 2023/4 from those listed in Quarter 1.

e The Q2 Performance data for the Period April to September 2023
be noted.

e The application of £50k from the General Fund for Enforcement
Action to be taken at a site in Alvechurch as detailed in Appendix F.

That Cabinet is asked to Recommend to Council:

e Changes to the Capital Programme in relation to ICT are actioned,
bringing forward Cyber Security linked Tape Drive replacements
forward from 2024/5 into 2023/4, and increasing the budget in
2023/4 to ensure the continuation of the Civica OpenRevenues
system for the administration of council tax, business rates and
housing benefits as detailed in Appendix F.

Page 155


mailto:michelle.howell@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
mailto:d.poole@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

2. BACKGROUND

2.1  This report presents at Quarter 2 (April — September) 2023/24

e the Council’s forecast outturn revenue monitoring position for
2023/24 based on data to the end of Quarter 2

e An update on progress on the 2023/24 budget process

e Procurement pipeline projects (over £50Kk)

e The organisations performance against the strategic priorities
outlined in the Council Plan Addendum, including operational
measures to demonstrate how the council is delivering its
services to customers.

3. DETAILED PERFORMANCE
Financial Performance

3.1 As part of the monitoring process a detailed review has been
undertaken to ensure that issues are considered, and significant
savings and cost pressures are addressed. This report sets out, based
on the position at the end of Quarter 2, the projected revenue outturn
position for the 2023/24 financial year and explains key variances
against budget.

3.2 The £13.8m full year revenue budget included in the table below is the
budget that was approved by Council in February 2023. The table also
includes the forecast outturn position for the year.

2023/24 Approved Budget | 2023/24 Forecast Outturn |2023/24 Forecast Variance
to Budget

Business Transformation and Organisational Development 1,745,422 1,720,614 (24,808)
Community and Housing GF Services 1,058,122 1,094,576 36,454
Corporate Budgets 1,455,265 1,455,265 -
Corporate Services 1,378,418 1,496,668 118,250
Environmental Services 3,598,710 4,023,426 424,716
Financial and Customer Services 1,214,717 1,559,175 344,458
Legal, Democratic and Property Services 1,727,443 1,681,696 (45,747)
Planning, Regeneration and Leisure Services 1,384,644 1,373,713 (10,931)
Regulatory Client 259,337 231,981 (27,356)
Net Budget 13,822,078 14,637,114 815,036
Corporate Financing (13,822,078) (13,822,078)
Overall Total - 815,036 815,036
Utilities Reserve (351,000) (351,000)
Overall Total - 464,036 464,036

Budget Variances
3.3  During August and September 2023, budget managers were invited to
budget monitoring training which focused on how to predict their

Page 156



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

financial position for the 2023/24 financial year, as well as how to input
that forecast into the TechOne financial system. This is the first time
that budget managers have been asked to directly input their forecast
financial positions into the system since the implementation of
TechOne, and budget managers have been supported by the Finance
Team throughout this process. This is the start of a journey for budget
managers, but one that we hope in time will form part of regular
financial monitoring reported to Members. A detailed review of the
financial position input to TechOne has been undertaken by the
Finance management team with some adjustments to assumptions
reflected. This has included updating forecasts where they have been
inadvertently omitted, updating signage, reviewing the forecast position
per nominal code and verifying the salary costs including pay award
included in the financial position.

3.4  Overall, the Council is currently forecasting a revenue overspend for
2023/24 in the region of £815k, before the application of £351k from
the Utilities Reserve as approved at Quarter 1. This forecast overspend
is predominantly due to:

e the implications of the 2023/24 pay award - £1,925 level per pay
point plus on costs has been offered by the Employers and was
agreed on 15t November 2023. This will be paid in the December
payroll and backdated to 15t April 2023.

e temporary and interim staff requirements - whilst there are a
number of vacancies within teams across the Council, some posts
are being covered by temporary staff and this has therefore resulted
in some cost pressures.

e additional fuel and fleet hire costs within the Place and Waste
Teams.

¢ the impact of homelessness and the cost of temporary
accommodation costs.

This overspend is offset in part by:

e aforecast underspend against the utilities budget provision due to
utilities inflation running at 70%. In the 2023/24 budget we assumed
a 100% increase in budget and also set up a reserve for the same
amount.

e anticipated additional income across various Waste Services.

This position will continue to be reviewed particularly given the impact
of the increasing costs linked to inflation, and further updates will be
provided to Members throughout 2023/24.

3.5 As previously reported in the Quarter 1 report, vehicle hire will put a

pressure on the revenue budgets this year, as the refurbishment
project on the Refuse fleet is requiring vehicles on hire to continue the

Page 157



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

work. There have also been issues with the fleet unrelated to the
refurbishment project that has resulted in higher rental costs as well.
Overall, it is anticipated that this will result in a cost pressure in the
region of £300k for the year.

3.6  This in-year budget forecast reflects the best information available at
the present time, however it is important to note that there are a
number of key factors that may impact upon the financial position which
are not yet reflected fully within the forecast, including:

e The present cost of living crisis and the impact that this may have
upon demand for council services throughout the winter period,
including the impact of homelessness and the cost of bed and
breakfast temporary accommodation costs.

« Inflationary increases — general inflation is coming down but is still
running at 6.8% and will impact upon transport costs, utilities and
contracts in particular.

3.7 The full year effect of a £815k overspend will be mitigated in part by the
application of £351k from the Utilities Reserve as approved at Quarter
1. This leaves a £464k overspend position. The ongoing 2023/24
pay increases position has been reflected as a budget pressure in the
2024/25 MTFP process.

3.8  As previously reported, it is important to note that the Council is yet to
close its accounts for the 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 financial
years. This could therefore result in adjustments to the actual
expenditure/income and forecast outturn positions as reported in the
table above. Further updates will be provided to Members throughout
the financial year (this work is being led by the Audit Standards and
Governance Committee).

Additional Funding Requirements

3.9 There are no revenue based additional funding requests in Q2.

Capital Monitoring

3.10 A capital programme of £10.9m was approved in the Budget for
2023/24 in March 2023. Many of these schemes are already in
partial delivery in the 2022/23 financial year. By approving this list, the
Council also agreed sums not spent in 2022/23 (and 2021/22 by default
if schemes originated earlier than 2022/23 as sums have been carried
forward through to the 2021/22 MTFS Report) to be carried forward into
2023/4. The table also splits amounts by funding Source, Council or
third party.

Page 158



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22 November 2023
Financial Year Total Budget | Council Funded | External Funded

£000 £000 £000

2021/22 16,511 12,146 4,366

2022/23 8,126 1,485 6,641

2023/24 10,852 1,694 9,158

2024/25 4,921 2,224 2,697

2025/26 3,156 1,558 1,598

3.11

Included in this funding the Council also have the following Grant
Funded Schemes which are being delivered in 2023/24:

The two Levelling Up schemes — Old Fire Station and Market which
are funded via £14.5m of Government Funding, and the Council is
funding £1.6m of works.
o The Market Street budget has reduced in overall terms to
£10.4m. Following a set of meetings in July and August an
initial £12.2m the estimated spend has been value
engineered down to £11.4m —a £1m overspend. The
timetable for delivery has been revised and the application
went to planning on the 13™ October. There is a significant
risk that the project will be delivered at least 6 months late.
Under the present funding rules the Council would be liable
for funding the project, and not the Government, during this
period. The Council are in negotiation with DLUHC on a
funding extension (as these are now being awarded to New
High Street Fund).
o Windsor Street demolition tenders in process although this
may now start in September not June. This is due to
“‘unlawful access” issues to the building. There is additional
levels of pollution which are being assessed and new
Environment Agency rules are needing to be delivered to in
terms of removal of this type of polluted materials.
o Public realm, though is projected to be underspent by £700k
which mitigates a significant amount of the Market Hall £1m

overspend.

UK Shared Prosperity Schemes totalling £2.8m (although it should
be noted that these grant funded schemes are a mix of capital and

revenue).

The Burcot Lane development at £10.275m.

3.12 The spend at Quarter 2 is £1.654m (£0.720m Q1) against the overall
2023/24 capital budget totalling £10.851m is detailed in Appendix A. It

Page 159



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

should be noted that as per the budget decision carry forwards of
£2.843m will be added to this figure to take account of slippage from
2022/23.

3.13 The following changes are requested for approval (allowing for slippage
as set out in 3.11 above):

e Thatin year 3, as per the MTFP Papers the Barnt Green Toilet
has been removed.

e |ICT have a capital bid for £177,500 at each council in 2024-25
for Server Replacement. We would like to bring £50k of that
money forward to this year if possible, as our Tape Backup
server/library is beginning to fail quite often and this is the most
important part of the Cyber Security attack response, as well as
providing day to day backups of our data.

BDC Capital Bid ]

Capital implications
Bidrsaving 2025-
Departmen Funding Source Reference as| 2022-23 | 2023-24| 2024-25
t Strategic Purpose Description ie. Grant, Borrowing, Reserve, S106 O !s';:;.mlmen per form E £ E o

€T |Enabling the Autherity Cisco Network Update ki 1CT08 1 5,717 11.574] 0] 34877
T Server

Enabiling the Autherity Replacemeant Y ICT10 83,250 2,000 177,500| 18.500
ICT Enabling the Authority Laptop Refresh Y ICT12 5.000] 25000 150,000 5.000

TOTAL 93,967 38,574 327,500 58,377

e An increase to the capital programme totalling £410k in 2023/24
to ensure the continuation of the Civica OpenRevenues system
for the administration of council tax, business rates and housing
benefits as detailed in Appendix F. The system is shared
between Bromsgrove District and Redditch Borough Councils;
therefore, half of this expenditure will be recharged to Redditch
Borough Council under the shared service arrangement. The
cost to the council, a £205k increase over 5 years at an interest
rate of 5.04% is a cost of (MRP £41k interest £10k) £51k per
year.

3.14 The detailed Capital Programmes (21/22 to 2025/26) are set out in
Appendix A.

Earmarked Reserves and their application

3.15 The position as reported to Council in February 2023 as per the
2023/24 — 2025/26 Medium Term Financial Plan is shown in Appendix
B.

3.16 As was noted in paragraph 3.7 above, £351k of the Utilities Reserve
was approved by Council to mitigate the impact of the increased costs
arising from the 2023/24 pay award. However, this still leaves £464k to
be funded from the general fund to bring the overall position back to
break even.

Page 160



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

3.17 There is the Request to fund £50,000 from the General Fund for
Enforcement Action to be taken at a site in Alvechurch as detailed in
Appendix F.

Asset Strategy Update

3.18 The Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2015 set out the minimum level of energy efficiency
required to let non-domestic properties in England and Wales.

3.19 The Property Services Team continue to undertake various works
across our property portfolio to contribute to improvements in the
energy rating and performance of our buildings. Works are necessary
at various sites to meet Part 3 of the Regulations, which contains the
minimum level of energy efficiency provisions, which is currently set at
an energy performance certificate (EPC) rating of at least band E. The
Authority recognises the significant increases in energy costs and must
act, as Landlord, to install energy efficiency improvements above the
current requirement to make energy savings.

3.20 Recent works have been undertaken at various sites within the Public
Building property portfolio. These include the full LED lighting upgrades
at Parkside Offices; the completion of upgrade works to the library space
in Parkside are imminent. A successful Listed Building planning
application was submitted for the installation of solar PV was submitted
for Parkside, with installation works beginning in September 2023.

3.21 The minimum level of energy efficiency provisions will mean that,
subject to certain requirements and exemptions, from 1 April 2023, as
Landlord, we must not continue letting a non-domestic property which
is already let if that property has an EPC rating of band F or G. Where
a landlord wishes to continue letting property which is currently sub-
standard, they will first need to ensure that energy efficiency
improvements are made which raise the rating to a minimum of E.

3.22 When an EPC is lodged on the EPC register it is then valid for a ten-
year period. A new EPC is not required each time there is a change of
tenancy, provided it is no more than ten years old. As Landlord, we
have the option to have an EPC renewed, which is beneficial where we
have undertaken or implemented significant energy saving measures.

3.23 The rolling programme of Condition Surveys and Energy Improvement
Audits of the Council property portfolio is in progress and is in progress
and will continue over the next 2 years. The findings of these surveys
are providing essential data to enable us to fully evaluate the extent of
works and investment required.

Page 161



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

3.24 Work continues on the asset register to identify properties that no
longer meet the objectives identified in the Asset Management
Strategy.

The Artrix

3.25 The Property Services and Facilities Team have been managing the
Artrix site as a void premises since the building closed (excluding the
time of NHS occupation for delivering Covid vaccinations). The future
of the site and its intended use has been unknown, therefore
reinstatement works have not been taken, to avoid misdirected spend
or allocation of resources.

3.26 The Holding Trust has recently been approached by a Theatre provider
with a proposal to temporarily relocate a theatre, potentially affected by
RAAC, into the Artrix, which would determine the length of any lease
agreements. There is a considerable amount of spend required to
reinstate the building and ensure that all compliance documentation is
current and the building fit for use. The costs of enabling this will be
borne in part by the Council and in part by the Artrix Holding Trust and
the income that they have or stand to achieve for rental of the building.
The services of Framework contractors where possible will require
instruction and lead times factoring existing workloads will need to be
considered. Initial enquiries have been made and cost estimates are in
progress, but due consideration must be given to a realistic timescale
for delivery and execution of the required works, offset against the
income that will be generated. While the team are working to produce
the relevant information and potential programme of works and costs,
other works will put on hold across the portfolio to release the
resources required to achieve this.

Reinforced autoclaved aerated concrete (RAAC)

3.27 The Property Services team are conducting a desktop study to rule out
the presence of RAAC within RBC / BDC properties. Using
construction drawings where available and historic knowledge of the
buildings we are working through the portfolio; to date, no areas of
concern have been identified. The process should be completed
shortly and finding will be presented at the next CMT meeting. If any
issues are identified, these will be flagged, and the senior management
team notified immediately.

3.28 If the team suspect the presence of RAAC planks we will seek
guidance from a competent structural engineer to assess it and
develop a management plan.

3.29 Reinforced autoclaved aerated concrete (RAAC) is a lightweight
material that was used mostly in flat roofing, but also in floors and
walls, between the 1950s and 1990s and it is believed that prominent
use was within school construction in these periods.

Page 162



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

3.30 ltis less durable than traditional concrete and there have been
problems as a result, which could have significant safety
consequences, that is, its liable to collapse.

3.31 Itis a cheaper alternative to standard concrete, is quicker to produce
and easier to install, but has a typical lifespan of 30 years. It is an
aerated product and has a ‘bubbly appearance’, and when exposed to
moisture or polluted air over a prolonged period, the strength of the
materials can be compromised. The aeration allows the moisture to
penetrate the material, which in turn rusts the steel and compromises
the integrity of the reinforcing bars. Concern also relates to the internal
reinforcement steel, as it does not span the full length of the panels /
planks, insufficient to withstand the weight and any additional load.

3.32 Because of this, RAAC is often coated with another material, such as
bitumen on roofing panels. But this material can also degrade, further
compromising the strength and performance of the RAAC.

3.33 The Health and Safety Executive states RAAC is now beyond its
lifespan and may "collapse with little or no notice".

Procurement

3.34 The Q1 Finance and Performance Report set out the initial set of
procurements to be delivered by the Council over the next year.
Following this initial report:

e On a quarterly basis a report “the Approval to Spend Report” will be
provided to Cabinet which sets out the Council’s Procurement
Pipeline for approval to be included on the forward plan and an
analysis of spending over the past 4 years to identify spending with
suppliers over the £50k limit to ensure this spending is converted to
properly contracted expenditure.

e That items from the initial pipeline report at the appropriate Key
Decision level, as set out in Appendix C, are added to the forward
plan.

3.35 The table in Appendix C sets out those procurements (Capital and
Revenue) over £50k which are delegated for approval to Cabinet or
Officers over the next year. It is proposed that these are added to the
forward plan. There are 8 contracts over £50k in value that will be
entered onto the forward plan. For full transparency, 4 contracts under
the £50k value are also shown as are 6 contracts where the full value is
still being evaluated.

Page 163



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

3.36 As the Council runs a shared service, a number of procurements that
impact on Bromsgrove will be procured through Redditch. For
reference these are also included in Appendix D.

Performance Report

3.37 The first section of this report shows the organisations performance
against the strategic priorities outlined in the Council Plan Addendum.
Additional comments and updates have been provided for the success
measures to explain progress/activity. The final section of the report
includes some operational measures to demonstrate how the council is
delivering its services to customers.

3.38 The process of performance reporting will develop iteratively; however
this document is a snapshot in time and very much a temperature
check of the organisation, the layout comprises:

Strategic Priorities — success measures
Operational Measures — by service area
Financial Data (separate report on this occasion)
Corporate Projects (by exception)

3.39 The Council has an approved Council Plan in place that was completed
before the Covid-19 outbreak, the Council then developed the Council
Plan Addendum to take the potential shift in priorities bought about by
the pandemic into consideration. The current key priorities are:

Economic Development and Regeneration
Housing Growth

Work and Financial Independence

Improved Health and Wellbeing

Community Safety and Anti-Social Behaviour
Green Thread

Financial Stability

Organisational Sustainability

High Quality Services

CoNoO~wNhE

3.40 Appendix E sets out the Strategic Priorities and Performance
Measures in detail. For the 9 priorities there is data contained in the
Appendix on:

e The Performance Measure being used.
e An update on how it is being used.
e Where relevant, contextual information.

3.41 In addition, Appendix E also sets out Operational Service Measures.

Page 164



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  The financial implications, are set out within this report.

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising as a result of this report.

6. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqgic Purpose

6.1 The Strategic purposes are included in the Council’s corporate plan
and guides the Council’s approach to budget making ensuring we focus
on the issues and what are most important for the district and our
communities. Our Financial monitoring and strategies are integrated
within all of our Strategic Purposes

Climate Change Implications

6.2  The green thread runs through the Council plan. The Financial
monitoring report has implications on climate change and these will be
addressed and reviewed when relevant by climate change officers to
ensure the correct procedures have been followed to ensure any
impacts on climate change are fully understood.

7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Equalities and Diversity Implications

7.1 There are no direct equalities implications arising as a result of this
report.

Operational Implications

7.2  Managers meet with finance officers to consider the current financial
position and to ensure actions are in place to mitigate any overspends.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1  The financial monitoring is included in the corporate risk register for the
authority.

9. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix A — Capital Programme

Page 165



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Appendix B — Reserves Position

Appendix C — Procurement Pipeline (over £50K)

Appendix D — Procurement Pipeline (procured in Redditch for Shared
Services with Bromsgrove)

Appendix E - Strategic and Operational Performance Measures
Appendix F — Supporting Information

10. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date
Councillor Charlie Hotham, 17/11/2023
Portfolio Holder
Peter Carpenter, 17/11/2023
Lead Director / Head of Interim Director of Finance
Service
Michelle Howell, 17/11/2023
Financial Services Head of Finance and

Customer Services

Legal Services

Policy Team (if equalities
implications apply)

Climate Change Officer (if
climate change
implications apply)

Page 166



/9T abed

Appendix A — Capital Programme

Receipts/Borrowi

Cap Proj Description Approved  Original approved duration Department Funding detail 21f22 2022{23 22f23 off 2023f24 2324 2024425 2025/26
budget date Budget (years) Spend £ Total Spend Total Spend Q2 Total Total
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Large Schemes
Levelling Up Fund Fund
- Government Funded 14,492,401 Planning, Regeneration & Leisure Grant Funding 1,600,000 | 5,329,041 126,902 5,202,139 | 7,563,360
Market Hall {LUF) 22/25 Planning, Regeneration & Leisure Levelling Up Fund 0 1} 51,079
Ef - Fire Station 22023 Planning, Regeneration & Leisure Levelling Up Fund 14950
- Council Funded 1,610,266 Borrowing 281,000 420,133 420,133 805,133
0
UK Shared Prosperity Fund 2,825,702 0
- Capital Element Planning, Regeneration & Leisure Grant Funding 50,000 50,000
- Revenue Element Planning, Regeneration & Leisure Services Grant Funding 250,499 290,499
- Remainder (to be allocated) Planning, Regeneration & Leisure Grant Funding 20,000 20,000 680,988 1,784,215
1]
1]
schemes Agreed to Continue 1}
200006 Burcot Lane 2019/20 10,275,000 Financial & Customer Services Publicworks loan | 1,125,000 | 4,973,852 ] 634,536 ] ]
board and grant
homes england
200007 2019/20 120,000 Community & Housing GF Services Capital 28,000 o 0 ] ] ]
CCTV Receipts/Borrowi
200008| Funding for DFGs 2020/21 750,000 Community & Housing GF Services Grant income WCC] 620,000 913,000 969,792 -56,792 913,000 81,500 913,000 i}
200008|Home Repairs Assistance 2018/19 50,000 Community & Housing GF Services Long Term -5,000 50,000 4,088 45,912 50,000 19,890 50,000 50,000
Debtars
200010 Energy Efficiency Installation 2018/19 110,000 2 Community & Housing GF Services Capital 12,000 110,000 7,810 102,150 ] o ]
Receipts/Borrowi
200011| Energy Efficiency 2017/18 Community & Housing GF Services Grant finance 35,000 1] 0 0 L] 0
200015|Cemetery Extension 2017/18 Environmental Services Capital ] 6,500 15,576 -9,076 ] ] ]
infrastructure at at North Receipts/Borrowi
Bromsgrove Cemetery Phase ng
200016|New Finance Enterprise system 2019/20 455,000 Financial & Customer Services Capital Receipts 1,000 ] 13,680 -13,680 0 ] 0
200017| OLEV ULEV Taxi infrastructure 2019/20 300,000 1 Community & Housing GF Services Grants & 296,000 1] 700 -700 (i} 1] i}
scheme Contributions
200019|Fleet Replacemnet new line MNew Borrowing 580,000 356,000 75,292 280,708 441,000 1,190,000 | 1,215,000
200022|Replacement Parking machines 2020/21 120,000 Environmental Services Capital 196,000 253,000 123,985 129,015 96,000 203,984 421,000 0
Receipts/Borrowi
200030 Wheelie Bin Purchase 2018/19 ongoing Environmental Services Capital 102,000 144,000 169,034 -25,034 55,000 136,548 60,000 60,000

PET wal| epuaby



89T abed

Cap Proj Description Approved  Original approved duration Department Funding detail 21/22 2022/23 22/23 off 2023/24 23/24 202425 202526
budget date Budget (years) Spend £ Total Spend Total Spend Q2 Total Total
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
New Footpaths OnNgcing Environmental Services Borrowing 0 75,000 75,000 75,000
New Buildings Ongoing Legal and Property Borrowing 1} 100,000 100,000 100,000
200040] Bittell road recreation ground 2020/21 62,000 Planning, Regeneration & Leisure £106 B/2011/0741 - 17,000 0 0 0 1] 1]
Services Land at Fiery Hill,
Barnt Green [ 18k
balances
200044|Salix 2020/21 615,000 Legal, Democratic and property Grants & 65,000 1} 533,193 -533,193 1} 0 0
services Contributions
200045 Greener Homes 2020/21 180,000 1 Community & Housing GF Services Grants & -227,000 0 192,053 -192,053 0 93,765 1] 1]
Contributions
200057 | Hagley Scouts Planning, Regeneration & Leisure Capital 35,000 ] 0 ] ] ]
Services Receipts/Borrowi
200026|Rubery Redevelopment works 1,900
200048|Bromsgrove Sporting Loan 4 000 45,133 -46,133
200061 Car Park Improvements - B,000 0
Waoodrush High Schools refurb 134,000 0
200026|Rubery Redevelopment Works Planning, Regeneration & Leisure Capital 0 0 8,550 -8,550 0 o o
Services Receipts/Borrowi
200028|Sanders Park dda play provision  2017/18 56,080 Planning, Regeneration & Leisure 5106 14/0755 0 0 0 0 1] 1]
Services Kidderminster
Road and 5106
13/0422 Meadows
first school
200032|New Digital Service 2020/21 57,400 1 Community & Housing GF Services Borrowing 0 33,668 33,668 33,668 0 0
200033|Bus Shelters 2020/21 18,000 Environmental Services Borrowing 0 18,000 18,000 0 0 0
200034|Fleet Management Computer 2020/21 17,000 Environmental Services Borrowing 0 0 1} 0 0 0
System
200035|Environmental Services 2020/21 58,200 Environmental Services Borrowing 0 0 i} 0 ] ]
Computer System
200068| Cisco Network Update 22/23 3 Business transformation & Borrowing ] 5717 18,573 -12 B56 11,574 o 534,877
Organisational Development
Server Replacement Est{Exact 22/23 4 Business transformation & Borrowing ] 83,250 0 83,250 2,000 78,451 177,500 18,500
Ol known Q2 2022) Organisational Development
Laptop Refresh 2223 4 Business transformation & Borrowing ] 5,000 44951 39 25,000 71,273 150,000 5,000

Organisational Develgpment

PET wal| epuaby



69T abed

Cap Praj Description Approved  Original approved duration Department Funding detail 21/22 2022/23 2223 off 2023/24 23024 2024/25 2025/26
budget date Budget (years) Spend £ Total Spend Total Spend Q2 Total Total
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
L Install Solar panel and 22/323 150,000 1 Legal, Democratic and property Borrowing 0 150,000 o -55,014 0 0
Upgrade lighting semvices
i Sanders Park 22/25 Planning, Regeneration & Leisure 5106 0 24511 -24 511
s Senires
Play Area, POS and Sport 22/23 37,956 1 Flanning, Regeneration & Leisure $106 19/0137/FUL 0 37,956 6,488 31,468 1] 0 0
improvements at Lickey End Services
Recreation Ground in
accordance with the 5106
5|Agreement
BDC Combined F/Path & Cycle 2018/19 390,000 Environmental Services Grants & 0 0 0 1] 0 /]
Contributions
Barnt Green Millenium Park - Planning, Regeneration & Leisure 5106 B/2011/0741 - 0 0 0 1] 0 ]
Toilet Services Land at Fiery Hill,
Barnt Green [ 18k
balances
Total 424 000 4675000 | 13,249.616] 10,256,330 | 2,843,286 | 10851723 ] 1653569  4920.715 1558377

PET wal| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank



T/ abed

Appendix B — Reserves Position

Tranzfers Transfers Tranzf  Transf He- Transf Transf Transf Transf Transf Transf
In out In out baseline ] out ] out in out

Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance 20252 Balance

at 202¥22 202%22 at 202223 202423 2022423 at 2023424 202324 at 2024125 2024425 at 2025926 P at
WA 322 3¥H23 W24 3¥325

FALN]

General Fund Reserve [1.219)

IWN26

General Fund Earmarked Reserves:
Building Control Oter

Building Control Partrerships

Business Transformation
Commercializm
Cornmunity Safety
Cornmurity Services

Economic Regeneration

Election Services
Ervvironmental Services
Financial Services

Houzing Schermes

|ICTiSustermns

LeisureCormmunity Safety
Litigation Reserve

Local Developrnent Framework
Local Meighbourhood Partrerships
Other

Flatning & Regeneration
Regulatory Services [Partner Share]
Replacernent Reserve [Inc. Recwcling)
Shared Services [Severance Costs)
|kilities Reserve

Covid-19 [General Covid Grant)
Covid-19 Sales Fees and Charges

Cowid-19 [Collection Fund)

[150) (1.000]

[1.547)

PET wal| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Appendix E - Strategic and Operational Performance Measures

1. Introduction

The process of performance reporting will develop iteratively, however this
document is a snapshot in time and very much a temperature check of the
organisation.

2. Background

The performance measures for the current key priorities are shown in the next
section.

3. Strategic Priorities and Performance Measures

3.1. Economic Development and Regeneration

3.1.1 Supporting Businesses to Start and Grow

Opportunities in the digital technology sector and green industries are key to
the future of Bromsgrove. Local businesses demonstrated their resilience and
flexibility during the Covid-19 pandemic. The council supported businesses
started during the pandemic as well as existing businesses, that identified
growth opportunities. This was achieved via existing business support
packages, including sectoral support, as well as helping businesses access
new business grants where available.

Performance measure:
e Take-up of start-up business grants and creativity grants programme.

Detailed below are the grants which have been awarded up to quarter 1
2023/24 including two prior years, and the total value.

Start-up Grants
Mo. Granls Awarded: Lasl & Financial Quarlers v Prior Years Walue of Granls Awarded: Lasl & Financial Quarters v Prior Years

£1.200
1,25

£150

L
1]

L

L
£
£0
£0

Page 173

13d



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Update

The data for the grants measures are currently supplied by a 3" party and is
not yet available for quarter 2. All grants are now funded by the UK Shared
Prosperity Fund. The new grants were launched in September 2023 and
there is a pipeline of businesses waiting to access them. It is anticipated that
the first grant payments will be made in Q3 of 2023/24

Growth Grants
Mo. Grants Awarded Lasl & Financial Quarters v Prior Years Walue of Granls Awarded: Lasl & Financial Quarlers v Prior Years

L1002

£106,572

12

26,54
£497

[ £13.040
: £1387
E

£6,065

Update

The data for the grants measures are currently supplied by a 3™ party and is
not yet available for quarter 2. All grants are now funded by the UK Shared
Prosperity Fund. The new grants were launched in September 2023 and
there is a pipeline of businesses waiting to access them. It is anticipated that
the first grant payments will be made in Q3 of 2023/24.

3.1.2 Regenerating our Town and Local Centres

The pandemic has emphasised both the economic and wellbeing importance
of local centres to our residents. Funding has been secured to support the
development of sites in Bromsgrove town centre and a strategy has been
prepared to ensure all of the centres in Bromsgrove District will be as vibrant
and viable as possible.

Performance Measure:
Former Market Hall Project

. RIBA Stage 4 Technical Design

. PCSA Contractor 2 stage Tender Procurement
. Planning application — Determination target date February 2024
Update

RIBA Stage 3 complete. Planning Submission 13" October 2023. RIBA Stage
4 kick off meeting. Start of Contractor Tender process.

Page 174



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Performance measure:
Windsor Street Project

Project consists of the acquisition, demolition, decontamination and
remediation of this key abandoned/ brownfield site, which has been vacant for
5 years.

. Updated Remediation Strategy

. Appointment of Project Management Team
. Appointment of Main Works Contractor
Update

Currently in discussions with the Environmental Agency to agree updated
Remediation Strategy. Appointment of Project PM team and tender process for
Main Works contractor.

3.1.3 Improved Integrated Transport (Bromsgrove)

New innovations can help provide new and more sustainable methods of
getting around. Improved transport can help to increase user satisfaction and
increase efficiency whilst also helping to reduce the impact on the environment.
Working with Worcestershire County Council (WCC) and other partners will
enable new, better integrated and more sustainable modes of transport across
the district.

Performance measure:
e Increased number of sustainable transport projects being progressed or
implemented across the district.

Update

Officers are working with Worcestershire County Council to establish a full
pipeline of sustainable schemes. To better inform the list of schemes funding
has been secured by WCC for a Local Cycling and Walking infrastructure Plan
(LCWIP), planning officers have reviewed the brief for this work and discussed
with WCC.

Actions: Will be liaising with WCC appointed consultants. An inception meeting
for this work will take place in November with consultation in April 2024 and
adoption in autumn 2024.

3.2 Housing Growth

During 2023/24 we will accelerate the pace of affordable housing

development, wherever possible. We will work to enable the building of
market value housing and the creation of additional income for the Council.

Page 175



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Performance measure:
¢ Number of new homes built - total and affordable (annual measure)

New Homes Completed Latest Period Total by Year Top 3 by Bedroom Size

Property Size LastFY 1YrPr 2YrsPr
Latest Period: 2022-23 hd

1 Bed 53 53 19
Interval: Financial Year 2 Bed 56 53 37
] 9 9 D B S R A W 3 Bed 55 34 60
Contact: Mike Dunphy R S i
The final data for the 2022/23 is:
e Total Homes Built (including affordable) -199 (net)
e Total affordable homes built - 55 (net)
Performance measure:
e Affordable Homes Completed (annual measure)
Affordable Homes Latest Period Total by Year Top 3 by Bedroom Size
Completed
Property Size Eastl—'\" 1¥rPr 2Yrs Pr
Latest Period: 2022-23 2 Bed 22 3 0
nterval: inancial Year 1 Bed 8 3 0
nrenel i : 5 5 3Bed 14 1 0

Contact: Mike Dunphy

There are 498 affordable housing commitments as of 1 April 2023, reflecting
the number of strategic sites which have gained consent but not started
construction.

Performance measure:
e Local housing affordability rate (annual, calendar year, 1 year lag)

Housing Affordability Rate L atest Period Rate by Year Analysis

Latest Period: 2022

Latest Year: 11.97

Interval: Calendar Year ] ] 1 7 Prior Year: 11.20
Contact: Matthew Bough . R ) Change: o
R A LN\ % Change: -0.3%

Update

The data in the table above has been extracted from the Office for National
Statistics (ONS) house price statistics for small areas, annual survey of hours,
and earnings.

The affordability measure, using this data, indicated that the ratio in England
is currently 9.05. The affordability ratio relates to workplace-based income
which uses the median earnings of those employed in Bromsgrove. When
looking at the data (year ending Sept 2022) Bromsgrove has a work based
median at £29,285. The median house price in Bromsgrove is relatively high
at £327,000. This causes a significant difference in the affordability ratio in
Bromsgrove.

Page 176



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

House prices over the last year have also risen well above the normal
expected rate. This will push more households into needing affordable
housing. The council is working with developers to secure the maximum
provision of affordable housing on developments and RPs to bring forward
affordable housing. A “First Homes” policy with a local connection criteria was
approved by Council in October 2022 to ensure these discounted homes are
provided for local applicants in the first instance.

Performance measure:
e Number of homeless approaches
¢ Number of threatened with homelessness preventions.
e Number of homeless applicants housed.

NB* These figures do not relate to each other and should be considered
on their own.

Number of Number of Number of
threatened with homeless
homeless :
homelessness applicants
approaches i
preventions housed
July 32 11 11
August 18 8 12
September 32 5 4

Update

Homelessness pressures have remained similar to the last quarter. The ability
to prevent homelessness and obtain housing in the PRS still remains an area
that is impacting on homelessness in line with the national picture due to the
cost of living and mortgage costs causing landlords to increase rents or evict
tenants.

3.3. Work and Financial Independence

In 2023/24, we will continue to find ways to further support, engage, and
empower our residents to maintain / achieve financial independence.

We will provide quality services that help to empower residents through good
financial advice, the effective coordination and signposting of services, and
partnership working.

Performance measure
¢ Number of Financial Independence Team client contacts

This measure records the number of FI Team cases opened.

Page 177



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Update

The top five referral reasons (where a value has been provided) for the last 12
months are:

‘Under occupancy charge’ (51)

‘Debt’ (31)

‘Other’ (21)

‘Rent advance/deposit’ (21)

‘No value’ (20) - excluded from top 5 reasons.

‘Budgeting issues’ (15)

0O O O O O O

Total by Month: Last 12 Months v Prior Years

@ Last 12 Months @1 Year Prior @2 Years Prior

Tl T
I~ B8 o
o
& —
il [E=] (=]
= . = el = =
— —
- oo — . & -
Tl 11 Tk 4 %] ek t T b % % el
PR CL L P s L T ok S 2 o
O s o B 2 o Tl T B e -:r._';.'f- c i

n W) | 3 el ¥ ol

For Q2 2023/24, the top 3 referral reasons were:
o ‘Under occupancy charge’ (10)
o ‘Rent advance/deposit’ (8)
o ‘Debt’ (6)

The Financial Inclusion Team continue to assist residents in the current cost
of living crisis. We are always looking for the best way to support residents, be
this through internal work or signposting to partners to help maximise income
and budgets.

Performance measure
¢ Number of eligible children accessing nursery funding across the
district.

Update
Although data is shared termly (with a lag) from Worcestershire County

Council, this has been inconsistent. Work is ongoing to improve the regularity
of the supply of data.

Page 178



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22 November 2023
Term % 2-year-olds accessing funding
Summer 2019/20 76%
Summer 2020/21 71%
Summer 2021/22 74%
Spring 2022/23 61.9%
Summer 2022/23 61.4%

Bromsgrove performance has decreased by .5% in comparison to Spring
2023. The County average has decreased for summer term from 77.3% to
75.8%.

We received a list from WCF to contact families who had applied for 2-year-
old funding but had not processed their application — due to the delay in
receiving this list by the time we contacted families they had already accessed
the funding or there were not nursery places available. We used to receive a
list from DWP of all eligible children, but due to a change in an information
sharing agreement we no longer receive this list to enable us to proactively
contact all eligible families. We continue to promote the Childcare Choices on
our social media pages and respond to families who contact the service
regarding childcare funding. We promote nursery funding at all events and
are recently supporting DWP at their childcare events to promote the funding
for eligible parents looking to return to work.

3.4. Improved Health and Wellbeing

In 2023/24 we will continue to work with communities to help them identify and
develop their strengths. We will look at ways to encourage physical movement
into part of people’s normal routines. We will look to catalyse an integrated
approach to care.

Performance measure

¢ Deliver improved outcomes from the actions in the Leisure Strategy

Update

The health outcomes programme in line with Leisure and Culture strategy
recommendations is ongoing. The service is currently focusing on key priorities and to
build and develop its resources within the team. This will start to take more shape as
we move into 2024 and increase our delivery outcomes.

Recommendation: Develop an environmental management strategy for parks and
environmental services.

o Project lead identified to progress strategy. Working towards April 2025
completion.

Recommendation: Develop a volunteer plan and a clear approach to working with
Friends groups tied to its aspirations for Green Flag Award across its priority parks.

Page 179



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

e Green flag award unsuccessful for Sanders Park, working on recommendations
for improvement for 2024 submission and scheduled awards over the next 4
years. Plan will be created when officers in post. First Draft April 2024.

Recommendation: Develop a rolling programme of applications to the Green Flag
Award.

e Working on applications for awards for Sanders Park, Lickey End Park, King
Georges Recreation Ground and St Chads Park.

Recommendation: Engage more regularly with potential partners at a county wide
level.

e Officers working with partners to maximise potential of offers within parks and
open spaces.

Recommendation: Develop a better understanding of the biodiversity value of the
district’s green assets.

o Biodiversity plan established, focus and priorities, developing a Biodiversity
network with Planning, County Council and 3™ Sector. Commencement
February 2024.

Recommendation: Develop a clear marketing plan for green spaces that includes new
web pages, social media, and targeted work with key audiences.

e Work started on website development and modernisation. Social media use
improved to promote, biodiversity, events, and mental health in respect of
Parks and Green Spaces.

Recommendation: Carry out a feasibility study to establish a roadmap for the self-
management of allotment sites across the district.

e Action plan implemented, work carried out in the background to move this
forward, new tenancy agreements with legal, service level agreements for new
formed associations, website information, management of day-to-day issues,
bills.

Performance measure
e Number of Community Builders in post.

Update:
e Two community builders remain in post:

o Catshill focus has changed to Sidemoor as it was felt there were more
opportunities to community build in Sidemoor as there is much less
happening in the area in comparison to Catshill — Public Health in
agreement with this shift of focus.

o Rubery

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) is an approach built on tried
and tested methods from sustainable community development practice. The
aim of ABCD approaches is to create the conditions that will enable both place
and people to flourish, reduce inequalities, improve quality of life that supports
communities to thrive and to reduce or delay the need for long term care and
support.

Page 180



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

The Bromsgrove and Redditch Shared Learning Network continues to meet,
supported by Public Health at Worcestershire County Council, which includes
community builders, the voluntary and community sector hosts, relevant BDC
and RBC officers. The purpose of the Network is to provide a forum to support
and encourage the development of ABCD good practice locally. The most
recent meeting fed back on very successful community events including the
BDHT summer events in Rubery and Sidemoor; Age UK drop-ins in Sidemoor;
and the health bus in Rubery in partnership with others including Social
Prescribing, Libraries, Act On Energy.

Community Builders are on fixed term contracts, but funding has been
confirmed to extend the posts until end of March 2025. The longer-term aim
remains for the voluntary sector services to source other funding by evidencing
impact through community stories and Ripple Effect Mapping.

Action: As above as well as embedding the understanding of the approach
through the district collaboratives and continuing to evidence outcomes and
impact on communities.

3.5. Community Safety and Anti-Social Behaviour

Working with Community Safety partners we will implement crime prevention
projects and promote community safety services to reduce the hazards and
threats that result from the crime, violence, and anti-social behaviour. We will
also promote and support victim services that are in place to help and
encourage recovery from the effects of crime.

Performance measure
e Number of young people engaged through Detached/Outreach youth
work.

Update

Total by Month: Last 12 Months v Prior Years

Jul 2023 — 49 young people were engaged during routine patrols in
Bromsgrove Central and Sanders Park. Issues discussed included
signposting to existing youth provision, concerns about perceptions of drug
dealing and respecting the local area.

Page 181



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Aug 2023 — Young people were engaged during routine patrols in Catshill
South and Bromsgrove Central. Discussions included where to access youth
mental health support services, and signposting to existing youth provision.
During one patrol a group of predominately female young people recognised
workers from a school community safety event and engaged well with the
team. Youth workers were able to provide information and signposting to
various health services for young people. During another patrol reassurance
conversations were held with young people following the collapse of one of
their friends. Ambulance and Police attended, and youth workers were able to
engage and support the young people who witnessed the incident.

Sep 2023 — Young people were engaged during routine patrols in Catshill
North. This month youth workers resumed joint patrols with the Street Pastors
during their Night-Time Economy (NTE) patrols in Bromsgrove Central. 20
young people were engaged during one patrol, which was the most for quite
some time in the NTE. Advice and signposting to taxi services was provided
to encourage the young people to go home and discussions took place about
the risks to young people in the adult environment.

Intell reports about ASB in Sidemoor led to engagement with 31 young
people. Subjects discussed included the risks of alcohol and substance
misuse, and personal safety.

Performance measure

e Levels of crime. (Data extracted from ‘data.police.uk’ below — there is a
lag in data reporting.)

Update
Total by Month: Last 12 Months v Prior Years

Click a month to filter the table to the right. Click again to reset.

All Crime Types

Page 182



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22 November 2023

Crime Type Total %of v1Mth v1YrPrior 12 Mth.

. Total Prior Avg.
Violence and sexual off.. 2436 39.4% 19 4 -25 \lf 2030
Shoplifting 636  103% -6 243 P 53.0
Other theft 627  101% &4 22 4+ 523
Criminal damage anda.. 580  9.4% 21 4 52 4 483
Vehicle crime 518 84% 74 32 4 432
Public order 498 8.1% 4 ‘f -80 4}' 415
Burglary 419 68% 1049 61 4p 349
Other crime 141 23% -1 49 39 ‘f 11.8
Drugs 136 22% 24 14 4 113
Possession of weapons 74 1.2% -4 Jf -4 Jf 6.2
Robbery 65 11% -3 10 4 54
Bicycle theft 33 05% 34k 3 4 28
Theft from the person 23 0.4% ( == -1 4}' 1.9
Total 6,186 100.0% 54 371 5155

At the time of report creation, the Police.UK website included data up to and
including August 2023, as shown in the chart/table above.

Unfortunately, NWCSP analysis of Crime data for Quarter 2 (July-Sept) is not
available due to a system issue.

Performance measure
e ASB (Data extracted from ‘data.police.uk’ below — there is a lag in data
reporting.)

Update
Total by Month: Last 12 Months v Prior Years

Click a month to filter the table to the right. Click again to reset.

@Month Tota 1 Year Prior @ 2 Years Prior

All Locations

At the time of report creation, the Police.UK website included data up to and
including August 2023, as shown in the chart/table above.

Unfortunately, NWCSP analysis of Crime data for Quarter 2 (July-Sept) is not
available due to a system issue.

Page 183



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Performance measure
e Number of crime risk surveys carried out

Update
No. Surveys No. Surveys
2022/23 2023/24
Q1 8 12
Q2 8 19
Q3 5
Q4 8

Jul 2023 — Crime prevention advice and signposting was provided following
ASB reports in Bromsgrove Central, Cofton and Sidemoor. Crime prevention
advice was provided follow reports of a Neighbourhood Dispute in Rock Hill.

Aug 2023 — Crime prevention surveys were conducted following reports of
Neighbourhood Disputes in Alvechurch South and Catshill North. Crime
prevention advice, site visits and liaison with partner agencies took place
following reports of ASB in Sidemoor, Wythall West, Bromsgrove Central,
Rubery North and Catshill North.

Sep 2023 — Detailed crime prevention recommendations were provided for
Planning Applications in Marlbrook and Cofton. Crime Prevention surveys
were conducted following reports of ASB in Hagley East. A site visit was
conducted, and the area scheduled for further discussion at the Safer
Bromsgrove Group meeting.

3.6 SLM Leisure (Everyone Active)
Update

For SLM Leisure there is a lag in the data; as a result, Quarter 1 data and
comments can be found below; Q2 information will be available for the Q3
report.

Q1 saw another slight gain in gym memberships and the brand continues to
grow. The introduction of General Introductions will hopefully help new
members integrate into the gym and give them an insight to the different
classes that we have on offer. The Introductions were put in place to aid
retention and enhance the enjoyment of the customers visit.

The Swim Scheme as expected took the major impact of the pool closure. The
numbers have shown an increase as the pool lesson were re-introduced in
May. We continue to promote the lessons and hope that the numbers return
quickly. All clubs returned following the closure apart from one (DO3):

Page 184



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22 November 2023
Quarter | Same Quarter .
Category Total Previous Year Difference
Total no. of visits including
EA cards and non-card 107,496 110,756 -3,260
holders
EA Cards added in this
period 1,398 1,703 -305
Total EA Cards to date 68,441 61,987 6,454
No. of Gym members 2,871 2,536 335
Swimming Lessons — children 0 1,625 1,625
enrolled on scheme
Swim Lesson Occupancy 88% 84% 3%
RIDDOR Reportable Events 0
Bromsgrove Leisure Centre | 2021/22 +/- % 2022/23 +/- % 2023/24
1st Quarter Apr- Jun 78,285 0% 110,756 41% 107,496
2nd Quarter Jul-Sep 97,510 108% 110,754 14% 0
3rd Quarter Oct-Dec 92,559 42% 98,881 7% 0
4th Quarter Jan - Mar 113,610 0% 114,271 1% 0
Totals 381,964 241% | 434,662 14% 107,496

3.7. Green Thread

There continues to be a focus on innovation as we play our part in the response
to climate change and biodiversity challenges. Working with partners across
the region, including the LEPs and the Waste Partnership, we will explore the
possibilities of modern technologies to our fleet but also how innovative
technology can help us deliver greener and more efficient systems internally.
We also need to maintain work around waste minimisation and maximising
recycling, particularly around recycling quality and the implications of the new
Environment Act.

Performance Measure:
e Have an agreed and funded plan and capital replacement programme
for the Council’s fleet subject to any budget constraints.

Page 185



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Update

Nottingham City Council, through their government funding grant to undertake
a review of its fleet, has provided external consultancy services to the council.
Officers have been working with Nottingham City Council and received a copy
of their findings. As a consequence, these have been applied to create a funded
Capital replacement programme which is subject to ongoing financial review. It
Is anticipated that, within the fleet replacement programme, small volumes of
the Housing Fleet will switch to all electric based on the feasibility of
infrastructure being installed at the Crossgates House/Redditch Depot site. This
is part of a review to be shortly commenced by our new partner that is reviewing
our car parks and depots to provide Electric Vehicle Charging points.

Performance Measure:
e Introduce vegetable derived diesel into the councils’ vehicles to reduce
carbon emissions subject to any budget constraints.

Update

Whilst the cost of Hydrogenated Vegetable Oil (HVO) has seen a severe
increases due to external influences such as the war in Ukraine these costs
have stabilised. As part of the 'Greening the Fleet' review which seeks to reduce
the Carbon Footprint created by the Council's fleet finances are being reviewed
to allow use of HVO more widely across Environmental Services Fleet.

Performance measure
e Households supported by the Council’s energy advice service

Period Households
2019/20 (09/19-03/20 only) 31
2020/21 41
2021/22 90
2022/23 (part year) 385
Period Households
Q1 2023/24 137
Q2 2023/24 145

Update

Due to issues with data gathering, the data for 2022/23 only covers part of the
year.

In the 2" quarter of 2023/24 a total of 145 households received energy advice
and guidance from Act on Energy. A range of advice and support is provided
and in quarter 2 this included a number of referrals to Severn Trent Big
Difference Scheme and Step Change Debt Management Service. In addition,
one-to-one advice was given at a number of events including Bromsgrove
carnival in July, BDHT fun days in August and on the Rubery Health Bus.

Page 186



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

3.8. Financial Stability

Council resources will continue to be constrained. We will continue to work on
ensuring our people, assets and financial resources are focused on the
priorities and activities that most effectively deliver wellbeing and progress for
our population.

Performance measure (included as an earlier section of this Report)
¢ Financial performance — actuals consistent with budget (overspend
mitigated)
e Levelling Up Fund Project delivered within budget.

3.9. Organisational Sustainability

The Council will work to maximise the use of digital infrastructures, including
cloud technologies, to enhance its support for customers. Ensuring the
Councils infrastructure can securely process the increased demand placed on
it by the expanding use of Internet of Things devices will be key to its digital
success.

Performance measure
e Number of corporate measures accessible through the dashboard.

Update

The organisation continues to move from the current legacy dashboard to a
new Power Bl dashboard. Power Bl is an interactive data visualisation software
product with a primary focus on business intelligence. There are currently 33
strategic measures available via the dashboards. Work is also being
undertaken on a number of operational measures with accident data being the
most recent to be in the testing phase.

Performance measure
e % of staff able to work in an agile way.

Update

This new measure is aligned with the ongoing agile project; we are continuing
to work to devise an effective method of data capture. The Agile Policy has now
been launched across the organisation but is currently unable to be reported
upon.

Action: Review is needed moving forward on how this can be reported and
tracked as part of the establishment review/CHRIS21.

3.10. High Quality Services

Council people are key to its success. We need to recruit, retain, and motivate
the right employees, with the right knowledge, skills, and attitude to deliver
excellent services and customer care.

Page 187



Agenda ltem

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Performance measure
e % Of employees who undertake management training.

This is a new measure and the first time it has been included in this report in
any meaningful way. The mandatory manager training is targeted at staff with
management responsibility and therefore staff generally wouldn’t undertake it.
Update
82.5% of 4" and 5" tier managers who have undertaken some mandatory
training

86.87% of 4™ and 5th tier managers who have some or all mandatory training
still to do

14.63% of staff who are 4™ or 5% tier managers

12.07% of staff who have undertaken mandatory manger training

NB — Not all 5™ tier posts have line management responsibility and there are
staff below 5" tier who do have line management responsibility. There is

currently no easy way of identifying these roles from CHRIS21.

Performance measure
e Staff turnover rates in relation to national rates

% Staff Turnover v National Year to End of Latest Pe... # Last 12 Mths @1 Yr Prior @ 2 ¥rs Prior National Rate
REFRESHED: NOW
Rate National %
Latest Period: Sep-23 \\
Interval Monthly 8 60/0 ] 5 60/0
Contact: Becky Talbot ) D J FMAMIJ J A S ’
% Staff Turnover: Prior Years & % Staff Turnover within each Service: Prior Years & YTD

YTD
@Eusiness Tran... @Chief Exec & ... @ Community ... @Environment... @Finance & ... @Legal, De... @ Planning, ... @ Regulatory i

All Services

42%

Update

Since January 2023, it can be seen there has been a continued improvement
in turnover rates which brings the authority under the national average. We
will be launching a process for exit interviews before the next quarterly report
cycle. We will utilise this data to further understand context and undertake
necessary actions.

Page 188

13d



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Performance measure
e Customer satisfaction with service delivery, measured through the
Community Survey.

The percentage of respondents who say they are satisfied with service
delivery is:

Year Satisfied

2021 47.4%

2022 38.6%
Update

This is an annual measure. Data is extracted from the annual community
survey. 2021 was the first year the public were asked about their level of
satisfaction with the way the council delivers its services. National satisfaction
with LA’s, according to the Local Government Chronicle is currently at 40%.

The 2022 survey was carried out in October/November 2022. The 2023
survey is live as at the time of this report creation.
4. Operational Measures

e 4.1 Corporate Performance measure Sickness absence

Both Authorities - Long/short term sickness absence

1400— I | ong Term Absence
N Short Term Absence

1200

1000

800

600—

Number of Days

400—

200

S e S eSS S SSEEESSSS NN NNNNNNORNIRERRRERRR

..................

Update

We are undertaking a fundamental review of the data source, data capture and
data calculation, to utilise the increased functionality of PowerBI which will
enhance both the overview and more in-depth analysis for this measure and in
turn enable actions from the understanding gained. System issues have
hindered the speed of progress; however progress is being made.

Actions:

Page 189



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

e Review data source, to include training where needed.

e Review of the absence reasons reported under in comparison to national
data.

¢ Review of how the data is analysed and presented to managers.

4.2 Environmental Services
Domestic Waste Collection

Performance Measure:
e Percentage of Household Waste sent for re-use, recycling &
composting.

Percentage of Household Waste Sent for Re-Use,
Recycling or Composting
m2021/22 W2022/23 =2023/24
pa
~ I\
Y]
. ;
50 ; ¥ Q 8%
N o')
40 [}
(">
30
20
0
pr May Jun Oct Mar

Th|s is a National Indlcator measuring the percentage of household waste
arisings which have been sent by the Authority for reuse, recycling, and
composting, and is used in the national league tables ranking Local Authority
performance. In 2021/22 Bromsgrove was ranked 173rd, increasing from 175th
in 2020/21 (2022/23 rankings not yet published).

70

59.99
58

60

57.40

55.59
54.66

N
~©
OO

50.87

49.69
6.41

50.74
4924
49.75
7.01
48.45

46.69
48.13
46.41
47.01

44.40
36.71
39.59
37.34

33.70
4

-
o

During Qtr 1 it was identified that Dry recycling tonnages actually dropped
slightly, but mirrored a noticeable drop in Residual Waste Tonnages which is
believed to be related to the cost of living on households which has changed
spending habits as households try to avoid unnecessary waste due to the cost
of food and goods.

Dry Recycling rates remained consistent during Qtr 2, but Garden waste

tonnages were higher than usual over the summer as a result of the damp
weather, and boosts our performance.

Page 190



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

Actions:

Discussions are being had with our neighbouring Worcestershire Authorities
about how we can increase our resources collectively to support more proactive
engagement with residents to educate on waste reduction and effective use of
our services, as we still have regular contamination of our recycling with non-
recyclable items. Work is also on-going to consider the future of waste collection
services alongside new legislative requirements that will see the introduction of
a weekly food waste collection and potential changes to how we manage both
residual waste and dry recycling. New banners have been affixed to the side of
our refuse collection fleet to highlight the issue of food waste as part of a joint
campaign with Worcestershire County Council, and have resources available
via our website to support households in using our services and reducing waste:
https://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/lets-waste-less .

Performance Measure: Residual Waste per household (kg)

Residual Waste per Household (Kg)

m2021/22 w2022/23 ©2023/24
60

50.01
49.26

50

46 49
5.06

-

4243
39.35
38.16
41.50
39.86
4178
42.08

03
2 S
wn
40 l\l\

)
~
N
o
- )
Lete) D0 ' &
- 3] g © : «),\ =3
® N w
5
30
20
10
0

This measures non-recyclable waste thrown away per household and shows a
marked reduction per household in Qtr 1 when compared with the previous two
years, which is a positive trend for sustainability but may be due to financial
pressures on households as much as greater awareness of the environmental
benefits of reducing our waste. During Qtr 2, we saw increases linked to the
Summer period, that may be linked to more people staying at home rather than
taking holidays, as the same trend of increased residual waste was seen across
all the Worcestershire LA’s.

; O
N
~

33.19
| 34.61
36 90
34.20
5.86
76
5.58

Waste Composition Analysis was carried out across the district to sample waste
during 2022, and identify what is being thrown away in our residual waste to
support discussions on the future of our services, and any

Page 191


https://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/lets-waste-less

Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

communication/education campaigns we may need to implement to support
further recycling. In the samples taken, up to 18% of the residual waste put out
for collection could have been collected as recycling, and up to 35% of the
residual waste was food waste (45% of that was still in its packaging unused).
This information is being considered as part of the wider Task and Finish project
to consider future options for how we collect our residents waste in the future.

Performance Measure:

Actions: As per comment on percentage of household waste sent for recycling
e Fly Tipping
FLYTIPPING (ROLLING 12 MONTHS)

and reuse.
[(=]
=4
o
x
(3]
o o
© © ~
- € 3 3 o
2 o 5
[Ts]
=]
[=e]
V- N- B- R- R- N- G-

23 MAY-23 JUN-23 JUL-23 AUG-23 SEP-23

This overview reflects the number of fly tips identified across the District
requiring resources to remove and indicates the scale of the problem and any
trends resulting from enforcement and education actions. The detailed data is
used to identify patterns of behaviour and geographic locations that can be
targeted with signage and cameras to identify those responsible and deter
behaviour or support further enforcement action against those who continue to
illegally dump their waste.

o
<D

OCT-22 NO

I 2

22 DE

0O

-22 JAN-23 FEB-23 MAR-23 AP

Actions:

Our Enforcement Officer is currently updating our signage to support the work
to deter this across the District, and cameras are still being deployed in hotspot
areas to identify those responsible. Fixed penalty notices will be issued using
an invoice reference linked to the FPN to support payments.

Page 192



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

4.3 Finance and Customer Services (inc Revenues & Benefits)
Performance measure
e Council Tax Collection Rate

The data remains as Quarter 4 2022/23 data. Revenues cannot accurately
produce the updated information due to batch scheduling having stopped
working within Civica-OpenRevenues; this issue is being progressed and is
within the escalation process.

The OpenRevenue system includes software titled "Civica Automation™ - which
is batch scheduling tool that is able to automate linear tasks. There was an
issue with one of the process maps in April and the process maps have been
switched off by systems admin/internal ICT.

The process map that is switched off is the one which runs the reports which
we use to profile collections rates. This remains a priority and currently
progressing with ICT and third party system provider.

Council Council Tax Collection Rate

100%
90%
80%
70%
80%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
& @ x
?‘é\ .\5’5\ 3 5\}\\ o@{’ & S & 2 S b
o © S¥ & R <%
= AS <

%,
0‘5@,
%.
%@,
0%
’o%

== % Collection Rate Targst Rate Taxbase Collection Percentage

% Above or Below Target

1.00%%

0.50%

0.00% . .
-0.50% I I I I
-1.00%
-1.50%

-2.00%

Performance measure
¢ NDR Collection Rate

The data remains as Quarter 4 2022/23 data. Revenues cannot accurately
produce the updated information due to batch scheduling having stopped

Page 193



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

working within Civica-OpenRevenues; this issue is being progressed and is
within the escalation process.

NDR Collection Rate
100%
90%
80%

T0%
B80%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

S <
P < ro‘\\@

& ¢ S ¢ & R &
ksl 58 & & ¢ e ~
= RS 4 <
s % Collection Rate Target Rate

% Above or Below Target Rate
2.00%

0.00% | L — - - -
2.00% I I
-4.00%

-6.00%
-8.00%

-10.00%

Performance measure
e Revenues Processing

Completed Comp.< Comp.< Comp.< Comp.< Comp.> Outstand

Month  Items 7 Days 14 Days 2l1days 28Days 28days -ing

Apr-22 2550 527 313 280 718 712 1869
May-22 2337 464 192 172 92 1417 2044
Jun-22 2773 509 268 157 137 1702 2031
Jul-22 2906 552 240 190 362 1562 1605
Aug-22 2345 529 215 208 804 589 1421
Sep-22 5143 1080 483 481 1458 1641 1424
Oct-22 2716 954 297 239 511 715 1798
Nov-22 2807 818 299 249 264 1177 1639
Dec-22 2284 853 292 182 106 851 1536
Jan-23 3121 1185 333 310 198 1095 1228
Feb-23 3271 1652 249 187 327 856 941
Mar-23 4059 2277 748 377 359 298 912
Apr-23 2608 1166 426 238 416 362 740
May-23 2273 1223 227 117 304 402 846
Jun-23 2417 1392 182 163 90 590 1080

Page 194



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22 November 2023
Jul-23 2922 1378 290 292 272 690 1005
Aug-23 2969 1517 366 611 190 285 637
Sep-23 2648 1443 594 325 76 210 677
Update

The Covid-19 Business Support Grants, Council Tax Energy Rebates, and
Energy Bill Support Scheme — Alternative Funding schemes is no longer
impacting on the workload for the Revenue Service. Some reconciliation work
remains to be completed for these schemes, but there is no longer any day-to-
day processing impact. This has enabled a reduction to the outstanding work
items.

It is anticipated that the impact of inflation and rising interest rates will cause an
increase in customer contact with regards to the payment of their council tax.
Actions
Available resources will be reviewed to ensure that they are sufficient to meet
the ongoing demand on the service.
Performance measure

e Online Customer Interactions

Due to a server migration in early October, the report is not able to be produced
due to the settings having to be re-established.

Customer Services

Performance measure
e Revenues Calls (shared service)

Calls Avg in Avg Wait Avg Aing el
Date Answered Queue (mm:ss) | Logged in S
' (mm:ss)
Jul 2023 2671 0.63 05:20 5.7 08:43
Aug 2023 2759 0.41 04:41 6.7 08:29
Sep 2023 2594 0.33 04:03 6.4 08:11
Update

The service met expectations with regards to answering calls during the quarter
with an average queue fewer than 1 person and an average call answering time
between 4-6 minutes.

Performance measure

Page 195



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22 November 2023
e Number of Web Payments
Update
Date Number of payments
Jul 2023 1326
Aug 2023 1141
Sep 2023 1158

Performance measure
e Customer Service calls (Switchboard)

Calls Avg in Avg Wait Avg Aang el
Date Answered Queue (mm:ss) | Logged in ST
) (mm:ss)
Jul 2023 804 0.02 00:56 1.35 00:55
Aug 2023 800 0.02 00:44 1.72 00:58
Sep 2023 799 0.01 00:38 1.8 00:56
Update

The service met expectations with regards to answering calls during the quarter
with an average queue close to zero and an average call answering time under
1 minute

4.4 Planning, Regeneration and Leisure Services

The Leisure and Cultural Strategy has been formally endorsed. Its
recommendations have been prioritised for delivery and delivery has
commenced.

Performance measure
e Total number of planning applications determined in quarter (all types)

Period Number Determined
Quarter 1, 2022/23 191
Quarter 2, 2022/23 137
Quarter 3, 2022/23 138
Quarter 4, 2022/23 165
Quarter 1, 2023/24 165
Quarter 2, 2023/24 138
Update

Determination rates reflected those in September to December 2022 and
were lower than the last 2 quarters.

Performance measure

Page 196



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET 22 November 2023

e Speed of decision making for ‘major applications’ (over a rolling 2-year

period) (Governmental targets for determining applications in time (or within an agreed
extension of time) on major applications is 60%)

Period % Determined ‘on time’
Quarter 1, 2022/23 82.1%
Quarter 2, 2022/23 81.5%
Quarter 3, 2022/23 81.8%
Quarter 4, 2022/23 86.1%
Quarter 1, 2023/24 86.0%
Quarter 2, 2023/24 90.2%
Update

The 2-year rolling assessment has improved this quarter. The assessment of
speed remains well in excess of government targets.

Performance measure
e Speed of decision making for ‘non-major applications’ (over a rolling 2-

year period) (Governmental targets for determining applications in time (or within an
agreed extension of time) on non-major applications is 70%)

Period % Determined ‘on time’
Quarter 1, 2022/23 77.7%
Quarter 2, 2022/23 78.6%
Quarter 3, 2022/23 78.9%
Quarter 4, 2022/23 81.3%
Quarter 1, 2023/24 80.6%
Quarter 2, 2023/24 82.7%
Update

The 2-year rolling period for speed showed an improvement relative to the last
guarter and remains well in excess of government requirements.

5. Corporate Project Oversight & Monitoring

The table below provides a summary as of 20" October 2023. The focus point
being that the overall RAG status has moved from 50% Green as stated in the
Q1 report to 35%, this is partially due to the 2040 Vision project not being
actively worked on due to the prioritisation of LUF, a delay in in the Local Plan
and officer time being focused on the Levelling Up activities as well as other
uncertainties within projects.

A full review of current projects, project sponsors and leaders, will be
undertaken at Q3 to ensure accurate monitoring moving forward.

Page 197



Agenda Item 13d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 22 November 2023
Overall Time Status Scope Budget Status
All Projects Status RAG Status RAG RAG

(Number) RAG

No. % No. % No. %
1 5% 1 5% 1 5%
Amber 12 60% 11 55% 9 45% 4 20%
Green 7 35% 8 40% 10 50% 7 35%

Page 198



46/23

47/23

48/23

49/23

Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

BROMSGROVEDISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE CABINET

WEDNESDAY 22ND NOVEMBER 2023, AT 6.00 P.M.

PRESENT: Councillors K.J. May (Leader), S. J. Baxter (Deputy Leader),
S. R. Colella, C.A. Hotham, K. Taylor, S. A. Webb and
P. J. Whittaker

Observers: Councillor P. M. McDonald and Councillor S.T. Nock
Officers: Mrs. S. Hanley, Mr P. Carpenter, Mr. G. Revans,
Ms. N Cummings, Ms. A. Delahunty, Mrs. J. Bayley-Hill and

Mrs J. Gresham

TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

TO CONFIRM THE ACCURACY OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE CABINET HELD ON 18TH OCTOBER 2023

The minutes from the Cabinet meeting held on 18" October 2023 were
submitted for Members’ consideration.

RESOLVED that the minutes from the Cabinet meeting held on 18®
October 2023 be approved as a true and accurate record.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

BOARD HELD ON 16TH OCTOBER 2023

The Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Board provided a verbal
update in respect of the Board meeting held on 16" October 2023; and
in doing so explained that there were no recommendations to Cabinet
made at that meeting. He did explain, however, that a Task Group to
investigate the topic of Community Supermarket / Food Bank provision
in the District had been established and was due to hold its first meeting
in December 2023.

Page 199



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

Cabinet welcomed the work that was being undertaken by the Board in
this area. It was understood that a list of food banks had been provided
to the Board in order to undertake the investigation. Members were
informed that this had been provided by Officers and would be updated
regularly by the Bromsgrove Partnership.

There was a brief discussion regarding the ‘poor’ rating that had recently
been given to the Hillcrest Mental Health Ward. It was noted that there
had been discussions regarding this at a recent Worcestershire County
Council, Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting, where an
alternative provision was discussed. Further updates in respect of this
would be available soon.

Following the verbal update, the Principal Democratic Services Officer
presented the update report for the Governance Systems Review, which
had been considered at the Overview and Scrutiny Board meeting on
20" November 2023. During the presentation the following was
highlighted for Members’ attention:

e The update highlighted the work undertaken at the Council to
implement the recommendations made by the Governance
Systems Task Group and approved at the Council meeting held
on 20" September 2023.

e It had been agreed that the Constitution Review Working Group
(CRWG) would meet on a monthly basis in order to ensure that all
changes would be delivered by the start of the municipal year
2024/25. Thus far, the CRWG had discussed the draft Terms of
Reference for Cabinet Advisory Groups (CAGs) and the draft
Memorandum of Understanding for cross party working.

e |t had been agreed that the term “Cabinet Advisory Groups”
(CAGs) would be used instead of Cabinet Advisory Panels.

e That the CAGs were separate to the scrutiny function that was
already in place at the Council and that these groups would not
duplicate the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Board.

e That it would be up to the relevant Portfolio Holder to call a CAG
meeting throughout the municipal year on a topic at an early
stage of discussion.

e Included in the draft calendar of meetings for the 2024/25
municipal year were several dates for the CAG meetings which
could be used if necessary. However, extra meetings could
potentially be held on an ad hoc basis where required.

Members were informed that there had been general agreement from
the Board at its meeting on 20" November 2023 in respect of the

Page 200



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

recommendations included in the report. However, some slight
amendments had been agreed. These were as follows:

1) The terms of reference for the Cabinet Advisory Groups be
approved, subject to addition of Paragraph 12 which would
read as follows: “Memorandum of Understanding also
applies”; and

2) The proposed Memorandum of Understanding concerning
cross party working be approved, subject to an
amendment to point 5 of the Principles section to read as
follows: “Recognise and respect that each individual
Member can contribute to decisions that are taken and
should be involved and able to provide their opinion before
a decision is taken”.

Cabinet generally supported the amended recommendations that had
been made. Two slight amendments were suggested as follows in italics
below:

1) The terms of reference for the Cabinet Advisory Groups be
approved, subject to addition of Paragraph 12 which would read
as follows: “the Memorandum of Understanding also applies
when taking part in Cabinet Advisory Groups”; and

2) The proposed Memorandum of Understanding concerning cross
party working be approved, subject to an amendment to point 5 of
the Principles section to read as follows: “Recognise and respect
that each individual Member can contribute to decisions that are
taken and should be given the opportunity to be involved and able
to provide their opinion before a decision is taken”.

The Chaiman of the Board stated that he was happy with the suggested
amendments. He also noted that the meetings of CAGs would be at the
request of the relevant Portfolio Holder and were not designed to
undermine the role of the Portfolio Holder.

On being put to the vote it was

RESOLVED that

1) The terms of reference for the Cabinet Advisory Groups be
approved, subject to addition of Paragraph 12 which would read

Page 201



50/23

Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

as follows: “Memorandum of Understanding also applied when
taking part in a Cabinet Advisory Group”; and

RECOMMENDED that

2) The proposed Memorandum of Understanding concerning cross
party working be approved, subject to an amendment to point 5 of
the Principles section to read as follows: “Recognise and respect
that each individual Member can contribute to decisions that are
taken and should be given the opportunity to be involved and able
to provide their opinion before a decision be taken”.

HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION GRANT AND DOMESTIC ABUSE
GRANT

The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing and Strategic Housing
presented the Homelessness Prevention Grant and Domestic Abuse
Grant for Members’ consideration.

In doing so the following was highlighted:

e This was an annual report that provided Members with
information regarding the allocation of the Homelessness
Prevention and Domestic Abuse Grant available in 2024/25. In
total there was £339,261 available to allocate to organisations to
provide a package of support and services to prevent
homelessness and support those who became homeless.
Included in this allocation was a £35,000 Domestic Abuse Grant.
The report was being considered earlier than usual by Members.
This was due to the increased costs incurred by the organisations
carrying out support work in this area and the cost of living crisis.

e During the funding round a bid from BEAM had been received for
£20,000 to support individuals into the private rented sector.
However, the Council had considered that rentals in the private
sector to households on benefits were out of range due to the
Local Housing Allowance Rate being frozen at 2020 levels and
landlords increasing rents significantly when re-letting due to the
cost of living crisis and having to meet increased mortgage
repayments. The BEAM scheme was seen as a duplication of a
service already provided by the Council and BDHT Housing
Options team and therefore the bid had not been selected for the
municipal year 2024/25.

Page 202



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

e A bid from CCP for a Rough Sleeper Outreach Service was still
under consideration whilst a potential different way of delivering
the service was being explored.

Following the presentation of the report, the Strategic Housing Manager
explained that there had been a slight amendment to the report
regarding the current challenges being faced by voluntary organisations.
The amendment was noted as follows:

“These are voluntary organisations and without this funding it was
unlikely this support would be offered or available which in turn would
lead to increase direct revenue costs for the Council. Their prevention
role was crucial in helping people remain in their existing
accommodation wherever possible. This was even more relevant due to
affordability issues in the private rented sector and mortgages for first
time buyers being more difficult to access due to the increase in interest
rates, in addition there had been less churn in social housing, so few
properties were becoming available and social housing options were
very limited”.

Cabinet was further informed that St Basil’s had been unsuccessful in
their supported housing procurement. This would look to be resolved by
them in six to twelve months’ time and Worcestershire County Council
(WCC) were working with them to resolve this issue. It was confirmed
that Worcestershire Childrens’ First were providing the support in this
area.

Members queried the anticipated underspend of £23,500 that had been
noted in the report. Officers explained that these monies were
anticipated to be received as a result of the housing benefits that were
received back to the Council through the use of the ‘Crash Pad’ service.

In terms of the allocation of £35,000 for those who suffered domestic
abuse some Members queried whether this allocation was enough,
particularly in light of the need to remove those who suffered domestic
abuse from their property to ensure safety.

It was clarified that due to the implementation of the Domestic Abuse Act
2021 the preference was to keep those who suffered domestic abuse in
their own property and remove those who perpetrated the abuse. Extra
funding had been allocated at a County level in order to do this.

Officers provided information regarding the current pressures
experienced on service providers due to a lack of accommodation for

Page 203



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

homeless and rough sleepers. In particular it was noted that BDHT were
working hard with young people and looking for alternative ways to
provide help due to the change in needs that were currently being
experienced, this included engaging with rough sleepers in more rural
areas.

It was confirmed that last year there were zero rough sleepers within the
District. It was thought that this would be the case following this year’s
rough sleeper count. Officers explained that if it were more than zero this
year it would not be significantly higher.

Following the consideration of the report the Strategic Housing Manager
was thanked for all of her hard work in this area and particularly in the
strong partnership work she and the team undertook.

RESOLVED that

1) the initiatives in the table below be approved to receive allocation
of funding 2024/25.

2024/25
Homelessness Grant Allocation £

(up to

£303,963)
Housing Agency Agreement Top Up 52,475

Young Persons Pathway Worker — support to prevent
homelessness for under 25’s and Crash Pad to provide a unit of | 53,512
emergency accommodation for young people.
Worcestershire Strategic Housing Partnership Co-ordinator —
contribution towards county-wide development and delivery of 9,500
housing initiatives in partnership with other agencies
Single Person and Childless Couples Homelessness Prevention | 18,347
Service

NewStarts - Provide Furniture and Volunteering Opportunities
for Ex-Offenders — supports tenancy sustainment and provides 10,000
future employment opportunities/reduces risk of reoffending
GreenSquare Accord Housing Related Support — helping ex-

offenders remain housed/seek employment 25,320
St Basils Foyer — provides stable accommodation/support for
young people - 14 units — fully occupied during last financial 10,492
year
Rough Sleeper outreach and prevention service targeting rough
. . 29,941

sleepers and those at risk of rough sleeping.
North Worcestershire Basement Project - Support for young

: 26,667
people at risk of homelessness
Step Up — Private Tenancy Scheme 23,000
Sunrise Project intensive support 44,667
Total committed expenditure 303,921
Underspend £ 42

Page 204



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

2) That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Community
and Housing Services following consultation with the Portfolio
Holder for Strategic Housing to use any unallocated Grant during
the year or make further adjustments as necessary to ensure full
utilisation of the Grants for 2024/25 in support of existing or new
schemes.

51/23 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY HALF YEARLY REPORT

The Interim Director of Finance presented the Treasury Management
Strategy Half Yearly Report for Cabinet’s consideration.

Members were informed that the report set out the state of the economic
climate as advised by the Council’s Treasury advisor Arlingclose.

The Council currently had no long term debt, predominantly due to the
previous transfer of housing assets to BDHT. It was also confirmed that
there was no short term borrowing. Officers confirmed that debt was
guite expensive now and that a 20 year £5m debt would cost £530,000
per annum.

In terms of investments, it was explained that short term investments
were made using amounts from the Council Tax and Business rates
cash flow. It was clarified that all investments that were made were
ethical.

Cabinet was informed that difficult decisions would need to be made as
interest rates moved back to ‘normal’.

Following the consideration of the report, Members expressed an
interest in how the Council considered investment management
organisations to manage its investments. The Interim Director of Finance
explained that this was discussed with Arlingclose and that there were a
range of investment management organisations that were used. It was
confirmed that investments were not currently made outside of the UK.

RECOMMENDED that

Council note the position in relation to the Council’s Prudential
indicators.

Page 205



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

52/23 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN - TRANCHE 1 BUDGET UPDATE
INCLUDING FEES AND CHARGES

The Interim Director of Finance presented the Medium Term Financial
Plan (MTFP) - Tranche 1 Budget Update including Fees and Charges.
During the presentation the following was highlighted for Members’
consideration:

e The Council’'s budget would be set in two tranches for the
2023/24 financial year as it had been in 2022/23. The final
Council Tax Resolution would be approved by Council in
February 2024. It was noted that the process would be more
difficult in the 2023/24 financial year due to several factors
including:

1. the £637,000 overall deficit across the three years of the
2023/24 MTFP.

2. The Council still needed to close its Accounts for the
2020/21 financial year.

3. The loss of key staff.

4. The cost of living crisis.

Some wider factors included:

1. The war in Ukraine and the impact of inflationary
increases.

2. Climate Emergencies and associated costs to implement
policies linked to these declarations.

Clarification was provided on some of these factors including the
national shortage of audit resources to complete the closure of Local
Authority accounts. It was estimated that currently there were 900
outstanding audits still to be carried out across the UK between the
2015-16 and 22-23 financial years.

It was anticipated that Central Government would have to look at Local
Government funding in a different way going forward, potentially being
more prescriptive, in light of the number of Local Councils who had
issued S114 Statements as a result of being in significant financial
difficulties.

Members were informed that there would be no service related savings
during this tranche of the budget. These would be looked at more closely

Page 206



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

once the Local Government Settlement had been confirmed on 19t
December 2023 (the present expected date).

A number of assumptions had been made within the report: the increase
of Council Tax by 2 per cent, no increase in Business Rates, an increase
in properties as a result of the Local Plan of 150k houses (year 1), 200
(year 2) and 150 (year 3), no New Home Bonus funding pending any
announcement within the Local Government Settlement, other
Government Grants and pension fund assumptions are as previous
years allocations.

Further assumptions were reported to Members, and it was detailed that
the Staff Pay Award costs were approximately £770,000 more and that it
was prudent to increase the Councils 2024/5 pay award impact from 2
per cent to 3 per cent given the significant increases that have been
offered by the Employers during 2022/3 and 2023/4. The 2025/6 and
2026/7 pay awards were assumed to be 2 per cent.

In terms of inflation, it was explained that it was also prudent to include a
5 per cent budget for inflationary increases to contracts.

Officers informed Cabinet that some of these pressures could be
partially mitigated as currently only 60 per cent of the additional Utilities
budget was being utilised.

Fees and Charges were discussed, and it was highlighted that the
proposed Fees and Charges increase for 2024/25 would be 7 per cent
(in line with inflation) returning to 2 per cent for the financial years
2025/23 and 2026/27.

The Departmental Pressures were summarised for Members and in
doing so they were informed that a target of £500,000 for reclamation of
benefit payments had previously been set. However, due to more
accurate information and improved processes the need for recovery had
decreased.

In addition to this, it was highlighted that there was still no Government
guidance on waste delivery in the future. This presented a potentially
huge cost to the Council as it would possibly need to move to an electric
or hydrogen fleet or increased use of Hydrogenated Vegetable Oil
(HVO) to fuel the fleet vehicles. It was confirmed that this form of fuel
was more expensive than diesel. This and other ‘Green’ targets would
certainly put pressure on future budgets.

Page 207



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

Further Departmental Pressures included:

e Formalising the present pilot scheme on planning enforcement
being delivered by Worcester Regulatory Services (WRS) within
the Budget. This would equate to an ongoing cost of £72k a year.

e Anincrease of £93,000 a year to continue the Service Level
Agreement (SLA) between the Council and Wychavon District
Council (WDC) for the management and enforcement of on and
off street parking increases.

e The result of a review of allocation of resources within the North
Worcestershire Water Management (NWWM) SLA with Redditch
and Wyre Forest would result in an increase from £66,000 per
annum to £100,000 per annum.

Tranche 2 of the Budget would look to identify and fill any gaps within
the Budget. This could include looking at the Commercial fees and
charges, parking fees and new allowable increases in Planning fees. In
order to meet the Strategic Priorities of the Council more funding was
certainly required. It was reported that the following priorities would also
be looked at in Tranche 2:

e Recharges.
e Debt costs — given the slippage in the Capital Programme.
e Business Rates Re-baselining.

It was noted that the Capital Programme, as agreed at Council in
February 2023, had been included in an appendix to the report. It
included the information on Play and Parks improvement works.
Members were informed that the £1.597m requirements for the Barnt
Green Millenium Park Toilets had also been included. Officers explained
that this was incorrect as the works had been completed and the costs
should have been removed.

Following the presentation of the report the areas highlighted below
were also discussed:

e The contents of the Chancellor's Autumn Statement which had
been released on the day of the meeting.

e The use of Task and Finish contracts within the Council’s
operations and the potential risk to the Council. Although it was
noted that refuse collectors operated a task and finish model of
working this question had been raised at a meeting of the Audit,
Standards and Governance Committee and had been addressed
by Officers and a full response provided at that time. It was noted

Page 208



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

that the External Auditors had also raised this with relevant
Officers previously. Officers undertook to look at this further if
necessary.

e The complicated and idiosyncratic way Local Government Budget
were presented. These were explained to Members for future
reference. Officers confirmed that there would be a detailed
glossary and explanation of terms included in the Tranche 2
Budget papers.

e The consultation period for Tranche 2 of the Budget — this was
noted as February 2024. It was confirmed that Parish Councils
would be able to take part in the consultation prior to the
finalisation of Tranche 2.

e Leisure requirements — it was queried where the Play Area cost
and requirement information had been gathered. It was confirmed
that this had been provided by Officers following work undertaken
as a result of several Questions and Motions considered at Full
Council meetings. However, it was clarified that some of these
improvements would be funded by the UK Shared Prosperity
Funding (UKSPF) received previously.

The Leader invited Councillor P. McDonald to speak in his role as
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Board. Members were informed
that this report had been considered the previous evening by the
Finance and Budget Working Group (FBWG) on behalf of the main
Board. During this meeting there had been several detailed discussions
regarding the Planning Enforcement proposal, and the proposed
increase in costs in respect of NWWM and the Parking SLA with WDC.

Councillor McDonald stated that he and other Members were not aware
that WRS had been carrying out enforcement duties on behalf of the
Council’'s Planning Department. It was raised that this should be a
Planning function and therefore carried out in-house.

Officers explained that there was a national shortage of Planning
Officers and Members were assured that numerous methods had been
utilised to try to recruit and retain Planning Officers. This included
apprenticeships, career graded roles, training and agile and remote
working provision. However, the problem of retention and recruitment
still remained partly due to the higher salaries available in the private
sector.

Some Members felt that given the current situation in shortage of

Planning Officers the formalisation of utilising WRS was the best way
forward. They were not a third party provider and offered expertise in a

Page 209



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

complex area. The WRS Officers were able to triage enforcement
matters to ensure the most expedient resolution to Planning
enforcement matters resulting in a better and cost efficient service for
residents. It was requested that the date the initial use of WRS Officers
for Planning Enforcement had been agreed be provided to Members.
Officers undertook to provide this information.

There was a very detailed discussion regarding the Parking SLA and
Members had raised concerns. Councillor McDonald felt that some of
the financial information included within the report should have been
considered on confidential papers due to commercial sensitivity.
Although this concern was noted it was clarified that none of the figures
were confirmed at this point as this was part of the Budget building
process. It was further reiterated by Officers that full details of any
changes to the SLA could not be given at this time, as these were
Departmental Pressures that had not yet been agreed. There would be a
detailed report presented to Members later in the year once further
discussion had been carried out and the information within that detailed
report would be presented accordingly.

The Interim Executive Director provided Members with a detailed
overview of Parking Enforcement within the District. Highlighting the
following areas:

e The £242,000 costs for under the SLA had not been increased for
a number of years. Therefore, any increase was in line with
inflationary costs.

e If there were not the full number of Civil Enforcement Officers
(CEOs) available to carry out parking enforcement, then costs
were not paid in full by the Council. Recruitment of new CEOs
was currently underway to and due to the increase in grade
following a job evaluation process it was hoped that the
recruitment round would be successful.

e Bromsgrove District Council carried out On-Street Traffic
Regulation Orders (TROs) enforcement under an agency
agreement with WCC.

e WDC carried out on and off street enforcement and ticketing
within the Districts car parks. Car park income generated
approximately £1m per annum and income from Penalty Charge
Notices (PCNs) generated approximately £100,000. All income
generated from PCNs was used for enforcement costs. This
income, however, did not cover the full cost of enforcement.
Discussions were ongoing with Senior Officers at WCC to see if
there was the potential for WCC to bridge at least some of the

Page 210



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

financial gap between the income of PCNs and the cost of
enforcing TROs for the Council.

e Notice periods for the cessation of the agency contract with WCC
was two years and one year for the WDC. Although there was
some discussion regarding the contractual obligations it was felt
that nothing could be actioned at the current time.

e Alternative providers could be approached to provide an
enforcement service for the Council; however, this could lead to
more targeted enforcement to gather income in a more
commercial manner. It was noted that the relationship between
WDC had been good over a ten year period and that they had
provided the back office software needed for parking
enforcement.

Some Members expressed that they felt that enforcement was not
carried out efficiently, with CEOs driving long distances between areas
within the District to carry out enforcement. Although it was stated that
sometimes CEOs did not even get to the outer areas within the District.
It was agreed that a review was certainly needed to look at the operating
model for the future.

Members stated that the perception of residents within the District was
that the enforcement service provided by the Council was below
standard even though some of the enforcement tasks were undertaken
on behalf of WCC.

Following the robust discussion, it was requested that a report be
submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Board to investigate this matter
in more detail. This would provide an opportunity for Board Members to
look at a breakdown of data including costs paid to WDC if not all CEOs
were available to carry out duties and the cost of enforcement for both
on and off street parking. It was suggested that information on specific
areas within the District that had been enforced and the last time fees
were increased should also be investigated.

This would be a time critical investigation with extremely tight deadlines
due to the contract end date in March 2024.

Members then revisited the issues that had been highlighted earlier in
the meeting regarding NWWM. Members were in agreement that
NWWM provided a service that benefitted the District, particularly in
more recent years. Members stated that it was hard to disagree with the
increase in costs if the allocation of resources had been reviewed and it
had been determined that NWWM were spending more time within the

Page 211



53/23

54/23

Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

District than in previous years. Members queried how often the
allocation data was reviewed and Officers confirmed that it would be
reviewed on a two yearly basis going forward, to better understand
resource needed across Bromsgrove. A more detailed appendix to the
MTFP would be provided in respect of this matter for Members’
consideration when the Tranche 2 budget was considered in February
2024.

RESOLVED that

1) The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan as at the start of
October, and the associated risks and opportunities be
endorsed.

2) These inputs had been used, along with the 2023/24-25/26
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) agreed by Council in
February 2023, to project an initial “gap” to be closed.

3) An initial Tranche of savings proposals, as set out in Section
3.12 - 3.25 and the associated Savings Proposal Document in
Appendix A, would be published on 14" November 2023 and
any feedback be considered by Cabinet in January 2023 prior
to seeking approval at Council in January 2024.

4) Tranche 2 of this process would add further information such
as the Local Government Settlement to give a final financial
position for the Council.

RECOMMENDED that

5) That the Play capital works for 2023/4 as set out in the report
be approved and added to the Capital Programme.

TO CONSIDER ANY URGENT BUSINESS, DETAILS OF WHICH HAVE
BEEN NOTIFIED TO THE HEAD OF LEGAL, DEMOCRATIC AND
PROPERTY SERVICES PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING AND WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF SPECIAL
CIRCUMSTANCES, CONSIDERS TO BE OF SO URGENT A NATURE
THAT IT CANNOT WAIT UNTIL THE NEXT MEETING

There was no urgent business on this occasion.

FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT QUARTER 2

2023/24 (REPORT TO FOLLOW)

The Interim Director of Finance presented the Finance and Performance
Monitoring Report Quarter 2 2023/24 for Members’ consideration.

Page 212



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

Included in the report were details of the full year revenue budget of
£13.8m which was approved by Full Council in February 2023. It was
confirmed that training for budget mangers had been undertaken.

Currently the Council was forecasting a revenue overspend of £815,000,
which would be mitigated in part by the application of the £351,000 from
the Utilities Reserve approved at Quarter 1. This resulted in a £464,000
overspend. Members were informed that the overspend had
predominantly been as a result of additional pressures including the staff
pay award, fuel and fleet costs and the increased cost of temporary
accommodation.

In terms of the Capital Programme, Members were reminded that a
£10.9m programme had been approved in March 2023 and that many of
the schemes were in partial delivery in the 2022/23 financial year.

Some updates were provided to Members regarding some of the Capital
projects including Windsor Street. It was explained that there had been
some additional levels of pollution identified at this site which needed to
be assessed under new Environment Agency (EA) rules. The Council
was currently holding discussions with the Department for Levelling Up,
Housing & Communities (DLUHC) to resolve these issues in terms of
time and cost. However, it was noted that the EA were carrying out
countrywide investigations as a result of the change in rules which might
impact on the timing of the Windsor Street site.

Cabinet was informed that there were some proposed changes to the
Capital Programme included in the report that required approval. These
included the proposal to bring forward £50,000 of the £177,500 capital
bid for an ICT server replacement to this municipal year. It was
explained that this was an important project for the Council as the cyber
security linked tape drive replacements would improve cyber security
and help to prevent impacts of any future cyber security attack. An
increase to the Capital Programme of £410k in 2023/24 also required
approval to ensure the continuation of the Civica OpenRevenues system
for the administration of Council Tax, Business Rates and Housing
Benefits. A decrease in cost for year 3 of the Barnt Green toilet works as
highlighted in the MTFP report also required approval.

Cabinet was informed that the Energy Efficiency Strategy continued to

be progressed across the property portfolio and that Housing Property
Services had carried out a desktop study to rule out any presence of

Page 213



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated Concrete (RAAC) in Council properties.
It was noted that so far, no RAAC had been identified.

It was reported that work had been undertaken in order to get The Artrix
in a position to open for use by a theatre provider.

The procurement pipeline which included Capital and Revenue
procurements over £50,000 was briefly discussed and the Interim
Director of Finance explained that he was currently in the process of
organising an all-Member session to clarify the procurement process.
Further details regarding this session would be available shortly.

Following the presentation of the report, Members thanked the Interim
Director of Finance and the Head of Finance and Customer Services for
all their hard work pulling this comprehensive report together.

Following consideration of the report there were some comments and
guestions from Members. The Cabinet Member for Planning, Licensing
and WRS stated that he had arranged to meet with the Assistant Chief
Fire Officer to discuss the issues identified at the Windsor Street site. It
was stated that this meeting and any information needed to be shared
with relevant Members and partners as soon as possible.

Some queries were raised in respect of the Performance Indicators
contained within Appendix E of the report. However, it was decided that
as there was currently a review of performance measures underway a
discussion regarding these would be more appropriate during the review
process.

RESOLVED that

1) The current overspend position in relation to Revenue and Capital
Budgets for the period April to September and the full year
revenue overspend position of £464,000 after applying £351,000
from the Utilities Reserve as approved at Quarter 1 be noted.

2) The present status of the Asset Strategy.

3) There was no change to the procurements over £200,000 due to
be delivered during 2023/4 from those listed in Quarter 1.

4) The Quarter 2 Performance data for the Period April to
September 2023 be noted.

5) The application of £50,000 from the General Fund for
Enforcement Action to be taken at a site in Alvechurch.

Page 214



Agenda Iltem 14

Cabinet
22nd November 2023

RECOMMENDED that

1) Changes to the Capital Programme in relation to ICT be actioned,
bringing forward Cyber Security linked Tape Drive replacements
forward from 2024/5 into 2023/4, and increasing the budget in
2023/4 to ensure the continuation of the Civica OpenRevenues
system for the administration of council tax, business rates and
housing benefits.

The meeting closed at 20:36

Chairman

Page 215



Agenda Iltem 14

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 216



Agenda Iltem 15

Bromsgrove District Council — 6™ December 2023
Member Questions

From Councillor E. Gray
Question for the Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services and
Community Safety

“Would the Cabinet Portfolio Holder agree that in the interests of shoppers,
residents and Bromsgrove businesses, at least the first half-hour of parking
should be FREE and thereafter a “Pay on Foot” model, paying on exit, should
be adopted across the District?”

From Councillor P. McDonald
Question for the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Enabling

“Would the Cabinet Member for Finance and Enabling inform me how many
additional staff have been employed since May 2023 in the area of Leisure and
Cultural Services?”

From Councillor S. Evans
Question for the Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and
Regeneration

Could you please confirm the budget for the levelling up fund awarded to
Bromsgrove and how we are currently tracking against this?

From Councillor R. Hunter
Question for the Leader of the Council

Could the leader please confirm if it is this Council’s policy to exempt people
receiving council tax support from bailiff enforcement action over non-payment
of council tax?

From Councillor S. Robinson
Question for the Portfolio Holder for Planning, Licensing and WRS

Could you please set out the consequences of Bromsgrove not having a five
year land supply and explain what the Council is doing to remedy this situation?

Page 217



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 16

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

COUNCIL 6" December 2023

NOTICE OF MOTION

The following Notice of Motion has been submitted in accordance with Procedure
Rule 10 by Councillor H. Jones:

“After hearing the devastating news, that two innocent, healthy puppies had been
killed and dumped within our district, I call upon this council to commit to prioritise
the promotion to support a publicity campaign to reminding dog owners and breeders
of their responsibilities, in the hope we can stop anymore uncalled-for deaths of an
animal. Within this campaign we also need to remind residents that they should only
buy animals from a reputable source and the steps they should take to ensure the
animals they buy are healthy and have been well cared for. The campaign should
also emphasise the need for the public to report any situations they identify where
people may be breeding dogs illegally, or in circumstances that put the health of
animals in jeopardy. WRS has “dog related issues” as one of its key priorities and,
whilst they do their best to proactively identify illegal breeders and sales, more help
from the public would not go amiss.”

Page 219



Agenda Iltem 16

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

COUNCIL 6" December 2023

NOTICE OF MOTION

The following Notice of Motion has been submitted in accordance with Procedure
Rule 10 by Councillor S. Evans:

“This Council supports improving connectivity for rail users travelling from
Bromsgrove Train Station so that they can travel to destinations such as
Cheltenham, Bristol and Cardiff with ease.

This Council therefore resolves to support the campaign for greater connectivity from
Bromsgrove Train Station, as campaigned for by organisations such as BARRUP,
and calls on the Leader of the Council to write to CrossCountry Trains to request that
their service, which currently runs between Nottingham and Cardiff, stops at
Bromsgrove train station to improve connectivity between our area and popular
destinations, putting Bromsgrove on the map and increasing tourism to our town
whilst allowing residents to travel with ease.”

Page 220



Agenda Iltem 16

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

COUNCIL 6" December 2023

NOTICE OF MOTION

The following Notice of Motion has been submitted in accordance with Procedure
Rule 10 by Councillor P. Whittaker:

“In light of the late finish to the last Full Council meeting on Wednesday 25th October
2023 and bearing in mind that some Councillors have full time jobs and that paid
staff have to be in attendance after their days work, it is therefore proposed that all
council meetings shall not continue after 9pm.”

Page 221



Agenda Iltem 16

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

COUNCIL 6" December 2023

NOTICE OF MOTION

The following Notice of Motion has been submitted in accordance with Procedure
Rule 10 by Councillor P. McDonald

“‘We call upon the Cabinet to work to modernise our bus shelters by introducing 'Live
Time'. The new system will tell waiting passengers exactly when the next bus is due
by monitoring and reporting on its progress in real-time. It helps make services more
efficient, which means a better service.”

Page 222



Agenda Iltem 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 223



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 225



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3, 6a, 6b of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 227



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 25th October 2023
	6 To receive comments, questions or petitions from members of the public
	8 Statutory Officer Posts - Appointments
	Stat officers report Appendix 1

	9 Recommendation from the Licensing Committee
	10 Joint Auditor's 2020-2021 and 2022-2023 Annual Report
	Bromsgrove District Council - interim AAR - 2021-22 and 2022-23_FINAL
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4: Executive summary
	Slide 5: Executive summary
	Slide 6: Executive summary
	Slide 7: Executive summary
	Slide 8: Use of auditor's powers
	Slide 9: Recommendation made under section 24 schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14: Key recommendations
	Slide 15: Securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the local authority’s use of resources
	Slide 16: Financial sustainability
	Slide 17: Financial sustainability
	Slide 18: Financial sustainability
	Slide 19: Financial sustainability
	Slide 20: Financial sustainability
	Slide 21: Financial sustainability
	Slide 22: Financial sustainability
	Slide 23: Financial sustainability
	Slide 24: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 25: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 26: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 27: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 28: Governance
	Slide 29: Governance
	Slide 30: Governance
	Slide 31: Governance
	Slide 32: Governance
	Slide 33: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 34: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 35: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 36: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 37: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 38: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 39: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 40: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 41: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 42: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 43: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 44: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 45: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 46: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 47: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 48: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 49: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 50: Opinion on the financial statements for 2021/22 and 2022/23
	Slide 51
	Slide 52: Appendix A – Responsibilities of the local authority
	Slide 53: Appendix B – Risks of significant weaknesses, our procedures and findings 
	Slide 54: Appendix C – An explanatory note on recommendations


	11 To receive and consider a report from the Portfolio Holder for Leisure, Culture and Climate Change
	12 Recommendations from the Cabinet
	13a Governance Systems Review - Update Report
	Appendix 1 Cabinet Advisory Group Outline - updated 231108
	Appendix 2 Memorandum of Understanding - updated 231108

	13b Half Yearly Treasury Update Report 2023/24
	13c Medium Term Financial Plan - Tranche 1 Budget Update including Fees and Charges
	13d Finance and Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 2 2023/24
	Appendix A – Capital Programme
	Appendix B – Reserves Position
	Appendix E - Strategic and Operational Performance Measures

	14 To note the minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 22nd November 2023
	Minutes

	15 Questions on Notice
	16 Motions on Notice
	19 Finance and Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 2 2023/24
	Appendix D - Exempt Appendix
	Appendix F  - Exempt Appendix


